
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 23 July 2015, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
Please note training will take place for all Committee Members on  

Final Accounts and the Role of the Audit Committee  
at 5.30pm in the Georgian Room. 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Ben Berry 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Stan Collins 

Joss Curwen 

Pru Jupe (Vice-Chairman) 

Kevin Lancaster 

Ian Stewart 

 

 
 
 
Tuesday, 14 July 2015 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Public Participation on agenda items at the meeting is welcomed. 
It will be helpful if prior notice could be given to the agenda contact below. 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Sandip Mahajan 

Telephone: 01539 793188 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 16 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 23 April 2015 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on 
this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  TERMS OF REFERENCE  17 - 20 

 To note, and receive a verbal update on the Terms of Reference for the 
Audit Committee (attached). 

 

6  WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16  21 - 24 

 To review the Audit Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/16.  

7  RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  25 - 44 

 To note the Strategic Risk Register.  

8  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS INCLUDING THE ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15  

45 - 158 

 To consider and note the unaudited Statement of Accounts, including the 
Annual Governance Statement for 2014/15. 
 
 

 



9  INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT  

159 - 176 

 To note progress made with Internal Audit Recommendations, the Annual 
Governance Statement Action Plan 2015/16 and Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption.  

 

10  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2015/16   

 To consider executive summaries of recently completed Internal Audit 
reports. 

 

 a  FEES AND CHARGES  177 - 182 

 b  INFORMATION GOVERNANCE  183 - 190 

 c  GENERAL IT CONTROLS  191 - 196 

 d  IT DATA BACKUP AND RECOVERY ARRANGEMENTS  197 - 204 

11  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15  205 - 216 

 To consider Internal Audit’s Annual Report 2014/15.  

12  REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT  217 - 230 

 To review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Service.  

13  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No. 1)  231 - 238 

 To note a summary of the work carried out by Internal Audit and details of 
the progress made on the delivery of the approved Audit Plan for the first 
period of 2015/16. 

 

14  EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  239 - 254 

 To update Members of the Audit Committee on the progress made on the 
external audit and also on current issues for local government. 

 

15  REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACT  255 - 260 

 To approve the proposed arrangements for the tendering of the Internal 
Audit Service from 1 April 2016. 

 

16  AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  261 - 268 

 To review the updated Audit Committee Risk Register.  

17  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To receive a verbal update from the Assistant Director (Resources) and 
Section 151 Officer on any other significant financial issues. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number). 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 
  

 





33 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Thursday, 23 April 2015, at 6.30 pm. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
  
 

Ben Berry 
 

David Williams 
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Stan Collins, Pru Jupe, 
Annie Rawlinson and Ian Stewart. 
 

Officers 
 

Claire Gould Policy and Partnerships Manager 

Sandip Mahajan 

Shelagh McGregor 

Democratic Services and Scrutiny Officer 

Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Peter Notley Chief Accountant 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

  

Also in attendance at the meeting were Jackie Bellard (External Audit Director), 
Simon Hardman (External Audit Manager) and Gill Martin (Internal Audit 
Manager). 
 

AUD/47 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 4 December 2014. 
 

AUD/48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

AUD/49 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no items in Part II of the Agenda. 
 

AUD/50 APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDIT PANEL  
 
An Audit Panel of three Members would consider, in detail, the Annual 
Governance Statement, with recommendations to the Audit Committee in time to 
meet statutory reporting deadlines. 
 



34 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED - Subject to any membership changes that arose at Annual Council, a 
provisional Audit Panel comprising of Councillors Berry, Coleman and Jupe be 
convened on Thursday 4 June, 6.00 pm.  
 

AUD/51 WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15  
 
The Financial Services Manager explained that the Audit Committee’s agreed 
Work Programme for 2014/15 would be completed as presented. Two additional 
items had been added to the Programme and were reported at the meeting. These 
were Future Corporate Fraud Arrangements and Anti-Bribery & Anti-Money 
Laundering Policies. The Policies report took into account Internal Audit 
recommendations which were also presented at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme for 2014/15 be noted. 
 

AUD/52 WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the Audit Committee’s proposed Work 
Programme for 2015/16 which was subject to meeting dates being confirmed at 
Annual Council. The Programme was similar to 2014/15. The current internal and 
external audit contracts were in their final year so would need to be reviewed. The 
External Auditor had been agreed by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
(successor to the ceased Audit Commission). 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed Work Programme for 2015/16 be noted. 
 

AUD/53 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2014/15  
 
The Chief Accountant explained that approved accounting policies were required 
to produce robust annual accounts. The policies were reviewed each year to 
ensure compliance with the latest national requirements and best practice, as 
stipulated by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.  
 
A few minor changes needed to be made based on local circumstances. These 
included accounting changes required for retained gilt holdings; prepayments 
made to the pension fund counting as pension liability reductions; and the 
estimated value of heritage assets to be based on insurance valuations.  
 
Responses were given to Members’ questions. It was explained that, following the 
investment function coming in-house, there was no longer any active gilt trading 
but a gilt was being retained for long-term maturity so different accounting 
treatment was required. It was confirmed that the pension prepayments 
represented good value for money with savings being achieved (estimated in the 
region of £25k) over the next three year period. Heritage assets had previously 
been mixed valuation with a simpler approach now proposed using insurance 
valuations for individual assets.  Some assets might be classified as operational 
assets although they might also have heritage value. Recovery of debts were 
managed through a structured approach with longer-term debts acquiring greater 
potential write-off provision. 
 



35 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That the Accounting Policies, at Appendix 1 of the report, be 
adopted for using to close the 2014/15 Accounts. 
 

AUD/54 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 2014-19 AND REPORTING 
TIMETABLE 2015-16  
 
The Policy and Partnerships Manager presented the updated Performance 
Management Framework 2014-19 and Reporting Timetable 2015-16. She 
explained that the Framework was reviewed annually and no significant changes 
were proposed. One minor change had been made following the Internal Audit 
review of Performance Management which was also being considered at this 
meeting. The change stated that Directorate performance monitoring took place 
quarterly (in line with quarterly performance monitoring) rather than weekly. 
 
RESOLVED – That the updated Performance Management Framework 2014-19 
and Reporting Timetable 2015-16 be noted. 
 

AUD/55 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Policy and Partnerships Manager presented the Risk Management update 
report. She explained that the Risk Management process was reviewed annually 
and no significant changes were proposed.  
 
Risks were also currently being reviewed as part of the annual process. Two new 
risks had been added to the Strategic (Corporate) Risk Register. Mitigations 
actions with due dates (for implementing actions) were listed in the Register. Risks 
that were being managed with mitigation would come off the Register if they were 
within acceptable levels of risk.  
 
One new risk was ensuring compliance with emerging procurement legislation. 
The other new risk concerned business continuity which was being effectively 
managed through a number of scheduled mitigating actions.  
 
It was felt unusual that some portfolios had no strategic risks. It was explained that 
there might still be risks although below the ‘line of appetite’ (acceptable tolerance 
level of risk) therefore not appearing in the Risk Report. Operational risks were 
managed at service level. 
 
It was noted that risks were considered in greater detail by the Performance Sub-
Committee.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the Risk Management updates be noted; and  
 
(2) the more detailed Risks Report, considered by the Performance Sub-
Committee, also be presented at the next Audit Committee meeting for noting 
purposes only. 
 



36 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/56 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS MONITORING 
REPORT  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) presented a progress 
report on implementation of Internal Audit recommendations and the Annual 
Governance Statement Action Plan.  
 
There were 54 Audit recommendations of which 9 had future completion dates. Of 
the 45 recommendations current, 39 had been completed, 3 partially completed 
and 3 would not benefit from further action. So 93% (39 out of 42) of the 
recommendations had been completed. 
 
In June, the Audit Panel would review the three outstanding actions from the 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan. None were significant but did require 
reviewing. 
 
Members referred to the Internal Audit recommendation 48 which concerned 
development of a management agreement between the Council and the Lake 
District National Park Authority for provision of services and other matters. The 
Council’s property contractor, NPS, was finalising the documentation for this 
agreement although the target completion date had moved from 31/12/14 to 
31/05/15. Assurance was given that the contractual agreement would be finalised 
promptly.  
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made with implementing Internal Audit 
recommendations, and progress made against the Annual Governance Statement 
Action Plan, be noted. 
 

AUD/57 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2014/15  
 
The Internal Audit Manager presented various reports for audits undertaken in 
2014/15 as part of the agreed Audit Plan for that year. The scope of each audit 
was listed in the reports. 
 
57.1 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
This audit of Performance Management had reviewed development of 
performance management plans, reporting and monitoring, and improvement 
actions. A reasonable assurance had been given with 2 medium priority 
recommendations and 2 advisory recommendations. The strengths of the service 
were also recognised. 
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned strengthening performance 
scrutiny through quality-checking data (and reporting any discrepancies to the 
Performance Sub-Committee), and effective tracking of the progress of 
improvement actions where performance needed to be improved.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Internal Audit report be noted and progress reports on 
implementation of recommendations be provided at future meetings as 
appropriate. 



37 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

57.2 PAYROLL 
This audit of Payroll had reviewed a range of areas including system controls, 
staffing duties, legal requirements, security and reconciliation. A reasonable 
assurance had been given with 3 medium priority recommendations and 2 
advisory recommendations. The strengths of the service were also recognised and 
testing of the system had identified no transactional errors. 
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned strengthening procedural 
documentation, supervision of staff and segregation of duties, data quality control 
using exception reports, performance scrutiny through quality-checking data (and 
reporting any discrepancies to the Performance Sub-Committee), and effective 
tracking of the progress of improvement actions where performance needed to be 
improved.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Internal Audit report be noted and progress reports on 
implementation of recommendations be provided at future meetings as 
appropriate. 
 
57.3 CREDITORS 
This audit of Creditor Payments had reviewed a range of areas including supplier 
maintenance controls, management of purchase orders and invoices, 
reconciliations and processing targets. A reasonable assurance had been given 
with 2 medium priority recommendations and 3 advisory recommendations. The 
strengths of the service were also recognised. 
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned ensuring robust arrangements 
were in place to prevent any potential fraud when creditor banking details 
changed, and ensuring accuracy of refunds to creditors. 
 
Members requested that quality-control checks took place to ensure procedures 
were being robustly followed. This would be actioned and reported upon at the 
next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1)     the Internal Audit report be noted and progress reports on 
implementation of recommendations be provided at future meetings as 
appropriate; and 
 
(2)    the results of procedural quality control checks be reported upon at the 
next meeting. 
 
57.4 COUNCIL TAX 
This audit of the Council Tax service had reviewed a range of areas including 
payments and refunds, discounts, recovery policy and performance. A reasonable 
assurance had been given with 4 medium priority recommendations and 3 
advisory recommendations. The strengths of the service were also recognised. 
 



38 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

The medium priority recommendations concerned ensuring robust debt recovery 
procedures, effective debt recovery reports and follow-up actions, quality control of 
work and clarity over authorisation procedures for refunds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Internal Audit report be noted and progress reports on 
implementation of recommendations be provided at future meetings as 
appropriate. 
 
57.5 COUNTER FRAUD MEASURES 
This audit of Counter Fraud Arrangements had reviewed a range of areas 
including checking the effectiveness of an established counter fraud framework 
and robust counter fraud measures. 
 
A reasonable assurance had been given with 3 medium priority recommendations 
and 5 advisory recommendations. The strengths of the service were also 
recognised. 
 
The medium priority recommendations concerned promoting zero tolerance to 
fraud and raising public awareness of this, regular reviews and reporting of 
counter fraud measures, annual fraud briefings, self-assessment to ensure counter 
fraud measures are in line with best practice and counter fraud applies to 
procurement and contracts. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Internal Audit report be noted and progress reports on 
implementation of recommendations be provided at future meetings as 
appropriate. 
 

AUD/58 INTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT 2014/15 (NO.4)  
 
The Internal Audit Manager presented the fourth progress report for 2014/15 which 
summarised Internal Audit activity to the year-end (31 March 2015). She explained 
that this was a standard progress report based on the agreed Audit Plan.  
 
She added that five internal audits had been presented to this meeting, two of 
which (Council Tax and Payroll) had been completed early meaning that the three 
main financial systems had all been audited. The report on Fees and Charges had 
been drafted and would be presented to the Audit Committee in July. Two 
remaining audits were ongoing - Information Governance and Business Continuity 
and General IT Controls. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made against the agreed 2014-15 Audit Plan be 
noted. 
 

AUD/59 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND CHARTER 2015/16  
 
The Internal Audit Manager presented the risk-based Internal Audit Plan of work 
for 2015-16, which was required under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
The Plan comprised of 255 audit days, which had been prepared in consultation 
with the Council’s Senior Management, and would provide effective use of audit 



39 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

resources. The Internal Audit Charter was also presented, with no changes 
proposed to the existing Charter. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the report be noted;  
 
(2) the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan, at Appendix 1 of the report, be approved; 
and  
 
(3) the Internal Audit Charter, at Appendix 2 of the report, be approved. 
 

AUD/60 EXTERNAL AUDIT CERTIFICATION REPORT 2013/14  
 
The External Audit Manager presented the findings of grant certification work for 
2013/14.  The number of grants claimed in recent years had reduced with just one 
claim (Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim) made in 2013/14 which required 
certification. Therefore a certification letter had been produced rather than a full 
report. The certification had been made on time.  

Some quality issues had been identified which were noted in the letter. These 
concerned details of some claimants’ income being incorrectly entered onto the 
system and use of incorrect classification codes. This had resulted in some over-
payments with the need to reduce the claim by £1,491. This was a nominal 
amount set in the content of the full claim being for over £19.8m. Members 
requested that staff be complimented upon achieving such a low level of error. 

The External Audit Manager added that the audit fee for the certification work had 
reduced to £6,776 reflecting the range of certification work (National Non-
Domestic Rates and Council Tax Benefit) which was no longer required.   

RESOLVED – That the External Audit Grant Certification report for 2013/14 be 
noted. 

 
AUD/61 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014/15  

 
The External Audit Manager presented details of the risk-based accounts Audit 
Plan 2014/15 work required to review the Council’s financial statements and 
provide a Value for Money conclusion. This work would largely take place from 
July 2015 and conclude by the end of September 2015. 

He explained that financial review work would include considering the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Plan and other key local and national factors. He outlined 
the wider approach to audit work and the range of risks identified, such as fraud 
and welfare spend, where it was important to have a strong governance 
framework and robust financial system controls.  

Audit work would include testing financial risk management. Interim audit work had 
not identified any major weaknesses. Value for Money work was ongoing.  

 
 
 



40 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the planned work (Audit Plan 2014/15) for the audit of the Council’s 
financial statements and Value for Money conclusion be noted; and  
 
(2) the findings from the interim audit work be noted. 
 

AUD/62 EXTERNAL AUDIT FEE LETTER FOR 2015/16  
 
The External Audit Director presented the 2015/16 External Audit Fee Letter. She 
explained that the scale of the fee had been set by the Audit Commission, which 
was ceasing and would be replaced. The fee scale was based on a work 
programme which comprised of statutory requirements and was largely the same 
as 2014/15. The fee was being significantly reduced from £79.3k in 2014/15 to 
£59.5k in 2015/16. Any extra work would be in agreement with the Council and 
charged as such.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Audit Fee for 2015/16, as set out in the External Audit Fee 
Letter, be noted. 
 

AUD/63 EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The External Audit Manager presented the progress report of Audit work 
undertaken during the year and remaining planned work. Interim audit work had 
taken place on the accounts and remaining work from July concluding in 
September was planned. Value for Money work was on-going. 
 
He outlined other work that had taken place or was due to. A number of practical 
workshops had been held in Cumbria with relevant officers attending. One 
workshop outlined the Place Analytics service offered by the External Auditor. 
Another workshop was about the much earlier closedown of annual accounts that 
would become mandatory in future years.  
 
An informal approach of gradual closedown (for the end of each quarter and then 
monthly towards year-end) was promoted so that much of the work was done well 
in advance of the official, much earlier, closedown deadline. For smaller district 
councils, this would prove challenging so the workshop was an opportunity to 
share ideas. Essentially an approach of producing reliable estimates at the various 
stages would make the overall process more manageable. The External Audit 
Director added that they would be consulting councils who had made significant 
progress in this direction. 
 
External Audit would also need to adopt a refined approach. It was noted that 
Audit Committee dates would need to fit the right timetable. Officers advised that 
the Council was already pursuing an approach of a gradual earlier closedown so 
that by the time this became mandatory, the Council would be in a good position to 
comfortably achieve early close-down. 
 
Members felt it was useful to know of the new approach and the active planning 
that was already taking place.  



41 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

 
Other sections in the report referred to early payment of pension contributions (to 
reduce deficits and gain discounts) and planning provision for business rate 
appeals. The Council was already active in both these areas. The remaining 
sections concerned wider topical issues for local government. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made on the audit and summary of emerging 
issues be noted. 
 

AUD/64 ANTI-BRIBERY AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICIES  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the draft Anti-Bribery Policy and 
associated Guidelines; and Anti-Money Laundering Policy.  

She referred to the Internal Audit report concerning counter-fraud measures. The 
Anti-Bribery documents were part of these measures. The Anti-Money Laundering 
document was a revision of the existing policy which had not been reviewed for 
several years although few actual changes were required.  

It was planned over the next year to create a single document with an action plan 
to tackle bribery and money laundering.  

Members queried the wording at Section 8, paragraph 8.1 of the draft Anti-Bribery 
Policy which stated ‘All allegations relating to bribery or corrupt practices may be 
investigated’. It was clarified that all allegations would be reviewed appropriately 
but the level of any investigation would be proportionate to the level of 
seriousness. 

RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the draft Anti-Bribery Policy, at Appendix 1 of the report, be approved for 
consultation and referral to the Human Resources Committee subject to 
appropriate rewording of paragraph 8.1 of the Policy along the lines of ‘All 
allegations relating to bribery or corrupt practices will be reviewed and investigated 
as appropriate’; 
 
(2) the proposed Anti-Bribery Guidelines, at Appendix 2 of the report, be noted; 
and  
 
(3) the revised Anti-Money Laundering Policy, at Appendix 3 of the report, be 
approved. 
 

AUD/65 FUTURE CORPORATE FRAUD ARRANGEMENTS  
 
The Assistant Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer presented details of 
proposed arrangements which would safeguard against any non-welfare and 
corporate fraud. With the move to Universal Credit, the Council’s Housing Benefit 
responsibilities (and associated staff including those with fraud duties) would 
transfer to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  
 
As part of this move, DWP would create a single fraud resource. The Assistant 
Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer referred to the Internal Audit report 



42 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

concerning counter-fraud measures and added that the Council needed to 
maintain sufficient fraud resource to tackle any fraud responsibilities which still 
came within the Council’s remit. This included areas such as money-laundering, 
and whistle-blowing as well as training requirements.  
 
This resource would be created through a new Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer role 
which would be funded through existing budgets.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the planned arrangements to ensure the adequate provision of services in 
the area of fraud be noted; and  
 
(2) it be noted that the role of Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer forms part of the 
staffing establishment approved by the Human Resources Committee on 31 
March 2015 and that the role will commence from 1 June 2015. 
 

AUD/66 AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15  
 
The Chairman presented the Audit Committee’s Annual Report for 2014/15 which 
was similar in format to previous annual reports.  
 
He invited comments on the content. It was clarified that the External Auditor, 
Grant Thornton, actually took over the external audit contract for the North West 
from September 2012 not October 2013. It was also clarified that the reference to 
‘Internal Audit struggled to provide resources in 2014/15’ related to extra non-
planned work (testing of housing benefit subsidy claims) taken on by Internal 
Audit. This had been an effective approach but Internal Audit lost a member of 
staff due to ill health so the work had then been tackled through a mixture of staff 
resources. This clarification of extra non-planned work, the issue and how it had 
been tackled needed to be added to the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Audit Committee’s Annual Report for 2014/15 be noted 
and the Chairman be authorised to submit the Report to Council subject to the 
following changes: 
 

 the start date for the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, taking over the 
external audit contract for the North West, be changed to September 2012; 
and 

 the reference to ‘Internal Audit struggled to provide resources in 2014/15’ 
be clarified with reference to this having been extra non-planned work, staff 
ill health and how this issue had been tackled through a mixture of staffing 
resource. 

 
AUD/67 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  

 
The Assistant Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer presented a brief 
topical update on significant financial issues. She explained that the main update 
was the development work in-hand to manage future much earlier close-down of 
accounts. This had been covered earlier in the meeting under the External 



43 
23.04.2015 Audit Committee 
 

 

Auditor’s update report (Minute AUD/63 above refers). In response to a query 
about capital investment required for the proposed redevelopment of the 
Westmoreland Shopping Centre car-park, this would need to be considered in due 
course as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan as a future long-term strategic 
project.  
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal report be noted.  
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.00 pm. 
 
 
 
 





 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE - EXTRACTS FROM COUNCIL CONSTITUTION - JUNE 2015 
 
 
Audit Committee Functions (page 43 of the Constitution) 

 

Committee Membership Functions Delegation of 
Functions 

4 Audit 
Committee 

 To review and provide independent 
assurance of the adequacy of the 
Council’s internal control environment and 
Risk Management arrangements 
 
To approve Internal Audit’s strategy and 
plans, and to receive reports arising from 
its work programme. 
 
To monitor the performance of Internal 
Audit and to regularly review its 
effectiveness. 
 
To receive annual plans and reports from 
External Audit. 
 
To oversee the Financial Reporting 
Process 
 
Duty to approve the authority’s statement 
of accounts 
 
To monitor the expenditure of funds 
transferred from the South Lakeland 
District Council Fund in Commemoration 
of the Wedding of His Royal Highness 
Prince Charles to Lady Diana Spencer to 
Leeds Children’s Holiday Camp 
Association (otherwise known as the 
Leeds Children’s Charity), Bendrigg Trust 
and Brathay Trust. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  

(pages 48-51 of the Constitution) 
 
1.  Statement of Purpose – The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide 

independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework 
and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the 
authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects 
the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to 
oversee the financial reporting process. 

2. Membership – The Committee shall comprise a membership of (7) members 
subject to the rules of political balance and will not comprise any member of 
the Executive.  The Committee will be a standalone committee of the Council 
appointed by Council annually. Changes can be made by Council during the 
course of the year.    

 
3. Quorum – The quorum for the Audit Committee will be 3. 
 

 All Audit Committee members will commit to receiving appropriate 
training and development necessary to fulfil their roles and will act in 
the interests of the Council and not on behalf of any political party, 
constituency, ward or interest group. 
 

 The Chairman of the Committee will present an Annual Report on the 
work of the Audit Committee to full Council.  

4. Audit Activity 

 

 To approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Charter, plan and 
performance. 
 

 To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the Head of 
Internal Audit to determine if there are any inappropriate scope or 
resource limitations. 

 

 To consider the Internal Auditor’s annual report and opinion, and a 
summary of internal audit activity (actual and planned) and the level of 
assurance it can give over the council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 

 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 
 

 To consider reports from internal audit on agreed recommendations 
not implemented within a reasonable timescale. 

 

 To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of 
the providers of internal audit services. 

 

 To review annually the effectiveness of internal audit. 
 

 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to 
ensure it gives value for money  

 

 To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor. 



 

 

 To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the 
Council’s External Auditor. 

 

 To ensure that there is effective liaison between Internal Audit and 
External Audit to make the best use of audit resources. 

 

 To commission work from internal and external audit. 
 

 To monitor the expenditure of funds transferred from the South 
Lakeland District Council Fund in Commemoration of the Wedding of 
His Royal Highness Prince Charles to Lady Diana Spencer to Leeds 
Children’s Holiday Camp Association (otherwise known as the Leeds 
Children’s Charity), Bendrigg Trust and Brathay Trust. 

5. Regulatory Framework 

 

 To maintain an overview of the Council’s constitution in respect of 
contract and financial procedural rules. 
 

 To consider the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money 
and review assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 

 

 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or a Director, 
or any Council body. 

 

 To monitor the effective development and operation of risk 
management and corporate governance in the Council. 

 

 To monitor the effectiveness of the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 

 To monitor Council policies on “Raising Concerns at Work” and the 
anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy and the council’s complaints 
process. 

 

 To oversee the production of the authority’s Annual Governance 
Statement and to recommend its adoption. 

 

 To consider the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and 
agreeing necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 

 

 To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other published 
standards and controls, including Equality and Diversity requirements. 

6. Accounts – To review the annual statement of accounts.  

 

 To consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed. 
 

 To approve the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 
 

 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with 
governance on issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 

 



 

 

 To consider whether there are concerns arising from the financial 
statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of 
the Council. 

7. Annual Audit Letter – To receive the External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter. 

8. Meetings 

 
Subject to there being sufficient business to transact, the Committee will meet 
at least four times a year. The External Auditor, Internal Auditor or Chief 
Finance Officer SLDC may request a meeting if they consider it necessary.  

 
The Committee shall be able to meet privately and separately with the 
External Auditor and Internal Auditor as required. 

9. Authority and Access 

 

 The Audit Committee has a right to request relevant information from 
Members/Officers and to seek their attendance at meetings. 

 

 The Audit Committee will not be able to transact the powers, functions 
and duties reserved to the Council, the Cabinet, Overview and 
Scrutiny and other regulatory committees. 

 

 The Audit Committee will have access to in-house legal and other 
professional advice. 

 
Any Member, Officer or member of the public, who has any concern covered 
by the terms of reference of the Audit Committee may raise the matter with 
the Chairman of the Committee who will obtain, if necessary, relevant advice 
from the Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer before taking any action 
with regard to the same. 
 

 



   

23/07/2015 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Sandip Mahajan √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against work programme Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √    

Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 
Helen Smith    √ 

Update of progress regarding Internal and 
External Audit recommendations & the Annual 
Governance  Action Plan 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

√ √ √ √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Sandip Mahajan   √  

Review of audit contracts 

(external audit will be dependent upon 
decision by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Ltd) 

Helen Smith √ (internal audit)    

External Audit 

2014/15 Annual Audit Letter Simon Hardman   √  



   

23/07/2015 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

2014/15 Grant Certification Report Simon Hardman    √ 

2015/16 Opinion Audit Plan Simon Hardman    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Simon Hardman    √ 

External Auditor Update Simon Hardman √ √ √ √ 

Internal Audit 

2014/15 Annual Internal Audit Report Gill Martin √    

2015/16 Progress and Performance Report 
(including Updates on high priority 
recommendations if required) 

Gill Martin √ √ √ √ 

2015/16 Individual Audit Reports Gill Martin  √ √ √ √ 

2015/16 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

Gill Martin    √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit 
Gill Martin /Helen 

Smith 
√    

Accounts 

Review 2014/15 Statement of Accounts 
including the International Auditing Standards 
compliance response 

Helen Smith √    



   

23/07/2015 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Progress regarding Final Accounts Audit 
Action Plan 

Helen Smith Incorporated into Internal and External Audit Recommendation Report 

2014/15 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Simon Hardman  √   

2014/15 Approve Statement of Accounts 
amended following Audit  (if needed) 
(including signature of letter of representation) 

Helen Smith  √   

Review Accounting Policies for 2015/16 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley    √  

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Appoint Panel to review Annual Governance 
Statement 

Sandip Mahajan    √ 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   

√ 

Contract & 
Finance 

Procedure 
Rules 

 



   

23/07/2015 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2015/16 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 23 July 2015 23 Sept  2015 3 Dec 2015 21 April 2016 

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith  
√ 

Policy 

√ 

Activity 
 

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey    √ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Corporate Risk Register Simon McVey  √   

Review Local Code of Governance   

(referral to Council) 
Helen Smith   √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith   √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

23 July 2015 

Risk Management Update 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Jonathan Brook - Innovation and 
Improvement Portfolio 

REPORT FROM: Simon McVey – Assistant Director, Policy and    
Performance 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The Audit Committee is updated with the Strategic Risk Register. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That Audit Committee notes the Strategic Risk Register in appendix 1 of 
this report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Risk Management is a vital organisational control and is a key part of the 
Council’s governance arrangements.  

3.2 The Strategic Risk Register contains all those risks above and below the line 
of risk tolerance.  

3.3 All risks above the line of tolerance have mitigations listed. These mitigations 
are designed to reduce the risks in terms of likelihood or impact or both.  

3.4 The aim of mitigations is to reduce a risk from the current position on the risk 
matrix to the target position.   

3.5 A risk should reach its target position by the target date. For a risk to be 
managed on schedule the mitigations must be implemented by their due 
dates. Not completing mitigations on time places a risk in exception.  

3.6 Risks are highlighted with exception status as part of quarterly performance 
reporting arrangements. A risk is only removed from the register (archived) if 
there is no longer any risk. Please see the Risk Register at Appendix 1. 

3.7 Audit Committee of 23 April 2015, Item AUD/55 requested to see the full 
register of risks to satisfy the Committee that strategic risks were being 
managed.  



 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 This report has been prepared by the Performance and Risk Officer based on 
quarter one updates to the register. Officers responsible for risk mitigations 
have been consulted to review the progress made in completing them. Risk 
owners have been consulted to review the current likelihood and impact of 
risks where they are positioned above the line of risk tolerance.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options – the Audit Committee must have assurance that risk 
management arrangements are effective. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Risk management arrangements underpin the achievement of all priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no financial or resource implications in updating Audit Committee 
on recent risk activity.  However, many of the risks identified relate to financial 
issues and are considered as part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Plan, budget preparation and monitoring process.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no human resource implications in updating Audit Committee on 
risk activity. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications in updating Audit Committee on recent risk 
activity. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Risk management arrangements underpin Social, Economic and 
Environmental objectives. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Risk management underpins equality and diversity objectives.  

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That actions to mitigate 
the strategic risks are 
not met 

Risks impact on 
services 

Risk mitigations are 
monitored as part of 
quarterly performance 
monitoring 
arrangements. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Strategic Risks Update – Quarter 1 2015/16 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

Risk Management 
Update - Audit 
Committee 23 April 
2015 (Minute AUD/55) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.as
px?CId=135&MId=3528&Ver=4  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

02/07/15 08/07/15 07/07/15 08/07/15 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 

Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/07/15 n/a 07/07/15 07/07/15 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

07/07/15 n/a n/a   

 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3528&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3528&Ver=4




Appendix 1 
 

1 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 

Strategic Risks Register - Quarter One 2015/16 
 

How to understand this report: 
This register contains the full and complete list of the Council’s Strategic Risks. 
Risks are prioritised on the risk matrix by considering the degree of their likelihood and impact: 

 Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are unacceptable and require quarterly mitigation and management. Mitigating activity and 
quarterly progress updates are listed for these risks. Mitigations should be implemented by their due dates for the risks to be reduced 
effectively. 

 The Target risk matrix shows the position that risks should reach following mitigation and management. 

 Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. 

 All strategic risks have strategic level risk owners. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

    

Low 

    

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Priority risks which 
require mitigating 
controls and 

quarterly review 

Low priority risks 
which require annual 

review 



Appendix 1 
 

2 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 

 
 

  

Risk 1 Income targets are not met due to ineffective debt 
collection 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Annual – end 
of March 

  

Description  This risk is relevant to the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Not applicable 
risk is below 
tolerance 

  
Mitigations Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. 

Mitigations are not applicable as this risk is below tolerance. 

  
Progress 
update 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low.  

  Risk Owner Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151) 



Appendix 1 
 

3 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 
 

  

Risk 2 Contracts do not deliver the standards of performance 
required within the contract fee agreed. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Annual – end 
of March 

  

Description  This risk is relevant to the Finance Portfolio Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Not applicable 
risk is below 
tolerance 

  
Mitigations Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. 

Mitigations are not applicable as this risk is below tolerance. 

  
Progress 
update 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. Risk ownership is allocated to each 
Assistant Director. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Directors 
 



Appendix 1 
 

4 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 
 

Risk 3 Business Continuity 
Loss of South Lakeland House and Server room prevents access to 
systems and data. 
 
Loss of telecommunications due to external or internal infrastructure 
failure. 

Risk Current 
Position 

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

   x 

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next Review 
Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

Loss of South Lakeland House and Server room prevents access to 
systems and data: 
Loss of main office and servers room due to major fire prevents access 
to systems and data. Likelihood is low due to fire prevention 
measures however impact is critical as affects all services at once, 
some at critical times. The remote access server that allows people to 
access systems and data from remote locations is based in South 
Lakeland House and if destroyed would severely limit services. A fire 
could also destroy most laptops. The delay in getting new laptops 
supplied with an SLDC configuration would again severely limit 
services.  
 
Loss of telecommunications due to external or internal infrastructure 
failure: 
Likelihood is at least significant as telephony issues occur several 
times each year. Impact is serious as affects all services for up to a day 
and inevitably at critical times. A current work around in extremis 
allows public calls to be redirected to Eden and then to Canal Head 
Depot, however staff would have to use mobiles to make external 
calls. The Emergency Control Room (SLDC Contact Centre) has 
independent phone lines and WIFI internet access and mobile phone 
reception in place.  

Risk Target 
Position 

 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 x   

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/16 



Appendix 1 
 

5 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

Mitigations Loss of South Lakeland House and Server room prevents access to systems and data: 
1. On 01/04/15 there will be increased bandwidth for remote access by 01/04/15. Completed. 
2. By 31/05/15 staff at home or alternative offices will be able to link via broadband to a remote access server at SLDC or EDC or virtually to 

access data backed up at Sunderland by 31/05/15. Due date reviewed to 30/09/15 during Q1 2015/16 – see update below.. 
3. Over 100 staff in SLDC currently have laptops. Investigate feasibility of staff taking  laptops home during business critical periods to allow 

immediate home working in the event of a fire – service managers responsibility by 31/06/16. 
4. At Canal Head investigate putting in place ‘Fortigate’ WIFI to allow access to Eden DC’s remote access server by 31/03/16. 

Explore what bandwidth is available at Canal Head as an alternative office site by 31/03/16. 

Loss of telecommunications due to external or internal infrastructure failure: 
Put in place internet based telephony (‘SIP trunks’) and Lync at Sunderland to remove the dependence on physical phone lines into SLDC and EDC 
by 31/03/16. 
 

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4: Risk is updated following approval of two escalated risks on 12/03/15. The risk is now above appetite and has mitigations in place. On 
09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Critical and Likelihood Low. 
Q1 2015/16: 
New Gas fire suppression system, temperature monitor and alerting sensor installed in server room.  
Bandwidth for remote and homeworking has been significantly increased.  
ICT is currently testing a solution that will allow resilient remote access through either Eden or South Lakeland.  This has taken  
Longer than expected due to the technical complexity of the network infrastructure.  Solution will be in place for key staff by 30/09/2015. 
Eden and South Lakeland recently received Substantial Assurance for the Backup and DR solution in operation across both Councils.   
Risk reviewed as having Impact Critical and Likelihood Low. 
 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Policy and Performance (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio) 
 
 



Appendix 1 
 

6 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

  

Risk 4 Affordable housing targets are not met. Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Annual – end 
of March 

  

Description   Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Not applicable 
risk is below 
tolerance 

  
Mitigations Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. Mitigations are not applicable as 

risk is below tolerance 

  
Progress 
update 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Very Low. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Strategic Planning (This risk is relevant to the Strategic Growth Portfolio) 
 



Appendix 1 
 

7 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 
 

  

Risk 5 Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Annual – end 
of March 

  

Description  This risk is relevant to the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Not applicable 
risk is below 
tolerance 

  
Mitigations Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are acceptable and require an annual review in quarter four. 

Mitigations are not applicable as this risk is below tolerance. 

  
Progress 
update 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Low. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151) 



Appendix 1 
 

8 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 
 
 

  

Risk 6 Medium Term Financial Planning 
 
Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are unacceptable 
and require quarterly mitigation and management. Mitigating activity 
and quarterly progress updates are listed for these risks. Mitigations 
should be implemented by their due dates for the risks to be reduced 
effectively. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Quarterly 

  

Description Medium Term Financial Planning 
Current and future years proposed budget reductions (expenditure and 
income) are not achieved.  
Future year’s budget reductions (expenditure or income) are not 
identified.  
Significant existing income sources are not protected or effectively 
managed.  
Income from Central Government is reduced above the current 
assumptions.  
NDR income assumptions are not achieved.  
 
This risk is relevant to the Finance Portfolio 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Annual – end 
of March 

  
Mitigations MTFP assumptions are reviewed, updated, and reported on a quarterly basis and options to resolve any issues are provided to the Cabinet each 

quarter. Progress is on track. 

  
Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: Mitigations are on track. Risk remains positioned as having serious impact and significant likelihood. 
Q1 2015/16: Risk Owner has reviewed this risk as having serious impact and significant likelihood. Mitigations are on track. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151) 
 
 



Appendix 1 
 

9 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

  

Risk 7 Information Management 
 
Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are unacceptable 
and require quarterly mitigation and management. Mitigating activity 
and quarterly progress updates are listed for these risks. Mitigations 
should be implemented by their due dates for the risks to be reduced 
effectively. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Quarterly 

  

Description   Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31-Mar-2016 

  Mitigations 1/ Data Protection and Information Security Policies reviewed by 31-Mar-2015. Completed. 
2/ Information governance awareness as the foundation for good information governance by 31-Mar-2015. 
3/ Review of ongoing FOI, DPA and EIR processes by 31-Mar-2015. 

  

  

  

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. Information Governance Project 
mitigations are on track. 
Q1 2015/16: Policies are reviewed and report will go to Senior Management Team on 9th July and Cabinet on 28th August. Internal Audit of project 
is complete and received reasonable assessment. Actions are agreed for implementation by July 2015. Policy and Partnerships has assessed the 
risk as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Policy and Performance (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio)  
 
 



Appendix 1 
 

10 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

  

Risk 8 The infrastructure required to deliver the Council Plan 
priorities is not provided. 
 
Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are unacceptable 
and require quarterly mitigation and management. Mitigating activity 
and quarterly progress updates are listed for these risks. Mitigations 
should be implemented by their due dates for the risks to be reduced 
effectively. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Quarterly 

  

Description   Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/16 

  

Mitigations 1. Implementation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to provide funding stream for infrastructure delivery. CIL commenced 1st June 
2015 – completed. 

2. Annual update of Infrastructure Delivery Plan by 01/01/16. 
3. Development of protocols for CIL Governance by 01/01/16. 
4. CIL Review proposed as part of Development Management Policies process by 31/03/17. 

  

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium as there is still uncertainty about 
infrastructure. Mitigations to be reviewed by 01/05/15. 
Q1 2015/16: Mitigations now recorded above. Risk is reviewed as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. 

  Risk Owner Assistant Director Strategic Planning (This risk is relevant to the Strategic Growth Portfolio) 
 
 



Appendix 1 
 

11 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

  

Risk 9 Essential strategic partnerships required to deliver the 
Council Plan do not operate effectively. 
 
Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are unacceptable 
and require quarterly mitigation and management. Mitigating activity 
and quarterly progress updates are listed for these risks. Mitigations 
should be implemented by their due dates for the risks to be reduced 
effectively. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Review Date Annual 

  

Description   Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31-Jul-2015 

  Mitigations 1/ Ensure appropriate robust agreements are in place in relation to strategic partnerships by 31/03/15. Completed. 
2/ Identify opportunities and resource implications supported through Localism agenda by 31/03/15. Completed. 
3/ Maintain coordinated influence with One South Lakeland, Cumbria LEP and Cumbria Health & Wellbeing Board by 31/03/15. 
4/ Monitor resource, cost and reputational impact with established strategic partnerships by 31/03/15.  

  

  

  

  

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reprioritised risk as Serious Impact and Medium Likelihood. 
Q1 2015/16: Following appraisal by Policy and Partnerships it has been decided that mitigations 1 & 2 are met. Robust arrangements are in place 
across strategic partnerships and there are no cost implications to the council in maintaining partnerships. There is a Health and Wellbeing 
structure in place and a Public Health Alliance. Policy and Partnerships confirm that the risk has reached the target position of Likelihood Low and 
Impact Marginal. 

  Risk Owner Chief Executive (This risk is relevant to the Promoting South Lakeland and Finance Portfolio) 



Appendix 1 
 

12 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 

Risk 10 
 

Procurement compliance with new legislation Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next Review 
Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

New procurement regulations are approaching soon. Changes to SLDC 
processes will be required. This will be a significant piece of work at a 
time when workloads will be increasing significantly.  
 
This risk is relevant to the Finance Portfolio 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/16 

Mitigations 1. Implement training programme for relevant officers by 31/03/16. 
2. Implement procurement process changes by 31/03/16. 
3. Commission external support to assist with extra workloads 

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: Mitigations agreed and Target date set by Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151). On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team 
amended the risk name and reviewed this risk as having Serious Impact and Significant Likelihood. 
Q1 2015/16: Risk Owner has reviewed this risk as having Serious Impact and Significant Likelihood. Mitigations are on track. 

Risk Owner Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151) 



Appendix 1 
 

13 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 
 
 
 

Risk 11 
 

Planning for the future of the major contracts and 
workload implications for support services 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

   x  

    

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next 
Review Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

Services need to be able to accurately predict the level of work 
required in support of letting several major contracts.  Work will need 
to start in 2015 to be on schedule.  
 
The current situation is as follows: 
 
Low workload uncertainty:   Property Management contract for 2016. 
High workload uncertainty:  Waste Collection / Street Cleaning 
Contract for 2017 and Grounds Maintenance Contract for 2017. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/15 

Mitigations  Future Waste Collection and Street Cleansing service delivery options are presented to Committee by 1/09/15. 

 Future Grounds Maintenance service delivery options are presented to Committee by 01/09/15. 

 Human Resources, Finance and Procurement are included in planning by 01/10/15. 

 Commission external support where required. 
Consideration be given to future renewal dates of major contracts being staggered in order to ease workloads. 

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 

Q4 2014/15: Risk mitigations agreed by key stakeholders and risk owner. On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team amended the risk name and 
reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood High. 
Q1 2015/16: Risk mitigations are on track. Risk reviewed as having Impact Serious and Likelihood High. 

Risk Owner Director of Policy and Resources -Monitoring Officer. (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio)  

 



Appendix 1 
 

14 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

Risk 12 
 

Health and Safety management of contracts Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

   x 

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next 
Review Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

Health and safety management arrangements require a review for 
officer led contracts. A review may indicate new requirements and 
resources. Expert legal advice is required in order to achieve 
compliance and reasonable cost. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/15 

Mitigations 1. Contracts Management Health and Safety training is provided.   Completed 09/04/15. 
2. Officer leads carry out onsite monitoring which is proportionate to the risk.   Ongoing requirement. 
3. Officer led contracts are subject to spot checks/audits for onsite monitoring arrangements.   By 31/12/15 and ongoing requirement. 

 

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Critical and Likelihood Medium.  
Q1 2015/16: Mitigations 2 and 3 have been developed following the Contract Management training on 09/04/15. Risk remains at Impact Critical 
and Likelihood Medium.  Audits/spot checks will inform future reviews of likelihood and impact. 

Risk Owner Chief Executive (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio) 

 
 



Appendix 1 
 

15 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 

Risk 13 
 

Impact of new projects and initiatives Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next Review 
Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

New projects and initiatives risk taking the resources required by 
other projects and initiatives in the programme.  

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date 31/03/16 

Mitigations  Potential new projects and initiatives are subject to a pre-assessment which measures their priority - by 01/06/16. 

Progress 
update 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: on 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. Risk Mitigations are in 
development. 
Q1 2015/16: Risk reviewed as having Impact Serious and Likelihood Medium. Mitigations are on track. 

Risk Owner Director of People and Places (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio)  

 
 
 



Appendix 1 
 

16 
Version: 1 
Date: 02/07/2015 
Quarter: 1, 2015/16 

 

Risk 14 
 

Impact of efficiencies 
 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 x   

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Next Review 
Date 

Annual – end 
of March 

Description of 
risk 

New efficiencies: The changes brought about by one service can have 
a negative impact on the efficiency and running of another service – 
especially if proposals are not consulted on until to late in the process. 
These impacts can increase the cost of running other services.  

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

Target Date Not applicable 
risk is below 
tolerance 

Mitigations This risk is managed via the Service Planning and Budgeting processes. 
Further mitigations are not applicable as risk is below tolerance. 

Progress 
update 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2014/15: Risk separated from risk 013/14’ impact of new projects’. Reviewed by Senior managers as Marginal Impact and Medium Likelihood. 
On 09/04/15 Senior Management Team reviewed this risk as Impact Marginal and Likelihood Medium. 

Risk Owner Director of People and Places (This risk is relevant to the Innovation and Improvement Portfolio)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 23 July 2015 

Statement of Accounts including the  

Annual Governance Statement 2014/15 

PORTFOLIO: All 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources & 
Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to allow the Audit Committee to scrutinise and note 
the Statement of Accounts, including the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit Committee: 

(1) Consider and note the unaudited Statement of Accounts, 
including the Annual Governance Statement for 2014/15. 

 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1  The Statement of Accounts for 2014/15 is included in the agenda pack. Its 
production and consideration is an important element of the financial 
stewardship of the Council. Its format and content are largely governed by 
statutory best practice, which is defined in the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s “Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2014/15”.  

 
3.2 The Statement contains a number of different elements referenced A to H in 

the contents page, further details on the purpose of each section are given 
below.  

  
3.3 The Explanatory Foreword in section A provides an analysis of the financial 

performance for the year and the main movements in the Council’s net worth. 
This summarises the key elements of the main out-turn report being 
presented to Cabinet 22 July 2015 and Council 28 July 2015. 
 

3.4 Section B details the accounting policies used in the preparation of the 



Statement of Accounts. These were adopted by Audit Committee on 23 April 
2015. The policy on depreciation has been enhanced following issues that 
arose during preparation of the accounts. Leisure assets had a material 
change in value that meant using the opening value as the basis for the 
depreciation charge was not judged to give a fair presentation in the accounts; 
the additional policy wording has been included in consultation with External 
Audit. 
 

3.5 Section C presents the core financial statements, namely the Movement in 
Reserves Statement (MIRS), the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES), the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement. These 
are cross referenced to the Notes to the Accounts in Section D which give 
more detail behind the figures presented in the core statements. The 
unaudited Balance sheet was signed by the S151 Officer on 29 June 2015.  

 
3.6 Section E details the Collection Fund information including the income and 

expenditure statement and notes. 
 
3.7  The Assistant Director (Resources) and S151 Officer approved the accounts 

by signing the Statement of Responsibilities on 29 June 2015, the 
Accounts and Audit (England) regulations 2011 require that the unaudited 
Accounts be signed by 30 June. This is shown in section F. 

 
3.8  The Annual Governance Statement (AGS, section G) is also included within 

the Statement of Accounts. This provides an important context to the financial 
information as it sets out how internal control has been exercised during the 
accounting period. This was considered and reviewed at the Audit Panel 
meeting 4 June 2015. Members of the Panel were asked to challenge the 
details provided in the draft AGS and to make recommendations on those 
matters which the Panel felt were significant risks. The Panel concluded there 
were no significant governance issues to be addressed. The AGS was also 
reviewed and signed off by the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council 
prior to its inclusion in the unaudited statement of accounts. 

 
3.9  The audit of the draft statements is underway although the majority of the 

external auditor’s work is scheduled for August 2015. It is anticipated that the 
final statements will be brought back to this committee for authorisation on 23 
September 2015. The audit certificate will be included at section H once the 
external auditors have completed the relevant assurance work and issued the 
certificate. It is anticipated that this will be within the statutory deadline of 30 
September 2015. 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Other Local Authorities, South Lakes Housing, CIPFA, Grant Thornton UK 
LLP (appointed external auditors), the Audit Committee, Audit Panel, Senior 
Officers and Members have been consulted during preparation of the Final 
Accounts and AGS. 
 
 



5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options are applicable. 

 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The Statement of Accounts and AGS form a key part of the corporate 
governance in place to support all Council priorities. 

 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The out-turn 
report being presented to Cabinet 22 July 2015 and Council 28 July 2015 
explains the underlying impact on the Council’s usable reserves and financial 
performance for 2014/15.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no direct human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

 There are no direct legal implications of this report. Signing of the accounts by 
the S151 officer and submission to external audit by the deadline of 30 June 
2015 met the Council’s statutory reporting obligations. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 No social, economic and environmental issues. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 No equality and diversity issues. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Audit Committee does 
not consider contents 
of Statements 

Financial Management 
decisions would be 
impaired/ controls 
weakened 

Audit Committee to 
consider statements and 
make comments as 
appropriate 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Pete Notley, Chief Accountant, 01539 793157 p.notley@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Statement of Accounts including AGS 2014/15 

 

mailto:p.notley@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

None.  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

25/6/2015 n/a n/a 25/6/2015 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/7/2014 n/a 25/6/2015 25/6/2015 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 



page 1

Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

South Lakeland District Council 

2014 / 2015

Statement of Accounts



 



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Statement of Accounts 2014/15 
 

 

 CONTENTS 

     Page 
A Explanatory Foreword to the Statements 2-10 
   

B Statement of Accounting Policies 11-27 
   

C Core Financial Statements   Movement in Reserves Statement 28-29 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 30 

 Balance Sheet 31 

 Cash Flow Statement 32 

   
D Notes to the Accounting Statements 33-89 
   

   
E The Collection Fund  
  Income and Expenditure Account 90 

 Notes to the Collection Fund 91-93 

  
F Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 94 
   

G Annual Governance Statement 95-106 
   

H Audit Certificate N/A for unaudited statements 

 

1



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

Introduction 
 
The Statement of Accounts presents the overall financial performance of South 
Lakeland District Council for the year ended 31/3/2015, and incorporates all the 
financial statements and disclosure notes required by statute.  
 
It has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15. This specifies the accounting 
principles and practices required to prepare the Statement of Accounts which 
“presents a true and fair view” of the financial position and transactions of the 
Council. There have been no material new or changed requirements for the 2014/15 
Accounts. 
 
Core Financial Statements 
 
The key statements setting out the Council’s financial position and performance can 
be found in Section C, the Core Financial Statements. 
 
 All the statements have equal prominence, and the sequence shows: 
  The changes in the financial resources over the year  

(Movement in Reserves Statement)  The gains and losses that contributed to these changes in resources  
(Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)  How the resources available are complemented by assets and liabilities  
(Balance Sheet)  How the movement in resources has been reflected in cash flows  
(Cash Flow Statement) 

 
A brief explanation of the purpose of each of the statements is given below: 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

The statement shows the movement in the year in the different reserves held by the 
Council analysed into “usable reserves” that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation, and “unusable reserves”. It reflects the economic cost of 
providing services shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, along with statutory amounts relating to Council Tax and other 
discretionary movements. 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to 
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in 
accordance with Government regulations and this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

Balance Sheet 

This statement is fundamental to the understanding of the Council’s financial 
position as at the 31/3/2015.  It shows the value of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council at the Balance Sheet date with the net assets of the 

2



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

Council being matched by its reserves. The Balance Sheet also reflects the position 
in the movement of reserves during the year. 

 

Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 
Council during the reporting period. It shows how the Council generates and uses 
cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and 
financing activities. The amount of net cash flows from operating activities is a key 
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by taxation, 
grant and by service recipients. Investing activities represent the extent to which 
cash outflows have been made for resources that are intended to contribute to 
future service delivery. Cash flows from financing activities are useful in predicting 
claims on future cash flows by providers of borrowing to the Council. 

Notes to the Accounts 

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information to assist the 
reader in understanding and interpreting the Core Statements. These are essential 
reading in understanding the detail behind the figures. 

Collection Fund 

This shows the transactions of the Council as a charging authority in respect of 
Council Tax and Business Rates income and its distribution to precepting authorities  
for Council Tax (SLDC, Cumbria County Council and Cumbria Police and Crime 
Commissioner) and organisations due a share the retained Business Rates (SLDC, 
Cumbria County Council and Central Government). 
 

Other Statements 

Accounting Policies 

The Council selects policies on which it prepares its Financial Statements and this 
statement explains those policies. 

Statement of Responsibilities 

This shows the responsibilities of the Council and the Assistant Director (Resources) 
in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 

Annual Governance Statement 

The Annual Governance Statement shows how the Council meets the requirements 
to review the effectiveness of its system of internal control, conduct its business 
within the law and to proper standards, and ensure public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  

Independent Auditors Report 

The independent auditor appointed by the Audit Commission to review the accounts 
of the Council prepares a report which is included with the final audited Financial 
Statements.  

 
 
 
 
 

3



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

 
Review of the 2014/15 Financial Year 
 
Introduction 
 
The tables below show what has happened within the overall General Fund 
 
2014/15 Revenue Income and Expenditure 

 
The table below summarises where the Council receives its financial resources 
from. 
 
 

 
Funding Percentage 

Source £000 % 

   

Net Fees and Charges, Reserves & other income (8,444) 18.7 

Service Grants and contributions (23,368) 51.7 

Revenue Support and other general Grant (2,489) 5.5 

Council Tax (excluding parish precepts) (7,778) 17.2 

NNDR including Section 31 grant (3,124) 6.9 

TOTAL (45,203) 100.0 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Net Fees and 

Charges, Reserves 

& other income

-18.7%

Service Grants and 

contributions

-51.7%

Revenue Support 

and other general 

Grant

-5.5%

Council Tax 

(excluding parish 

precepts)

-17.2%

NNDR including 

Section 31 grant

-6.9%

Where resources come from 

4



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

The table below summarises where the financial resources are used in terms of the 
standard service headings specified by the Chartered Institute of Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 

 

 Spending Percentage 

Service £000 % 

   

Central Services 2,573 5.7 

Cultural & Related Services 5,056 11.2 

Environmental & Regulatory Services 7,830 17.3 

Planning Services 3,250 7.2 

Highways, Roads & Transport Services 2,080 4.6 

Other Housing Services 22,000 48.7 

Corporate & Democratic Core 2,228 4.9 

Non Distributed Costs 186 0.4 

TOTAL NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 45,203 100.0 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Central Services

5.7%

Cultural & Related 

Services

11.2%

Environmental & 

Regulatory 

Services

17.3%
Planning Services

7.2%

Highways, Roads 

& Transport 

Services

4.6%

Other Housing 

Services

48.7%

Corporate & 

Democratic Core

4.9%

Non Distributed 

Costs

0.4%

Where the resources go

5



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

The table below summarises where financial resources are used in terms of the 
major subjective headings. 
 

 

 
Spending Percentage 

Source £000 % 

   

Employees 11,917 26.4 

Housing Benefits 19,166 42.4 

Capital charges 3,003 6.6 

Other expenditure 11,117 24.6 

TOTAL 45,203 100.0 

 
 

 

 

 
2014/15 Actual Revenue Income and Expenditure Compared to Budgets  
 

The General Fund Service out-turn against budget for 2014/15 shows 
anunderspend of £2.2m against a gross revenue budget of circa £48m which 
is equal to 5%.  

After carry forwards totalling c £1m, the variance reduces to £1.2m (2.5% of 
the gross revenue budget). The variances which remain will be reviewed as 
part of the savings work programme and updated Medium Term Financial 
Plan. Full details are provided in the out-turn report presented to Cabinet 22 
July 2015 and Council 28 July 2015. 

Council, on 28 February 2014 approved the General Fund working balance 
should be set at £1.5m and that any surplus above this level should be 
transferred to the General Reserve.  Accordingly the net underspend after all 
other transfers to reserves and corporate items, totalling £504k, has been 
transferred from General Fund working balance to the General Reserve. 

 
 

Employees

26%

Housing 

Benefits

42%

Capital charges

7%

Other 

expenditure

25%

What resources are spent on

6



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

A full summary of the revenue variances is shown in the following table: 
 
Summary General Fund Variances 

  

 
2014/15 Actual Capital expenditure against budget 
 

There was an underspend on the capital programme of £2,237k, most of 
which was approved to be carried-forward by Council on 20 May 2015.  The 
largest variance relates to the purchase of a number of vehicles planned for 
2014/15 but which were not ready for delivery until 2015/16.  
 
Full details of the out-turn position are included in the out-turn report 
presented to Cabinet 22 July 2015 and Council 28 July 2015, the overall 
position is summarised below: 

  

Capital Expenditure 2014/15 

 

 

This shows that the underlying variance after carry forwards was £95k. Of this 
a further £27k is to be carried forward with the balance to go back into 
reserves. 
 
As part of the closedown process a detailed analysis of capital and revenue 
expenditure is completed to ensure the correct accounting treatment has been 
applied. A small number of re-classifications have been made, the majority of 
these relate to expenditure which was budgeted as revenue expenditure but 
has been transferred to capital to reflect correct accounting treatment. These 

Description

£000 £000

Carry-forward requests (969)

Other sevice variances (1,235)

Total service variances (2,204)

Increased interest receipts (35)

Decreased interest payments (138)

Decreased MRP (67)

Increased income from Non Domestic Rates (209)

Increased income from Non Domestic Rates Pool (362)

Other net increase in contributions to reserves 2,522 

Other adjustments (11)

Total variations (504)

Variance

£000

Revised Capital Programme 5,990 

Actual Expenditure 3,752 

Net Underspend before Carry Forwards (2,238)

Approved Carry Forward 2,143 

Variance after Approved Carry Forwards (95)

7



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

include a number of asset enhancements coded to repairs and maintenance 
expenditure and the Locally Important Projects grants, which were judged to 
be capital in nature.  Expenditure relating to Rydal Road car park bridge has 
been moved from capital to revenue as the works to date did not meet the 
criteria to treat them as capital. Budgets have been adjusted in both the 
revenue and capital expenditure to reflect these movements; these are mainly 
presentational changes with no underlying impact on the General Fund. 
 
Areas of Capital Spending 
 
The capital expenditure on the Council’s own assets for 2014/15 is summarised 
below: 
 

£000 

Vehicles 599 

Waste and Recycling bins and boxes 100 

Castle Dairy Roof 109 

Kendal Leisure Centre 661 

Ferry Nab Marina 226 

IT equipment and software 183 

Play areas 58 

Other (under £50,000) 227 

Total 2,163 

 
 
The Council also uses capital resources through the capital programme on assets 
belonging to other organisations or individuals. This is treated as Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS), the amounts for 2014/15 
were as follows: 

£000 

Affordable housing grants 376 

Site Assembly for affordable housing 410 

Disabled Facilities Grants 484 

Windermere Steam Boat museum 200 

Locally Important Projects 80 

Other (under £50,000) 39 

Total 1,589 

 
Capital Funding 
 
Funding of the Capital Programme comes from various sources and is managed 
within the Council’s overall Treasury Management framework.  The actual position for 
2014/15 was as follows: 

£000 % 

Capital Receipts (1,095) 29.2% 

Grants and Contributions (686) 18.3% 

Revenue contributions (621) 16.6% 

Prudential borrowing (1,350) 36.0% 

Total to support capital  (3,752) 100% 

 

8



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

Changes to the Balance Sheet 
 
Overall the Balance Sheet shows an increase in the net worth of the Council of 
£5.7m.  The major movements from 31 March 2014 to 31 March 2015 are described 
below. 
 

Pension Fund 
 
The Council provides pensions to its staff through the Cumbria County Pension 
Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  The scheme is currently a 
defined benefit scheme with benefits linked to the final salary of members at 
retirement.  The liabilities of the fund at the valuation date is equal to the present 
value of the future benefit payments.  The main assumptions in valuing the liabilities 
are: 

 
 the interest rate it is assumed can be achieved on the investment of the assets; 
 the rate at which salaries will increase in future because pensions are based on 

salaries at retirement, death or leaving; 
 future price inflation because this affects both salary and pension increases; 
 the probability that pensions will be paid and under what circumstances (death, 

voluntary early retirement, ill-health); and 
 how long pensions are likely to be in payment for. 

 
A full revaluation of the scheme is performed every three years although annual 
reviews are performed by the actuary to provide the up to date figures presented on 
the balance sheet (ie the pension liability and the matching pension reserve).  
 
The net pensions liability has increased by £7.6m, this has been adjusted down for a 
£1.9m pre-payment for the lump sums payable to the fund for 2015/16 and 2016/17. 
This leaves the liability in the top half of the balance sheet at £32.4m whereas the 
pension reserve stands at the full £34.3m. A review of note 40 shows that this 
balance is quite volatile year on year however statutory restrictions are in place that 
mean only the amounts payable in year (ie the employers’ pension contributions as 
notified by Cumbria County Pension Fund, part of the LGPS) are charged against the 
General Fund balance. Over the longer term, the fund administrators need to ensure 
the contributions into the fund (ie employers and employees contributions) will be 
sufficient to meet the liabilities (ie payments) which may result in increased 
contribution rates in future.  

 
Current investments, creditors and debtors 

 
There has been a reduction in short term investments of £6.5m. This is mainly due to 
the decision to end the use of Investec as fund manager for the Council’s core 
investments. As a result of this, some of the instruments now used by Council fall into 
either cash and cash equivalents (increased by £4.6m) or long term investments 
(increased by £3m). The net cash and investment position is an increase of £1.1m 
 
Short term debtors have remained similar to their 2013/14 value whilst creditors have 
increased by £1.1m, which can be seen as the other side of the increase in cash and 
investment balances. 

 
 
 

9



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD (A) 
 

Non current assets 
 

Non current assets have increased in year by £14.4m. £3m of this relates to 
reclassification of investments from current to non current (a UK Gilt to mature 
September 2017). The remainder is mainly due to net revaluations upwards on non-
current assets of £10.9m (including investment properties), depreciation, amortisation 
and impairment of £1.5m and capital expenditure of £2.2m. 

 
Significant Provisions 

 
Amounts set aside for impairment of bad debts are maintained at prudent levels, 
adjusted for local knowledge.  The total amount at 31 March 2015 was £1.75m, an 
increase of £0.3m from 31 March 2014. The increase mainly relates to Housing 
Benefit overpayments of £200k. There was also a further £50k set aside to cover 
potential impairment of sundry debts relating to Lake Encroachments. 

 
In addition, a specific provision has been set aside for business rates appeals, the 
Council’s share of which is £851k. Under the new Retained Business rates scheme, 
successful appeals will directly impact on the Council’s income. The provision is 
based on the estimated cost of currently lodged appeals. This has increased by 
£135k in the year, due in part to Central Government imposing a deadline for 
backdating appeals. This prompted a high volume of appeals being submitted. 

 
As part of the housing transfer a number of significant guarantees and warranties 
were given which are treated as contingent liabilities, detailed in note 41. 
 
 
Collection Fund Performance 

 
The Collection fund includes a surplus/deficit for both Council Tax and Retained 
Business Rates. The Council Tax account made a surplus of £403k, bringing the 
cumulative surplus up to £333k. The Business Rates account however, made a 
deficit of £392k (including payments out for shares of prior year estimated surplus) 
bringing the cumulative deficit to £1.615m. This is largely due to the provision for 
appeals charged against the account to date. The deficits are shared between the 
precepting authorities and will be taken into account when setting budgets for 
2016/17 with SLDC’s share of the Business Rates deficit being £646k (40% of 
£1.615m). The impact of this on the General Fund is deferred under statute and is 
broadly matched by amounts set aside in the NDR surplus reserve which totalled 
£699k.   
 
For 2014/15 a pooling arrangement with other Cumbrian authorities was in place. 
This arrangement should help the pool to avoid payment of levy which may otherwise 
be incurred. This had a positive impact on the level of retained business rates with 
£290k being set aside into the NDR pool reserve to support economic development 
in the District.  

Council Tax 
 

The Council froze the 2014/15 Council Tax for the fifth consecutive year.  This was 
achieved by maximising efficiency savings and setting income generation at realistic 
levels with no significant impact on front line services. 

10



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this section is to explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts of South Lakeland District 
Council. Where individual transactions and other events are not covered by these policies 
they are accounted for in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice identified below. 
 
The accounting policies are the main principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
that specify how these transactions and other events are reflected in the financial 
statements of the Council.   
 
The accounts follow the appropriate accounting standards as required by the CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code 
of Practice). The Code constitutes a “proper accounting practice” under the terms of 
Section 21 (2) of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Code is based on approved 
international accounting standards, except where these conflict with specific accounting or 
legislative requirements, so that the Council’s accounts present a true and fair view of the 
financial position and transactions of the authority.  
 
The basic accounting convention adopted is historic cost, modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of tangible non-current assets and financial assets. 
 
The Accounting Policies that follow are presented in an order that, as far as possible, 
corresponds with the layout of the main statements. A full index of Policies follows. 
 
 
GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
Policy 1  Fundamental Accounting Concepts 
Policy 2  Estimation and Prior Year Errors 
Policy 3  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Policy 4  VAT 
 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
Policy 5 Revenue Grants and Contributions  
Policy 6 Employee Benefits 
Policy 7 Costs of Support Services 
Policy 8 External Interest 
Policy 9 Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
  Statement for the Use of Non-current Assets 
Policy 10 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
 
BALANCE SHEET 
Policy 11  Definition of Capital Expenditure 
Policy 12  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Policy 13 Heritage Assets 
Policy 14 Investment Properties 
Policy 15 Intangible Assets 
Policy 16  Non-Current Asset Disposal 

11



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

Policy 17  Leases 
Policy 18  Investments 
Policy 19  Inventory 
Policy 20  Bad Debts 
Policy 21 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Policy 22 Capital Grants and Contributions 
Policy 23 Provisions 
Policy 24  Reserves 
Policy 25 Financial Assets 
Policy 26  Financial Liabilities 
Policy 27 Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
OTHER 
Policy 28 Contingent Liabilities 
Policy 29 Contingent Assets 
 

 

1. FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS 
 
a) Underlying Assumptions 
 
Accruals 
The financial statements, other than the cash flow information, are prepared on an accruals 
basis.  This means that expenditure and income are recognised in the accounts in the 
period in which they are incurred or earned, not as money is paid or received.  
 
Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Council will 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. 
 
b) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Information 
 
Understandability 
These accounts are based on accounting concepts, treatments and terminology, which 
require reasonable knowledge of accounting and local government.  However, all 
reasonable efforts have been made to use plain language and where technical terms are 
unavoidable they have been explained as they occur. 
 
Relevance 
The accounts have been prepared with the objective of providing information about the 
Council’s financial performance and position that is useful to the reader in assessing the 
stewardship of public funds and for making future economic decisions. 
 
Materiality 
The Code permits the concept of materiality to be used in the preparation of the accounts. 
Omissions or mis-statements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, 
influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial 
statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or mis-statement 

12



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a combination 
of both, could be the determining factor.  

 

Faithful Representation 
The financial information is complete, neutral and free from error in that:  has been prepared so as to reflect the reality or substance of the transaction and 

activities underlying them, rather than their formal legal character;  represents faithfully the transactions and events it purports to or could reasonably 
be expected to represent;  is free from deliberate or systemic bias;  is free from material error;  is complete within the bounds of materiality and cost. 

 
Comparability 
The financial statements have been prepared to allow comparison of the Council’s financial 
position over time. In addition to complying with the Code, the Council’s statements also 
comply with the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP); this establishes proper 
practice with regard to consistent financial reporting and therefore aids comparability with 
other local authorities. 
 
Verifiable 
Information used to prepare the accounts can be verified. Where estimates have been 
used, the relevant assumptions underlying the estimation technique will be disclosed. 
 
Timely 
The statutory timeframe for preparation of the accounts will be adhered to. 
 
Primacy of Legislative Requirements 
Local Authorities derive their powers from statute and their financial and accounting 
framework is closely controlled by primary and secondary legislation.  It is a fundamental 
principle of local authority accounting that, where specific legislative requirements and 
accounting principles conflict, legislative requirements as shown in Appendix B to the Code 
shall apply. To satisfy the twin demands of accounting regulations and legislation, Local 
Authority accounts include a reconciling statement to disclose how legislation has had an 
impact on the general fund and other reserves (the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
supporting note). 
 
2. ESTIMATION AND PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 
 
In order to prepare the annual accounts by the specified deadline, it has been necessary 
to use estimation methods in relation to some transactions and events. The Council has 
applied the same methods this year as in previous years. 
 
The estimation techniques that have been used are, in the Council’s view, appropriate and 
consistently applied.  Should the effect of a change to an estimation technique be material, 
a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the current period 
and future years would be separately disclosed. 
 

13



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

Where errors have occurred in relation to previous years’ recognition, measurement, 
presentation, or disclosure of elements of financial statements, they are corrected 
retrospectively where material and disclosed in the notes to the statements. 
 
3. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
In compliance with the Code, in all material respects both revenue and capital accounts of 
the Council are maintained on an accruals basis.  That is, sums due to or payable by the 
Council during the year are included in the accounts whether or not the cash has actually 
been received or paid in the year. In particular:  Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the 

date the Council provides the relevant goods or services  Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried 
as inventory on the Balance Sheet  Employee Costs – see separate Employee Benefits Policy below  Interest payable on borrowings, and receivable on investments, is accounted for on 
the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than 
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract  Where income and expenditure have been recognised, but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors 
is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected 

 
Accruals are largely based on known commitments and are assessed accurately. Where 
estimates are made, they are based on historical records, precedence and officers’ 
knowledge and experience. In all cases the Council adopts a prudent approach to avoid 
overstating its resources. 
 
4. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) 
 
Value Added Tax is included within the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable 
and therefore charged to revenue or capital expenditure as appropriate. VAT receivable is 
excluded from income. 
 
5. REVENUE GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Government grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Specific 
revenue grants and contributions are matched with the service expenditure to which they 
relate in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless there are 
conditions that have not been met. In such cases the income is credited to Receipts in 
Advance until the conditions are met. Once conditions are met the grant is transferred to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding, but expenditure has not been incurred, the 
grant is transferred to an earmarked reserve until the expenditure is incurred. It is then 
transferred to the General Fund Balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

14



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

 
Grants to cover general expenditure e.g. Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Council Tax 
Freeze grant are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within 
the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line.  
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate, and are set-off against the previous entries in the accounts. 
 
6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
During Employment 
Short-term benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits for current 
employees. They are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council.  
 
An accrual is made at the end of each year for the cost of holiday entitlement and flexi-time 
balances not taken at the year-end. The accrual is based on the salary rates for the year 
in which it will be taken. The accrual is charged to the cost of services, but then reversed 
out in the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that benefits are charged to revenue in the 
year in which the holiday or flexi-time is taken. 
 
Termination Benefits 
These are benefits payable as a result of a decision taken by the Council to terminate an 
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or as a result of an employee’s 
decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the 
relevant service in the period when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of benefits 
made to the employee or when the criteria for recognising a provision to cover such costs 
are met, whichever is the earliest.  
 
Where termination benefits involve pension enhancements, statutory provisions require 
the amount charged to the General Fund to be the amount paid in the year and not that 
calculated in accordance with relevant accounting standards. The Movement in Reserves 
Statement therefore shows entries in and out of the Pensions Reserve to bring the 
treatment into line with the accruals requirements of Accounting Standards. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
The Council has adopted the accounting requirements under IAS19 – Retirement Benefits, 
as required by the Code. Employees of the Council are members of Cumbria County 
Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Local Government 
Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  The liabilities of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 

Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation 
to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about 
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of estimated earnings 
for current employees  Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate and 
type of bond provided by the Actuary  

15



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
  The assets of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the 

Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
- quoted securities at current bid price 
- unquoted securities by professional estimate 
- unitised securities at current bid price 
- property at market value 

 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Component Detail Accounting Treatment 
Current service cost Increase in the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation resulting 
from employee service in the 
current period including interest on 
the current service cost. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement for appropriate 
service 

Past service cost / 
gains 

Change in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation for 
service in prior periods resulting 
from a plan amendment or 
curtailment and any gain or loss on 
settlement. 

Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement, Non 
Distributed costs 

Net interest on the net 
defined benefit 
liability(asset) 

Change during the period in the net 
defined liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time. 

Financing and Investment 
Income and  Expenditure 
in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

Other contributions to 
the Pension Fund 
including Gains/losses 
on 
settlements and 
curtailments 

Result of actions to relieve Council 
of liabilities or events that reduce 
expected future service or accrual 
of benefits of employees 

Debited to Net Cost of 
Services in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement, 
Non Distributed Costs 

Re-measurements  
(return on plan assets, 
actuarial gains and 
losses) 

Return on Plan assets not included 
in net interest. 
Changes in net pensions liability 
arising because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made 
at 
last actuarial valuation or changes 
to actuaries’ assumptions split 
between demographic and financial 
assumptions 

Accounted for in the 
Pensions Reserve and as 
part of Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. 

Contributions paid to 
the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme 

Cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund. 

Not accounted for as an 
expense in Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement but charged 
against General Fund 
through Movement in 
Reserves 

Other administration 
costs 

Other costs of scheme 
administration 

Debited to other operating 
expenditure 

 

16



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to 
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits, and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but 
unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Any prepayments into the pension fund will be treated as a reduction to the pension liability. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award 
to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award, and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
Residual Arrangements 
The Greater Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds charge the Council for the 
full pensions of a small number of pensioners of local authorities that were replaced by 
South Lakeland District Council in the 1974 Local Government Re-organisation. 
 
7. COSTS OF SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The accounting treatment for support services has been prepared in accordance with 
SeRCOP.  The costs of management and administration overheads have been allocated 
to all services.   
 
The following costs are accounted for as separate expenditure heads and are shown on 
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:  Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-

functional, democratic organisation  Non-Distributed Costs – cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring 
early and any depreciation and impairment losses on surplus assets 

 
The total absorption costing principle is used with the full cost of overheads and support 
services being shared between users on the following basis: 

 
Description 

 
Basis of Allocation 

Financial Services Gross revenue expenditure 
Budget 

Legal Services Time apportionment 
Human Resources/Payroll Staff Numbers 
Democratic Services Time apportionment 
Administrative Buildings Area occupied 
Information Services Number of PC Users 
Corporate Services Time apportionment 
  
  

17



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

8. EXTERNAL INTEREST 
 
Interest payments on external borrowings (Public Works Loans Board and other bodies) 
are fully accrued in order that each year bears the costs of interest related to its actual 
external borrowing.  External interest income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement over the period to which it relates. 
 
9. CHARGES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE   
STATEMENT FOR THE USE OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited or credited 
with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the 
year:  Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service  Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on 

tangible non-current assets used by the service and other losses where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written-
off  Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 

 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses 
or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an 
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with 
statutory guidance). Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced by MRP in the Movements in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two. 
 
10. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, 
but does not result in the creation of non-current assets owned by the Council (REFCUS), 
has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. 
Examples include disabled facilities grants on private houses.   

 

Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from  capital 
resources, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement through the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, so there is no impact on the level of the Council Tax.  
 
11. DEFINITION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
All expenditure on the acquisition, construction, replacement or restoration of a tangible 
non-current asset has been capitalised and classified as property, plant, equipment, 
heritage asset or investment property, where it is probable that future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and where the cost can 
be measured reliably. 
 

18



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

This will also include subsequent expenditure except where this only maintains the asset’s 
potential to deliver the level of service anticipated when the asset was acquired. In this 
case, the expenditure will be treated as revenue and will be charged to the service account. 
 
Where a component of an asset is replaced or restored the amount in the accounts relating 
to the old component is de-recognised. Major overhaul or replacement expenditure can 
also be capitalised if it relates to a non-current asset that has previously been depreciated. 
 
A non-current asset is initially recognised at its cost, which is its purchase price plus any 
costs directly attributable to bringing it into working condition for its intended use.  Directly 
attributable costs are the labour costs of own employees (e.g. site workers, in-house 
architects and surveyors) arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the specific 
asset, the incremental costs to the Council that would have been avoided only if the 
particular non-current asset had not been constructed or acquired. 
 
Costs will be ineligible to the extent that they relate to activity that takes place before the 
intention to acquire or construct a particular non-current asset has been confirmed.  
Examples include project appraisals and feasibility studies. 
 
The Council has adopted an aggregate de-minimis level of £10,000 for expenditure on 
capital schemes; if expenditure in a single financial year is less than £10,000 it will still be 
capitalised if this is part of an ongoing scheme which in total is £10,000 or more. 
Expenditure on schemes below this level is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year it is incurred. 
 
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
 
Recognition and Valuation 
After initial recognition in the accounts at cost, non-current assets are valued on the basis 
required by International Standards and recommended by CIPFA and the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  
 
Land and buildings have been valued by the Council’s external valuers at fair value on the 
basis of market related evidence where available.  The basis of the valuation, including 
that for vehicles, equipment and plant, is the net realisable value in existing use.  
Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy for fair value for vehicles, plant and 
equipment. 
 
Infrastructure assets and assets under construction are held at depreciated historic cost; 
community assets are held at historic cost. 
 
Revaluations 
Revaluations of non-current assets are being carried out as part of a rolling programme 
over a four-year cycle. However, in addition material changes to asset valuations will be 
adjusted in the interim period as they occur, for example where there is enhancement 
expenditure in the year or as a result of an impairment review. Although a rolling 
programme is used, the Council’s valuers will consider the carrying amounts of all land and 
building assets at the balance sheet date for the potential of material misstatement. 

19



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

Revaluations of non-current assets also take place when an asset is classified as Held for 
Sale. 
 
Any gains on revaluation will be credited to the Revaluation Reserve, unless it reverses a 
previous loss on the same asset that was charged to service expenditure. In that event the 
equivalent gain will be credited back to where the charge was made in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Losses on valuation will be debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless it can be set against any previous gains in Revaluation Reserve for that 
asset. 
 
Impairment 
All categories of non-current assets or material individual assets are reviewed each year 
for evidence of reductions in value. 
 
Where there is a material reduction in recoverable amount, the loss is reflected through an 
impairment charge to the service accounts, unless there is a revaluation surplus in the 
revaluation reserve for that asset, in which case it will be set off against that surplus.   
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all non-current assets with a finite useful life with the 
exception of Investment Properties, some Heritage Assets, Assets Under Construction and 
Assets Held for Sale.  Where depreciation is provided for, assets are generally depreciated 
using the “straight line” method on the opening balance. Details of the relevant periods are 
shown in the Property, Plant and Equipment note to the accounts. The depreciation periods 
are reviewed each year. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, where an event occurs in year that creates a material 
difference between the opening and closing valuation of an asset, a different approach 
may be used to provide a fair estimate of the value of using the asset in the year. This 
would base the depreciation charge on a value judged to best represent the year in 
question overall. This will only be done where it has a material impact on the depreciation 
charge and the details will be made explicit within the notes to the accounts. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation and that which would have been charged on a historical cost basis, is 
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Derecognition 
Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when it has no future 
economic benefit or social benefit. 
 
The gain or loss from derecognition is the net of its disposal proceeds, if any, and its 
carrying amount and is included in the Other Operating Expenditure in the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services. 
 
Where part of an asset is being replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the existing 
part is derecognised and replaced with the recognised amount for the new part. Where the 

20



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

carrying amount of the existing part is difficult to identify, estimates based on the cost of 
the new part are used to establish the amount. 
 
13. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage Assets are those that are:  held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture 

and/or   preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or 
historical associations  

 
They include both tangible and intangible assets. Where the values of these items are 
individually and/or collectively immaterial they are included in the Balance Sheet at a 
nominal value, and reference is made to them in the notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
With the exception of the relaxations shown below, Heritage Assets are recognised and 
measured in accordance with the policies on Property, Plant and Equipment or Donated 
Assets. 
 
Land and Buildings 
Where valuation methods cannot be applied due to the nature of the asset, for example 
Kendal Castle, a nil value has been used. No impairment or depreciation is therefore 
applicable in these cases. 
 
Collections 
The disparate collections held in various locations within the Council are reported in the 
Balance Sheet at valuation. This is estimated using the insurance value. When acquisitions 
are made they are initially recognised at cost, whereas donations will be recognised at 
valuation by reference to market information.  
 
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
Assets held and managed purely for rental income or capital appreciation are held as 
Investment Properties, and their annual revenue income and expenditure are reflected in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure. They are not subject to depreciation but are re-valued annually 
according to market conditions at the year-end. 
 
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance, but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences), is capitalised when it will bring benefits 
to the Council for more than one financial year. The asset is normally held at historical cost, 
less any accumulated amortisation (depreciation) and impairment loss, unless there is an 
active market in which case fair value will apply.  
 
The amortisation (depreciation) cost is charged to the relevant service account over the 
economic life to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. Where an intangible asset 
has an indefinite life no amortisation (depreciation) is applied. In line with tangible assets, 

21



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

the values of intangible assets (if in use) are reviewed periodically, and impairment, 

disposal and useful life policies are also applied and reviewed.  

 
16. NON-CURRENT ASSET DISPOSAL 
 
Held for Sale 
Assets held for sale must be available for and in a physical condition appropriate for 
immediate sale, all approvals received or granted and expected to be sold within one year. 
In most cases this will be when the Council approves its sale and marketing.  
 
When an asset is classified as for sale, it is immediately revalued before reclassification 
and shown on the Balance Sheet at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. When the asset is sold any gain or loss is shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Gains are only recognised up to the value of any losses previously 
posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Receipts 
Receipts from disposals are credited to Other Operating Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 
Amounts in excess of £10,000 are accounted for as Capital Receipts. 
 
The balance of receipts, after taking account of costs of disposal, is credited to a Capital 
Receipts Reserve and can only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). Gains or 
losses on disposals are not a charge against Council Tax as amounts are provided for 
under separate capital financing arrangements. Amounts are appropriated from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

 

17. LEASES 
 
General 
The Council enters into leases both from and to external organisations/individuals. The 
nature of the lease can be either operational or finance with the determining factor being 
the amount of risks and rewards that pass with the lease.  
 
Where the majority of the risks and rewards pass with the lease, these are accounted for 
as finance leases and are reflected in the Balance Sheet of the organisation that is leasing 
the asset. Otherwise it is an operating lease and all the transactions are confined to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Leases of land are classified as operating leases as land has an indefinite life. 
 
Finance Leases 
Rentals payable are apportioned between:  A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment 

(initially shown as a liability in the Balance Sheet matched with a tangible non-
current asset – the liability being written down as rents are payable) and 

22



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
  A finance charge that is debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These 
costs are charged to reflect a constant rate of charge on the remaining balance of 
the obligation each year.  

 
Using the same principles as for rents payable, rents receivable are split between a capital 
element that is set-off against a long-term debtor and an interest element that is credited 
to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals payable are charged directly to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. This generally means they 
are charged when they become payable. 
 
Rents received are credited to Service costs in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as they are due. 
 
Leases from External Bodies 
The Council enters into leases as well as other methods of financing equipment and vehicle 
purchases in line with the Prudential Code. It also enters into leases for the use of individual 
properties for the efficient delivery of services. 
 
Operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis.  Sums not yet paid are 
accrued for and prepaid payments are treated as payments in advance.  Finance leases 
result in the creation of an asset and liability in the Balance Sheet along with the 
requirement to provide depreciation and revaluations.  
 
An analysis of leasing transactions is shown in the Notes to the Accounting Statements. 

Leases to External Bodies 

The Council owns a number of assets that are leased to external organisations. The 
majority are short-term arrangements (operating) and rentals are reflected in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Where effectively the lessee enjoys 
the economic benefit of the property for the majority of the life of the asset, a long-term 
debtor is established that is written-down by the principal element of the annual rental.  
 
An analysis of leasing transactions is shown in the Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
18. INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments are shown in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Investments are made in 
accordance with the appropriate statutory regulations and the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 
19. INVENTORY 
 
Stocks held are valued at the lower of actual cost or net realisable value in accordance 
with the Code. Where stocks have been identified as being of no further use to the Council 

23



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

and the appropriate procedures have been complied with, the obsolete stock has been 
written-off; otherwise an allowance has been made for obsolescence. 
 
20. BAD DEBTS 
 
The Council continually reviews its debts as part of its monitoring process taking account 
of past recovery rates and any relevant advice from external bodies. Provision is made for 
impairment of debts, which for most services is calculated as 25% of all debts between 6 
months and one year old, 50% of all debts between 1 and 2 years old and 100% of all 
debts over two years old.   
 
Separate amounts are calculated for Council Tax, NNDR, Housing Rents and Benefits. 
These reflect increasing levels of provision dependent on the stage of recovery, with 
anything over two years being fully provided for.  
 
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents include:  petty cash  amounts held in instant access accounts  the consolidated payments and income accounts with the Council’s main bankers 
 
 
22. CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Capital grants and contributions received for the purposes of financing capital expenditure 
are credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement/ on an accruals basis, unless there 
are conditions that have not been met. In this case, the income is credited to Capital Grants 
Receipts in Advance until the conditions are met. It is then transferred to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
When there are no conditions outstanding and the related expenditure to be financed from 
that grant has been incurred, the grant is transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 
and reported through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Where there are no conditions outstanding but the related expenditure has not been 
incurred the grant is transferred to Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When the expenditure is incurred the grant is 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account with appropriate reporting in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement. 
 
Repayments of Grants and Contributions are shown as a revision of an accounting 
estimate and set off against the previous entries in the accounts. Repayment is regarded 
as capital expenditure and transfers are made between the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the Capital Adjustment Account with the transfer being 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
 

24



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

23. PROVISIONS 
 
The Council makes general provisions for significant liabilities or losses, which are likely or 
certain to be incurred but are uncertain as to the amounts or dates on which they will arise. 
For example the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
requirement to make a settlement or pay compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service in the year that the Council becomes 
aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the amount that might be paid. When 
payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance 
Sheet. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and where it is apparent 
that it is no longer needed or the amount needs to be changed, then amounts are either 
credited back to revenue or additional sums charged to revenue to increase the provision. 
 

Details of each provision are included in Notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
24. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes, 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure is incurred it is charged to the service revenue account in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is appropriated back into the General 
Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council 
tax for the expenditure. A list of reserves for specific purposes, and an explanation of their 
use, is included in the notes to the Accounting Statements.  
 
Capital Reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets and 
retirement benefits. These are not available for use by the Council for revenue purposes, 
and some can only be used for specific statutory purposes. These reserves are explained 
in the relevant notes to the Accounting Statements. 
 
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
Financial assets are classified into three main types:  loans and receivables – assets  that have fixed or determinable payments but are 

not quoted in an active market  assets held for trading – financial assets at fair value through profit and loss  assets held for sale – assets that do not fit under any other category; these are held 
at fair value and may include, for example, equity shareholdings and quoted 
investments, including UK Gilts. 

 
Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means 
that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable, and 

25



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Council has made loans to voluntary organisations and other bodies at less than 
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest 
that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than 
the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally higher effective rate of interest 
than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to 
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require 
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the 
financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a 
charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Assets Held for Trading  
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “assets held for trading”, these are 
classified at fair value through profit or loss. These are recognised and carried at fair value. 
Movements in fair value recorded in the Balance Sheet are balanced by posting gains and 
losses to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as they arise. Any 
residual gains and losses arising at the settlement date are cleared through the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Fair value is taken as the bid-market 
price for investments that are not placed directly into bank deposit accounts. 
 
Interest earned on financial assets is disclosed separately in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 
 
Assets Available for Sale 
Where financial instruments meet the Code criteria of “Assets Held for Sale” any change 
in fair value due to market conditions will be posted to ‘Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure’ but will be reversed into the Financial Instruments Available for Sale Reserve. 
This will leave only the effective interest rate based on the amortised cost as a credit to the 
General Fund. 
 

26. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount (balance carried forward) of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings 
that the Council has, this means that the amount included in the Balance Sheet is the 

26



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Statement of Accounts 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B) 
 

outstanding principal repayable, and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
Accounting for debt re-structuring or early settlement will be in accordance with the Code 
and relevant statute. 
 
27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date which relate to conditions that existed at the balance 
sheet date, are adjusted in the Accounts and disclosures. For events occurring after the 
Balance Sheet date relating to conditions that arose after that date, adjustments are not 
made in the Accounts but details are disclosed in a note. Events taking place after the date 
of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 
28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Where there is a possible obligation to make a payment, but the amount and timing is not 
certain, no entry is required to be made in the accounts.  However, for each class of 
contingent liability which the Council has the following commentary has been included in 
the notes to the Accounting Statements:  the nature of the contingency  a brief description  an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate)   an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any 

payment  
 
29. CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
Contingent assets occur where a possible asset arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. No entry is required to be made in the accounts.   
However, for each class of contingent asset which the Council has, the following 
information has been included in the notes to the Accounting Statements:  a commentary on the nature of the contingency  a brief description  an estimate of the financial effect (where appropriate) 

 an indication of the issues relating to the amount and level of certainty of any receipt. 

27



   SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT (C) 
 

 

 
 

General  Earmarked Capital Capital Total Total Total 

2014/15 Fund GF Receipts Grants Usable Unusable   Authority 

 
Balance Reserves Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

 
Balances at 1 April (1,500) (8,060) (6,167) (453) (16,180) (7,991) (24,171) 

 
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services  (2,085) 0 0 0 (2,085) 0 (2,085) 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure: 0 0 0 0 0 (3,620) (3,620) 

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income (2,085) 0 0 0 (2,085) (3,620) (5,705) 

 
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations 

(516) 0 (623) 146 (993) 993 0 

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to/(from) 
Earmarked Reserves 

(2,601) 0 (623) 146 (3,078) (2,627) (5,705) 

 
Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves 2,601 (2,601) 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Increase / Decrease in Year 0 (2,601) (623) 146 (3,078) (2,627) (5,705) 

 
Balance at 31 March (1,500) (10,661) (6,790) (307) (19,258) (10,618) (29,876) 

See Note 8 for an explanation of the detailed transactions supporting the amounts above. 

Total Reserves can be analysed between capital and revenue as follows 

Usable Capital (7,097) 

Usable Revenue (12,161) 

Pensions 34,271 

Other unusable reserves (44,889) 

Total (29,876) 

 
 

28



   SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT (C) 
 

 
 
 
 

General  Earmarked Capital Capital Total Total Total 

2013/14 Fund GF Receipts Grants Usable Unusable   Authority 

 
Balance Reserves Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

 
Balances at 1 April  (5,170) (3,332) (14,717) (356) (23,575) 10,249 (13,326) 

 
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services  1,153 0 0 0 1,153 0 1,153 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure: 0 0 0 0 0 (11,998) (11,998) 

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 1,153 0 0 0 1,153 (11,998) (10,845) 

 
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations 

(2,211) 0 8,550 (97) 6,242 (6,242) 0 

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to/(from) 
Earmarked Reserves 

(1,058) 0 8,550 (97) 7,395 (18,240) (10,845) 

 
Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves 4,728 (4,728) 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Increase / Decrease in Year 3,670 (4,728) 8,550 (97) 7,395 (18,240) (10,845) 

 
Balance at 31 March  (1,500) (8,060) (6,167) (453) (16,180) (7,991) (24,171) 

See Note 8 for an explanation of the detailed transactions supporting the amounts above. 

Total Reserves can be analysed between capital and revenue as follows 

Capital (6,620) 

Revenue (9,560) 

Pensions 26,673 

Other unusable reserves (34,664) 

Total (24,171) 

 

29



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT (C)  
 

 

 
2013/14  

   
2014/15  

Gross Gross     Gross Gross  Net 
Expenditure Income Net   Expenditure Income  

£000 £000 £000  Note £000 £000 £000 

2,554  (1,261) 1,293  Central Services to the Public  2,573  (1,377) 1,196  
4,175  (1,729) 2,446  Cultural and Related Services  5,056  (1,845) 3,211  
7,409  (1,915) 5,495  Environmental and Regulatory Services  7,830  (2,188) 5,642  
3,203  (1,194) 2,009  Planning Services  3,250  (1,299) 1,951  
2,560  (4,149) (1,589) Highways and Transport Services  2,080  (4,311) (2,231) 

22,265  (21,405) 860  Other Housing Services  22,000  (21,597) 403  
2,330  (18) 2,312  Corporate and Democratic Core  2,228  (17) 2,211  

558  (48) 510  Non-Distributed Costs  186  (31) 155  

45,053  (31,719) 13,334  Cost of Services 10 45,203  (32,665) 12,538  
        

  (302) Other Operating Income and Expenditure 16   (136) 

        

  2,505  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 17   285  

        

  (14,384) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 18   (14,772) 
         

  1,153 Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services    (2,085) 

        

  (4,174) Surplus or Deficit on revaluation of Non-Current Assets 34  (11,139)  
  226  Non-Current Asset impairment charged to Reval Reserve 34  426   
  0  Movement in fair value of Financial Assets Held for Sale 28  (107)  
  (8,050) Re-measurements of Net Defined Benefit Pension Liability 40  7,200   
        

  (11,998) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure    (3,620) 

        

  (10,845) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure    (5,705) 

30



31



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (C) 
 

 

 

 

 

2013/14 2014/15

£000 Note £000

REVENUE ACTIVITIES

(1,153)    Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 2,085      

4,397     1,600      

(3,139)    (2,395)     

105        Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 35 1,290      

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

7,973     Net Cash (Inflow) / Outflow from Investing Activities 36 2,746      

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(6,508)    Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 37 549        

1,570     4,585      

1,536     Cash and cash equivalents at start of accounting period 3,106

3,106     Cash and cash equivalents at end of accounting period 7,691

1,570     MOVEMENTS IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PER THE BALANCE SHEET 4,585      

 Adjusted for non cash items 

 Adjusted for investing and financing activities 

 NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

32



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
The following Notes are presented in an order that corresponds with the layout of the main Statements. The full index of Notes is as follows: 
 
OVERVIEW (general principles) 
 
Note 1  Change of Accounting Policy and Prior Period errors  
Note 2  Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 
Note 3  Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies 
Note 4  Assumptions made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
Note 5  Material Items of Income and Expense 
Note 6  Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
Note 7  Changes in Accounting Estimates 
 
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES 
 
Note 8  Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 
Note 9  Transfers To / From Earmarked Reserves 
 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Note 10  Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 
Note 11  Trading Operations 
Note 12  Agency Services 
Note 13  Members’ Allowances 
Note 14  Officers’ Remuneration and termination packages 
Note 15  External Audit Costs 
Note 16  Other Operating Expenditure 
Note 17  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
Note 18  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 
Note 19  Grant Income 
 
BALANCE SHEET 
 
Note 20  Property, Plant and Equipment 
Note 21  Impairment Losses 
Note 22  Heritage Assets 
Note 23  Investment Properties 
Note 24  Intangible Assets 
Note 25  Assets Held for Sale 

33



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Note 26  Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
Note 27  Leases 
Note 28  Financial Instruments 
Note 29  Inventories 
Note 30  Debtors 
Note 31  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Note 32  Creditors 
Note 33  Provisions 
Note 34  Unusable Reserves 
 
CASH FLOW 
 
Note 35  Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 
Note 36  Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
Note 37  Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 
 
OTHER (supporting a number of statements or of general interest) 
 
Note 38  Trust Funds 
Note 39  Related Parties 
Note 40  Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 
Note 41  Contingent Liabilities 
Note 42  Contingent assets 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
OVERVIEW 
 
1. Change of Accounting Policy and Prior Period errors 
 
There have been no material changes to accounting policies or any prior period errors.  The 13/14 comparators have been re-stated to the nearest £000. 
 
2. Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 
 
The 2015/16 Code will introduce the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This requires local authorities to measure their assets and liabilities 
and provide disclosures where a section of the Code requires, or permits, fair value measurement. Although the Code already includes provisions for fair 
value measurement, the amendment changes the default definition of fair value to be that in highest and best use. However, the Code will still include the 
principal of recognising the service potential of operational assets through existing use value and depreciated replacement cost. Surplus assets will change to 
fair value (highest and best use), however, the Council is not expected to have material balances within this asset category. 
 
There are also changes linked to IFRIC 21 Levies and the Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2011-13 cycle); these are not anticipated to have a material 
impact on the Council.   
 
3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 
events. The critical judgements made in the statement of accounts are: 

  There is a high degree of uncertainty about the future levels of funding for local government. However, the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) sets 
out savings targets that are judged to be achievable and so ensure that the Council remains a going concern.  In March 2012, the Council transferred its housing stock to South Lakes Housing, a Registered Provider of Social Housing. South Lakes Housing was 
previously a material and wholly owned subsidiary of the Council leading to a requirement for group accounts in prior years. As South Lakes Housing 
is no longer under the control of the Council, group accounts are no longer required. A full review of the SLDC group boundary against updated 
standards (IFRS10, IFRS11, IAS28) confirmed the conclusion that group accounts are not required.  Leisure centre values are completed on a Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) basis as an estimate of their fair value in existing use. The majority 
of Leisure services are delivered by a third party. This third party changed in 2014/15 from South Lakes Leisure to North Country Leisure and the 
nature of the underlying agreement has impacted on how the valuer has applied the DRC valuation. Under the South Lakes Leisure agreement, the 
valuer reflected a transfer of service delivery in the valuation. This meant that a significant reduction was applied to the asset values to reflect the 
assumption that the service had been transferred on a long term basis. Under the new arrangement the Council is, on balance, judged to retain the 
service and the service potential of the assets. This has meant a significant increase (circa £10.5m) in the carrying value of the leisure assets. As this 
increase is largely linked to the commencement of the contract from 1/4/2014, an adjustment to the depreciation charge has been made in the Cost of 
Services to reflect the increased cost of using higher valued assets. This is in line with the accounting policy on depreciation (see 7 below). 

 

35



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

4. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty  
 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures. These take into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, 
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. The items in the 
Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
 

Description 
 

Detail 
Consequences 

Property Plant and 
Equipment 
(Balance Sheet values 
31 March 14 £42.6m 
31 March 15 £53.5m) 
 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on 
assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be 
incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic climate 
makes it uncertain that the Authority will be able to sustain its current 
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful 
lives assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls. A 
1 year reduction to asset lives overall would increase 
the depreciation charge in year by circa £75k.  However, 
there are statutory over-rides in place that remove the 
impact of depreciation from the Council’s usable 
reserves. 

Non-current assets held at 
current value 
(Balance Sheet values  
31 March 14 £44.6m 
31 March 15 £58.7.m) 
 

Values of assets are dependent on outside market forces that are 
reliant on the national and global economic conditions. See also note 
3 above in relation to DRC valuations that are used, where no active 
market exists. 

A reduction of 1% in the value of assets would reduce 
the net worth of the Council by £0.6m. However, there 
are statutory over-rides in place to remove the impact of 
impairment on capital assets on usable reserves. 

Pensions Liability 
(Balance Sheet values 
31 March 2014 £26.7m 
31 March 2015 £32.4m) 
 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number 
of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 
which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm 
of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide Cumbria County 
Council, the administering authority, with expert advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 

The effects on the net pension liability of changes in 
individual assumptions can be measured, however, 
there are statutory over-rides in place to ensure that the 
impact on the Council’s usable reserves is limited to the 
amounts actually payable in year.  

Arrears At 31 March 2015, the Council had a net balance of £4.5m for short 
term debtors. A review of significant balances suggested that an 
impairment of doubtful debts of £1.75m was appropriate. However, in 
the current economic climate it is not certain that such an allowance 
would be sufficient. 

If collection rates were to deteriorate, a doubling of the 
amount of the impairment of doubtful debts would 
require an additional £1.75m to set aside as an 
allowance. 

NDR appeals provision 
As part of the new Business Rates Retention scheme, the Council is 
now directly impacted by rates appeals. A gross provision of £2.13m 
has been set aside and 40% of this, £851k, relates to the Council’s 
share of Rates income.  

If the rate and/or success of appeals lead to a doubling 
of the overall loss of income, this would cost the Council 
a further £850k although the impact may be deferred 
through the statutory over-rides linked to Collection 
Fund deficits. 

 

36



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
5. Material Items of Income and Expense 
 
The major items of income and expenditure for 2014/15 not shown separately on the face of the CIES are: 

 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 £m £m 

Housing Benefit payments (Rent Allowances, included in Other Housing Services Expenditure) 19.166 19.344 
Housing Benefits Subsidy income (for Rent Allowances, included in Other housing Services Income) -19.033 -19.331 
Car Park Income (included in Highways and Transport Services Income) -4.156 -4.151 

Lake Windermere Income (Included in Cultural, Environmental & Planning) -1.180 -1.063 

Revaluation of Leisure assets included within Other CIES -10.469 0 

 
There are also a number of corporate items linked to the Retention of Business Rates scheme within other operating income and expenditure, these are 
detailed in notes 16, 17 and 18. 
 
6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date  
 
In 2012/13 the transfer of the Stock Beck Flood Relief Scheme to the Environment Agency for a nominal sum was disclosed as a non adjusting post balance 
sheet event. As at 31/3/2015 details of the transfer were still being finalised. However, the intention is that only part of the overall asset is to be transferred, 
equating to £450k of the total carrying value of £3.6m. Once the transfer is completed, this part of the asset will be impaired in full reducing the overall carrying 
value to £3.15m. This will have no impact on the Council’s usable reserves. 
 
7. Changes in Accounting Estimates 
 
As set out in note 3 above, the basis for estimating the current value of Leisure assets has changed in the year. The estimation technique had previously 
adjusted the Depreciated Replacement Cost of these assets to reflect that the service had, in substance, been transferred to a Leisure Trust (South Lakes 
Leisure). This change gives a material increase in the value of the assets, as detailed within notes 3 and 5 above. 
 
The accounting policy in relation to depreciation has been expanded to include an enhanced approach where there has been a material change in value in 
year. This follows the treatment applied to Leisure assets in 2014/15 where a large increase in value means that use of the opening balance was not judged to 
provide a fair basis for calculating depreciation. The application of this enhanced policy has led to £522k of additional depreciation being charged against 
Cultural and Related Services in the Cost of Services (see also 3 above). 
 
A minor amendment has been made to the estimation technique for heritage assets (the museum collection). The previous method utilised a mixture of periodic 
valuation and indexing based on movement in the insured amount. This led to a mis-match between the carrying value and the insured amount overall. The 
estimate of current value is now purely based on the insured amount which has led to a small reduction in carrying value. 

37



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES 
 
8. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 
 
This note details the adjustments between the accounting basis and funding basis under regulations, as 
shown within the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 

 

 General  Capital Capital Total Total Total 

2014/15 Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable   Authority 

 
Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

       

       

Capital Adjustment Account       

Reversal of items recognised in the CIES       

Amortisation of Intangible assets (74) 0 0 (74) 74 0 

Depreciation  (1,976) 0 0 (1,976) 1,976 0 

Impairment/Revaluation to Provision of Services 190 0 0 190 (190) 0 

Movement in market value of Investment Properties 561 0 0 561 (561) 0 

Revenue Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) (1,589) 0 0 (1,589) 1,589 0 

Grants applied on REFCUS 498 0 142 640 (640) 0 

Capital Grants applied  0 0 46 46 (46) 0 

Value of Non-Current Assets sold (105) 0 0 (105) 105 0 

Items not recognised in the CIES       

Statutory provision for repayment of debt (MRP) 103 0 0 103 (103) 0 

Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue 621 0 0 621 (621) 0 

       

Capital Grants Unapplied credited to CIES 42 0 (42) 0 0 0 

       

Usable Capital Receipts       

Transfer of Non-Current Asset sale proceeds  1,713 (1,713) 0 0 0 0 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund Capital Expenditure 0 1,095 0 1,095 (1,095) 0 

Transfer from Deferred Receipts on receipt of Cash 0 (5) 0 (5) 5 0 

       

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 1 0 0 1 (1) 0 

       

Pensions Reserve       

Reversal of retirement benefits debited or credited to CIES (2,829) 0 0 (2,829) 2,829 0 

Employer’s pension payments in the year 2,431 0 0 2,431 (2,431) 0 

       

Collection Fund Adjustment Account: Ctax 54 0 0 54 (54) 0 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account: NNDR (157) 0 0 (157) 157 0 

       

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations 

(516) (623) 146 (993) 993 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 

 

 

 

General Capital Capital Total Total Total 

2013/14 Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Authority 

 Balance Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

       

       

Capital Adjustment Account       

Reversal of items recognised in the CIES       

Amortisation of Intangible assets (137) 0 0 (137) 137 0 

Depreciation  (1,744) 0 0 (1,744) 1,744 0 

Impairment/Revaluation losses to Provision of Services (488) 0 0 (488) 488 0 

Movement in market value of Investment Properties 258 0 0 258 (258) 0 

Revenue Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) (1,359) 0 0 (1,359) 1,359 0 

Grants applied on REFCUS 478 0 (59) 419 (419) 0 

Value of Non-Current Assets sold (247) 0 0 (247) 247 0 

Capital Grants applied 0 0 9 9 (9) 0 

 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Items not recognised in the CIES       

Statutory provision for repayment of debt (MRP) 66 0 0 66 (66) 0 

Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue 1,381 0 0 1,381 (1,381) 0 

       

Capital Grants Unapplied credited to CIES 47 0 (47) 0 0 0 

       

Adjustments involving Capital Receipts        

Transfer of Non-Current asset sales proceeds 1,989 (1,989) 0 0 0 0 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund Capital Expenditure 0 9,433 0 9,433 (9,433) 0 

Financing of payments to Capital Receipts Pool (8) 8 0 0 0 0 

Transfer from Deferred Receipts on receipt of Cash 0 (4) 0 (4) 4 0 

 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account       

Adjustments for Soft Loans 1 0 0 1 (1) 0 

Early repayment premia transferred to FIAA (1,102) 0 0 (1,102) 1,102 0 

Early repayment premia funded through capital receipts 0 1,102 0 1,102 (1,102) 0 

 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve       

Reversal of retirement benefits debited or credited to CIES (3,317) 0 0 (3,317) 3,317 0 

Employer’s payments in the year 2,390 0 0 2,390 (2,390) 0 

       

Collection Fund Adjustment Account NDR (489) 0 0 (489) 489 0 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account Ctax 42 0 0 42 (42) 0 

Accumulated Absences Account 28 0 0 28 (28) 0 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations 

(2,211) 8,550 (97) 6,242 (6,242) 0 

39



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 

9. Transfers to/from Earmarked and other usable reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans, and the amounts 
posted back from earmarked reserves to meet expenditure. It also shows other usable reserves to give a complete overview of usable reserves shown on the 
balance sheet. 
 

 

 Balance 
1/4/2013 

Transfers 
out     

Transfers 
in 

Balance 
31/3/2014 

Transfers 
out 

Transfers 
in 

Balance 
31/3/2015 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

General Reserve (1,528) 783 (5,012) -5,757 158 -1,690 -7,289 

Debt Redemption Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 -205 -205 

Economic Development Fund (5) 5 (6) -6 0 -95 -101 

Kendal Employment Development Fund (38) 24 0 -14 0 0 -14 

Revenue Funds for Capital (71) 171 (100) 0 100 -200 -100 

Building Control Fee Income Reserve 357 105 (462) 0 22 -22 0 

Second Homes Income Reserve (231) 355 (545) -421 722 -510 -209 

IT Replacement Reserve (136) 46 (58) -148 164 -140 -124 

Revs and Bens IT reserve 0 0 (10) -10 0 0 -10 

LABGI (Local Authority Business Growth Initiative) (87) 16 0 -71 34 0 -37 

Planning Delivery Grant Fund (84) 0 0 -84 10 0 -74 

Waste Contract Reserve (439) 339 (109) -209 0 -187 -396 

Local Land Charges Reserve 15 0 (7) 8 6  14 

Local Arts Strategic Partnership Reserve (56) 5 0 -51 0 0 -51 

New Homes Bonus Reserve (100) 270 (228) -58 359 -359 -58 

General Fund Major Repairs Reserve (336) 0 (50) -386 28 -150 -508 

Social Lettings Reserve 0 0 (20) -20 0 0 -20 

NNDR Surplus Reserve 0 0 (490) -490 0 -209 -699 

Cumbria NDR Pool Income Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 -291 -291 

Cumbria NDR Pool volatility Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 -71 -71 

Commuted Sums Reserve 0 0 (2) -2 5 -80 -77 

LSVT Environmental Warranties (341) 0 0 -341 0 0 -341 

Former HRA Major Repairs Reserve (252) 252 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Earmarked Revenue Reserves (3,332) 2,371 (7,099) -8,060 1,608 -4,209 -10,661 

             

Other Reserves            

Usable Capital Receipts (14,717) 10,543 (1,993) -6,167 1,095 -1,718 -6,790 

Capital Grants unapplied (356) 9 (106) -453 188 -42 -307 

Working balance (5,170) 4,728 (1,058) -1,500 2,601 -2,601 -1,500 
             

Total Usable Reserves (23,575) 17,651 (10,256) -16,180 5,492 -8,570 -19,258 

40



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Purpose of Reserves: 
 
General Fund Earmarked Reserves: 
 
General Reserve – Buffer against financial risks; pension rates, government grants, investment income. Assistance towards the costs of risk management. 
Debt Redemption Reserve – resources set aside from underspends on financing costs for future repayment of borrowings 
Economic Development Fund – To encourage economic development in the District. 
Kendal Employment Development Fund – Assistance to eligible firms in the Kendal area. 
Revenue Funds for Capital – Monies provided from revenue resources to support the Capital Programme and fund expenditure that cannot be capitalised. 
Building Control Fee Income Reserve – Statutory ring-fenced reserve to record surpluses and losses on the trading activities of Building Control. 
Second Homes Income Reserve – Initiatives to enable the provision of affordable housing. 
IT Replacement Reserve – Replacement of IT equipment. 
Revs and Bens IT Reserve – amounts set aside to support IT upgrades within Revenues and Benefits 
LABGI –Non-recurring initiatives that contribute directly to one or more of the Council’s priority objectives, with preference for economic regeneration. 
Planning Delivery Grant Fund – Monies provided by Planning Delivery Grant in 2009/10 carried forward for use in subsequent years. 
Waste Contract Reserve – Surplus/deficit on Waste Contract 
Local Land Charges Reserve - ring fenced reserve to record surpluses and losses on land charges activities 
Local Arts Strategic Partnership Reserve – New reserve to promote partnership working to fund local arts projects  
New Homes Bonus Reserve –  reserve for New Homes Bonus funding which provides incentives for Local Authorities to promote growth in their communities, 

based on past increases in housing supply. 
General Fund Major Repairs Reserve – Major repairs and renewals of Council assets. 
Social Lettings Reserve – amounts set aside from surpluses on the Social Lettings scheme to provide funds for any property dilapidations. 
NNDR Surplus Reserve – amounts set aside to support future year budget impacts of in year deficits on Retained Business Rates. 
Cumbria NDR Pool Income Reserve – income from the Cumbria NDR pool 
Cumbria NDR Pool Volatility Reserve – SLDC share of the volatility reserve set up by the Cumbria Pool to protect against fluctuation of pool income. 
Commuted Sums Reserve – external contributions from developers to support future maintenance or capital works. 
LSVT Environmental Warranties – a warranty was given to South Lakes Housing in 2012 for 30 years against the possible cost of environmental pollution. 

Insurance has been purchased for 10 years, this money is set aside to provide further insurance beyond the 10 year period. 

 
Usable Capital Receipts – Proceeds of non-current asset sales available to meet future capital investment 
Capital Grants Unapplied – Capital grants received for financing capital schemes but not yet used  
General Fund Working Balance – Resources available to meet future running costs for non-housing services 

 

 

 

 

 

41



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
10. Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the SeRCOP. 
However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Council’s Cabinet on the basis of budget reports analysed across directorates. The table below 
reconciles from the overall service out-turn reported on a directorate basis to that in the CIES. 
 

 

 

2014/15 
Neighbourhood 

Services 
Policy and 

Performance 
Resources 

Strategic 
Planning 

Total 
Directorate 

Analysis 

Less items 
excluded 
from COS 

Cost of 
Services 

Corporate 
Amounts 

Surplus on 
Provision of 

services  

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Fees Charges & Other Service Income -12,679 -39 -241 -1,834 -14,793 5,496 -9,297 -5,501 -14,798 

Interest received 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -156 -156 

Grants and contributions -1,368 -270 -19,996 -1,734 -23,368 0 -23,368 -2,489 -25,857 

Income from Council Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -9,117 -9,117 

Retained business rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -3,124 -3,124 

Corporate IAS 19 adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,019 1,019 

Capital grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -42 -42 

Income -14,047 -309 -20,237 -3,568 -38,161 5,496 -32,665 -19,410 -52,075 

Employees 4,852 2,159 2,444 2,462 11,917 -2,420 9,497 2,420 11,917 

Other Service Exp 11,456 1,555 19,760 1,977 34,748 -1,720 33,028 1,813 34,841 

Precepts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,339 1,339 

Payment to Hsg Cap Rec Pool 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 

Pension Admin Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42 42 

Support Service Charges in 2,663 1,209 3,856 1,968 9,696 -325 9,371 325 9,696 

Support Service Charges out -1,523 -3,048 -3,367 -1,758 -9,696 0 -9,696 0 -9,696 

Depreciation 1,919 91 0 39 2,049 -446 1,603 446 2,049 

REFCUS 218 80 0 1,291 1,589 0 1,589 0 1,589 

Impairments -297 0 0 108 -189 0 -189 0 -189 

Revaluation Gains/Losses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -561 -561 

Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 567 567 

Gain or loss on disposal of assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,608 -1,608 

Expenditure 19,288 2,046 22,693 6,087 50,114 -4,911 45,203 4,787 49,990 

Total 5,241 1,737 2,456 2,519 11,953 585 12,538 -14,623 -2,085 

42



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

The format of this note has been improved for 2014/15, the 2013/14 comparators are presented on the same basis as the 2014/15 figures. The improved 
format presents a full reconciliation in a single table which takes the directorate analysis, used for internal reporting, and adjusts this into the statement of 
accounts headings. 
 

2013/14 
Neighbourhood 

Services 
Policy and 

Performance 
Resources 

Strategic 
Planning 

Total 
Directorate 

Analysis 

Less items 
excluded 

from COS* 

Cost of 
Services 

Corporate 
Amounts 

Surplus on 
Provision of 

services  

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Fees Charges & Other Service Income -12,109 -33 -203 -1,538 -13,883 5,322 -8,561 -5,322 -13,883 

Interest received 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -101 -101 

Grants and contributions -1,181 -188 -20,316 -1,473 -23,158 0 -23,158 -4,207 -27,365 

Income from Council Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -9,018 -9,018 

Retained business rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,113 -1,113 

Net Pension Change 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,369 1,369 

Capital grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -47 -47 

Income -13,290 -221 -20,519 -3,011 -37,041 5,322 -31,719 -18,439 -50,158 

Accumulated absences adjustment -11 -5 -6 -5 -28  -28  -28 

Employees 4,767 2,131 2,760 2,247 11,905 -2,343 9,562 2,343 11,905 

Other Service Exp 11,256 1,359 20,019 1,688 34,322 -1,715 32,607 1,809 34,416 

Precepts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,300 1,300 

Payment to Hsg Cap Rec Pool 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 

Pension Admin Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 40 

Support Service Charges in 3,107 1,827 4,420 2,217 11,571 -411 11,160 411 11,571 

Support Service Charges out -2,286 -3,699 -3,755 -1,831 -11,571 0 -11,571 0 -11,571 

Depreciation 1,659 180 0 39 1,878 -402 1,476 402 1,878 

REFCUS 0 0 0 1,359 1,359 0 1,359 0 1,359 

Impairments 481 0 0 7 488 0 488 0 488 

Revaluation Gains/Losses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -258 -258 

Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,945 1,945 

Gain or loss on disposal of assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,742 -1,742 

Expenditure 18,973 1,793 23,438 5,721 49,924 -4,871 45,053 6,258 51,311 

Total 5,683 1,572 2,919 2,710 12,883 451 13,334 -12,181 1,153 

 

 
 
 

43



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
 
11. Trading Operations 
 

Following competitive tender, the Council operates an in-house street cleaning, domestic waste and kerbside recycling collection service. The trading 
objective is to break even over the 7 year contract. The contract started on 1 April 2010.  
 
Trading operations are shown separately in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure. 
 

 

Trading 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Turnover (5,037) (4,931) 

Expenditure 4,771 4,742 
Net surplus on trading operations (266) (189) 

 
 
 
12. Agency Services 
 
The Council acts as agent to several other organisations for the following services:- 
  Car Parks - managing car parks  Industrial Units - managing industrial units: a percentage of the rent is paid to the freehold owner  Lake Windermere - collect lake fees on behalf of Lake District National Park Authority  Public Halls - taking accommodation bookings and selling event tickets  South Lakes Housing – rent collection 

 
The Council also has an agency agreement with the following:  the Camping and Caravanning Club, who run Braithwaite Fold Caravan Site on its behalf  South Lakes Housing – collection of Town View Fields Hostel rents  Windermere Lake Cruises who run the Rectory Road Car Park 
 
The management or commission fees, received or paid, vary according to the agreement in place or the service provided. The collection of NNDR as agent for 
Central Government and the County Council, and Council Tax collected on behalf other local precepting authorities is not included here and is reflected in the 
Collection Fund. In addition, the Council hosts the shared IT service with Eden District Council. This is a jointly managed service albeit staff are employees of 
SLDC and expenditure goes through SLDCs ledger. The matching income and expenditure from Eden have been de-recognised (£215k gross) within SLDC’s 

44



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

CIES on the grounds that having the gross figures would not reflect the underlying relationship, ie that this is a shared service rather than SLDC providing a 
service to another authority. The table below summarises the agency income and expenditure for the period: 
 
 

Agency 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

SLDC Acting as Agent for Other Organisations     
Income paid over to the various organisations  1,357 3,446 
Management fees received by SLDC  (132) (141) 
      
Other Organisations Acting as Agent for SLDC     
Income Received  (582) (467) 
Agency Fee Paid By SLDC  33 33 

 
The main variation is that rental income that is still collected by SLDC in relation to South Lakes Housing has diminished during 2014/15 as financial 
arrangements for cash collection have transferred to SLH, the total collected by SLDC on behalf of South Lakes Housing was £400k during 2014/15 vs £2.5m 
for 2013/14. 
 
 
13. Members’ Allowances 
 
The Council paid the following amounts to Members of the Council during the year: 
 

Member payments 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Allowances 259 259 
Expenses 18 21 
Total  277 280 

 
 
The payments for allowances have not materially changed in the year and this is consistent with Independent Remuneration Panel report presented to 
Council 17 December 2013. This recommended that 2014/15 rates were not increased from the 2013/14 rates. 
 
 
 
 
 

45



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
 
14. Officers’ Remuneration 
 
The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 
 
 

 

Officer Remuneration  

Salary, Fees, 
Allowances 

Bonuses 
Expenses 

Allowances 
Comp. for 

loss of office 
Pension 

Contribution 
Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief Executive  
2014/15 104,984 0 1,964 0 26,885 133,833 

2013/14 102,888 0 1,866 0 25,722 130,476 

Corporate Director 
Monitoring Officer 

2014/15 76,130 0 1,255 0 19,496 96,881 

2013/14 75,768 0 1,323 0 18,942 96,033 

Corporate Director -
People and Places  

2014/15 71,147 0 963 0 18,220 90,330 

2013/14 70,793 0 1,029 0 17,698 89,520 

Assistant Director- 
Resources 

2014/15 67,279 0 963 0 17,229 85,471 

2013/14 66,201 0 963 0 16,550 83,714 

Assistant Director- 
Strategic Planning 

2014/15 56,851 0 1,215 0 14,559 72,625 

2013/14 56,540 0 1,538 0 14,135 72,213 

Assistant Director- 
Neighbourhood Services 

2014/15 56,851 0 1,328 0 14,559 72,738 

2013/14 55,773 0 1,420 0 13,943 71,136 

Assistant Director- 
Policy and Performance 

2014/15 56,851 0 1,333 0 14,559 72,743 

2013/14 55,773 0 1,484 0 13,943 71,200 

Solicitor to the Council 2014/15 49,148 0 984 0 12,586 62,718 

  2013/14 Not disclosed for 2013/14 as <£50k 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

The numbers of Council employees receiving remuneration (treated as salary, special allowances and expenses allowances) of more than £50k in 2013/14 
and 2014/15 are shown in the table below: 
 

Remuneration 
Bandings 

2014/15 
Number of 
employees 

2013/14 
Number of 
employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 1 0 

£55,000 - £59,999 3 3 

£60,000 - £64,999 0 0 

£65,000 - £69,999 1 1 

£70,000 - £74,999 1 1 

£75,000 - £79,999 1 1 

£80,000 - £84,999 0 0 

£85,000-  £89,999 0 0 

£90,000-  £94,999 0 0 

£95,000-  £99,999 0 0 

£100,000- £104,999 0 1 

£105,000- £109,999 1 0 

 
Exit Packages 
 

Exit package cost 
band (including special 

payments) 

Number of compulsory 
redundancies 

Number of other departures 
agreed 

Total number of exit 
packages by cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band 

  2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 

              £ £ 

£0 - £40,000 2 0 0 0 2 0 23,589 0 

£40,000 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£100,000 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                  

TOTAL 2 0 0 0 2 0 23,589 0 

 
 
 

47



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

15. External Audit Costs 
 
The table below shows the Council’s costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, statutory inspection, certification of grant claims and to non-
audit services provided by the Council’s external auditors. The appointed auditor for 2013/14 and 2014/15 was Grant Thornton UK LLP.  
 

 
2014/15 2013/14 

Audit Costs £000 £000 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor for external audit services 79 78 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor for the certification of grant claims and returns 10 7 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor in respect of other services  0 0 

Total 89 85 

 
 
16. Other Operating Income and Expenditure 
 
Other operating expenditure is made up of the following amounts: 

 

 2014/15 2013/14 

Other Operating Income and Expenditure £000 £000 

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets (1,608) (1,742) 

Parish Council Precepts 1,339 1,300 

Parish Council Tax Reduction Grant 92 92 

Pension Administration costs 42 40 

De-minimis housing receipts (5) 0 

Payments to  Housing Capital Receipts Pool 4 8 

Total (136) (302) 

 
 
Most of the gain on disposal relates to capital receipts associated with the Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) of housing stock to South Lakes Housing. 
Under the LSVT the Council retains rights to capital receipts for both its share of the sale of properties under Right-to-Buy and a VAT shelter arrangement. 
 
 
 
 
 

48



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

17. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
 
Financing and Investment income and expenditure is made up of the following amounts: 
 

Financing and Investment Income and  2014/15 2013/14 

Expenditure £000 £000 

Interest payable and similar charges 567 843 

Premium on early debt repayment 0 1,102 

Pensions interest cost 1,019 1,369 

Investment Income Interest (156) (101) 

Changes in fair value of Investment Properties (561) (258) 

Trading Accounts Gains and Losses (266) (189) 

Rents received on Investment Properties (394) (332) 

Expenses incurred on Investment Properties 76 70 

Total 285 2,505 

 
18. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 
 
Taxation and non-specific grant income is made up of the following amounts: 
 

 2014/15 2013/14 

Tax and Non Specific Grants £000 £000 

Council Tax income (net of surplus/deficit) (9,117) (9,018) 

Retained Business Rates (net of surplus/deficit) (15,731) (14,931) 

Retained Business Rates Tariff 13,840  13,575  

Retained Business Rates Levy  692  243  

Section 31 Grants (1,563) (1,094) 

Income from Cumbria NNDR Pool (362) 0  

Revenue Support Grant  (2,389) (3,030) 

Other Government grants (100) (83) 

Capital grants and contributions (42) (47) 

Total (14,772) (14,384) 

 
6 Cumbrian authorities (5 districts including SLDC and the County) joined together to form a business rates pool for 2014/15. The benefit of this is that there 
is a net saving of levy payments across the pool. This saving is then shared between pool participants. In addition, there is also a surplus or deficit on the 

49



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Collection fund, for both Council Tax and Retained Business Rates. Under proper accounting practice, this is shared out between the precepting/sharing 
bodies’ income and expenditure accounts, in the year. This is reversed out to the Collection Fund Adjustment account under statute.  
 
19. Grant Income 
 
The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 
 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Total Non-specific Grant Income (inc NDR, see note 18) (5,655) (5,366) 

Credited to Services:     

Housing Benefit Subsidy  (19,111) (19,426) 

Housing benefit administration grant (323) (298) 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Admin grant (86) (142) 

NNDR grants (298) (297) 

Elections (139) (167) 

Individual Electoral Registration and transformation (111) 0 

Department of Works and Pensions (37) (92) 

Forestry Commission 0 (8) 

DEFRA (65) (29) 

New Homes Bonus (358) (228) 

Community Right to Challenge (16) (16) 

New Burdens (115) (45) 

Transformation challenge award (70) 0 

Mortgage rescue (33) 0 

Other minor grants (20) (23) 

Grants funding REFCUS expenditure (497) (479) 

Total credited to Services (21,279) (21,250) 

Other Contributions (2,089) (1,910) 

Total Grants and contributions (29,023) (28,526) 

 
 

50



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
 
20. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Movements on Balances 

 
 

Movements in 2014/15 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 

a
n

d
 B

u
il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t,

 
F

u
rn

it
u

re
 &

 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  

Cost or Valuation            

At 1 April 2014 36,348 7,908 4,557 172 20 49,005  

additions 0 899 0 0 365 1,264  

enhancements 853 0 0 4 0 857  

disposals 0 (319) 0 0 0 (319)  

revaluations 10,421 0 0 0 0 10,421  

impairments (696) 0 0 0 (12) (708)  

assets reclassified (268) (249) 0 0 0 (517)  

At 31 March 2015 46,658 8,239 4,557 176 373 60,003  

Accumulated Depreciation             

at 1 April 2014 (1,324) (4,866) (222) 0 0 (6,412)  

depreciation charge in the year (1,357) (581) (38) 0 0 (1,976)  

disposals 0 319 0 0 0 319  

revaluations 1,167 0 0 0 0 1,167  

impairments 139 0 0 0 0 139  

assets re-classified 0 249 0 0 0 249  

At 31 March 2015 (1,375) (4,879) (260) 0 0 (6,514)  

Net Book Value            

at 31 March 2014 35,024 3,042 4,335 172 20 42,593  

at 31 March 2015 45,283 3,360 4,297 176 373 53,489  

 
 
The net book value of assets reclassified amount is matched by the amounts Assets Held for Sale (Note 25). 

51



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 

Movements in 2013/14 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 a

n
d

 
B

u
il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t,

 
F

u
rn

it
u

re
 &

 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or Valuation           

At 1 April 2013 33,898 7,990 4,557 172 8 46,625 

additions 0 362 0 0 12 374 

enhancements 149 1 0 0 0 150 

disposals 0 (260) 0 0 0 (260) 

revaluations 3,758 0 0 0 0 3,758 

impairments (1,408) 0 0 0 0 (1,408) 

assets reclassified (49) (185) 0 0 0 (234) 

At 31 March 2014 36,348 7,908 4,557 172 20 49,005 

Accumulated Depreciation            

at 1 April 2013 (1,060) (4,743) (184) 0 0 (5,987) 

depreciation charge in the year (1,136) (568) (38) 0 0 (1,742) 

disposals 0 260 0 0 0 260 

revaluations 140 0 0 0 0 140 

impairments 733 0 0 0 0 733 

assets re-classified (1) 185 0 0 0 184 

At 31 March 2014 (1,324) (4,866) (222) 0 0 (6,412) 

Net Book Value           

at 31 March 2013 32,838 3,247 4,373 172 8 40,638 

at 31 March 2014 35,024 3,042 4,335 172 20 42,593 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Information on Assets Held 
Non-current assets owned by the Council are shown in the table below. A number of existing de-minimis Parks and Woodlands assets were added into the 
asset register as part of a reconciliation to support Transparency Code disclosures. 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment Assets Held 

Number at 
31 March 

2013 
Changes 
2013/14 

Number at 
31 March 

2014 
Changes 
2014/15 

Number at 
31 March 

2015 

Other Land and Buildings: Allotments various sites 0 
various 

sites 
various 

sites 
various 

sites 

  Car Parks  47 (2)  45  0  45 

  Cemeteries  9  0  9  0  9 

  Depots  6 (1)  5  0  5 

  Historic Properties  1  0  1  0  1 

  Houses (GF)  3  0  3  0  3 

  Garage Sites   2  0  2  2  4 

  Lake Assets  7  1  8  0  8 

  Markets  5  2  7  0  7 

  Outdoor Centres  1  0  1  0  1 

  Public Halls  1  0  1  0  1 

  Public Offices  6  0  6  0  6 

  Sports Centres  3  0  3  0  3 

  Swimming Pools  3  0  3  0  3 

  Toilets  34 (1)  33 (1)  32 

  Tourist Information Centres  2  0  2  0  2 

  Other land and buildings  39  1  40  4  44 
Vehicles Plant and 
Equipment: Vehicles  51  5  56  3  59 

  CCTV Schemes  2  0  2  0  2 

Infrastructure Assets: Sea Defences  1  0  1  0  1 

  Sewerage Works  2  0  2  0  2 

  Land Drainage schemes  3  0  3  0  3 

Community Assets: Historic Properties  5  0  5  0  5 

  Parks and Woodland  138 (1)  137  39  176 

Surplus Assets: Toilets  2 (2)  0  0  0 

53



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 
 
 

Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided on all assets with a finite useful life, other than freehold land. Higher value assets such as office buildings and Leisure centres are 
split into components where doing this would have a material impact on the depreciation charged in year. For all remaining assets depreciation is charged, in 
accordance with the accounting policies, generally on opening balance sheet values (see note 7) over periods reflecting the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Classification Detail 
Useful Life 

(Years) 

Other Land and Buildings Car Parks 20 

  Temporary / Insubstantial Buildings 20 

  Public Conveniences 30 

  Other Buildings 50 

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment Vehicles Up to 10 

  IT Equipment 5 

  Wheeled Bins 20 

  Vessels, CCTV and Office Equipment / Furniture 10 

Infrastructure Assets Effluent Treatment Works, Recycling Facilities 10 

  Environmental Improvements 25 

  Flood Defences, 100 

Community Assets Playground Equipment 10 

  Buildings 50 

Non-Operational Assets Buildings 50 

 

Revaluations 
 
Where appropriate, the Council re-values its assets every four years as part of a rolling programme. D L Pogson, FRICS, Property Services Manager, Norfolk 
Property Services (NPS) has been engaged to carry out valuations in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional 
standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) Valuation Standards (6th Edition) and guidance provided by CIPFA.  
 
To ensure that the total asset base is fairly stated at the year end, several other measures are taken on top of the rolling programme of valuations, namely:  
  Review for material change either through enhancement or impairment.   Review of significant assets outside the rolling programme. 
 
 

54



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

A split down of the carrying values by their valuation date is presented below: 
 

 
Other Land 

and 
Buildings 

Vehicles, 
Plant, 

Furniture & 
Equipment  

Infrastructure 
Assets 

Community 
Assets 

Assets 
under 

construction 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carried at historical cost 0 3,302 4,297 176 373 8,148 

Valued at fair value as at:             

 31 March 2015 18,104 0 0 0 0 18,104 

 31 March 2014 13,475 0 0 0 0 13,475 

 31 March 2013 11,774 0 0 0 0 11,774 

 31 March 2012 1,689 58 0 0 0 1,747 

 31 March 2011 241 0 0 0 0 241 

Total Cost or Valuation 45,283 3,360 4,297 176 373 53,489 

 
The major Capital Commitments as at 31/3/2015 are: 
 

Capital Commitments   2014/15 2013/14 

   £000 £000 

Car Park refurbishment 7 160 

Rydal Road Car Park   28 20 

Disabled Facilities Grants   131 112 

Affordable Housing Grants   136 0 

Site Assembly for Affordable Housing  90 0 

Ferry Nab redevelopment   183 7 

Vehicles   996 307 

Play Areas   25 15 

IT Replacement Fund   25 0 

Kendal Enterprise Centre   18 0 

Bins and signage   30 27 

Total Commitments     1,669 648 

 
 
 
 

55



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
21. Impairment Losses    
 
Impairment losses relate to the reduction in value of assets beyond downward revaluations due to a change in general prices.  Examples of impairment losses 
include:  A significant decline in an asset’s carrying amount during the period, that is specific to the asset  Evidence of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset  A commitment by the authority to undertake a significant re-organisation which may no longer require the use of an asset  A significant adverse change in the statutory or other regulatory environment in which the Council operates. 
 
For 2014/15 impairment losses of £0.7m were recognised. This was mainly due to:  a reduction in valuation of Town View Fields hostel where a correction was made to the social housing discount factor previously applied  a change in the estimation technique on museum exhibits which now uses just the insurance valuation  non enhancing capital expenditure which counts as enhancements to the cost of an asset but which is written out in year where this does not 

increase the asset’s value by the same amount. 
 

 

Impairments 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Public Conveniences (127) 0 

Car Parks 0 (44) 

Lake Assets 0 (101) 

Offices (18) (327) 

Historic properties (101) 0 

Museum exhibits (116) 0 

Hostel (281) 0 

Other (74) (471) 

Total Impairments (717) (943) 

Through Provision of Services (260) (717) 

Through Other CIES (457) (226) 

Prior year impairments credited 
to Provision of Services 

448 2 

 
 
 
 
 

56



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

22. Heritage Assets 
 
The Council has a range of heritage assets including museum collections and other land and buildings. Due to their open aspect, access to the Land and 
Buildings is freely available to members of the public. The museum exhibits are contained within various museums and access is available at published times. 
Records of all the exhibits are maintained by the Museum Curator and used for Insurance and stock purposes. In addition, there are a number of individual 
structures within Parks that might be deemed to be heritage in nature. However, due to materiality, they continue to be disclosed as Community Assets within 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
The nature and condition of the Land and Buildings have resulted in the valuer assigning a nominal or nil value to these assets. The movement on the balance 
sheet is explained by revaluation of the museum exhibits and these are as follows: 
 
 

Movements  

M
u

s
e
u

m
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

2
0
1
4

/1
5

 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

2
0
1
3

/1
4

 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3

 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

2
0
1
1

/1
2

 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

2
0
1
0

/1
1

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or Valuation           

At 1 April 2,193 1,916 1,898 1,600 1,578 

additions 0 0 0 0 0 

enhancements 0 0 0 0 0 

revaluations 0 277 18 298 22 

impairments  (116) 0 0 0 0 

assets re-classified  0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March  2,077 2,193 1,916 1,898 1,600 

Net Book Value           

at 1 April 2,193 1,916 1,898 1,600 1,578 

at 31 March  2,077 2,193 1,916 1,898 1,600 

 
 
 
 
 
 

57



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
The schedule of Heritage Assets is as follows: 

Land and Buildings 
 Kendal Castle 
 Monument, Market Square, Kirkby Lonsdale 
 Monument, Castle Howe, Kendal 
 TSB Clock, Ulverston 
 Greenside Limekiln, Kendal 
 Change Bridge, Kendal 
 Swine Market Cross, Kirkby Lonsdale 
 Old Swine Market, Kirkby Lonsdale 
 War Memorial, Ambleside 
 Bowling Fell, Kendal 

 

Museum Exhibits 
 Paintings 

Coins 
Medals 
Stuffed animals 
Archaeological artefacts 
Ceramics 
Plants 
Books 
Statues 
Miscellaneous items 

 
Abbott Hall and Castle Dairy are also Heritage Assets by nature but because they are also being used for operational purposes they are classified as Property, 
Plant and Equipment and accounted as such. Access is open to the public all year for Abbott Hall and during the summer months for Castle Dairy. 
 
Preservation of all land and buildings is managed by the Council’s asset manager in accordance with normal practices. The Museum exhibits are managed by 
the Museum Curator who is employed by Kendal College.  
 
23. Investment Properties 
 
There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the Council’s right to the income and the proceeds 
of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or to repairs, maintenance or enhancement. The 
following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 

 

Investment Properties 2014/15 2013/14 
 £000 £000 

Balance at start of the year 4,247 3,936 

Additions 0 53 

Disposals (40) 0 

Revaluations 593 484 

Reclassifications and amendments 0 0 

Impairments (32) (226) 

Other changes 0 0 

Balance at end of the year 4,768 4,247 

 
 

58



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Depreciation is not applicable to investment properties. Direct income and expenditure relating to investment properties is detailed in Note 17. 
The investment properties owned by the Council include the following: 

 

Investment Properties Assets Held 

Number at 
31 March 

2014 
Changes 
2014/15 

Number at 
31 March 

2015 

Miscellaneous Commercial Properties 16  0 16 

Retail Properties 6  0 6 

Trading/ Industrial Site 3  0 3 

 
 

24. Intangible Assets 
 
The Council recognises two types of intangible fixed asset: software licences, which it has purchased to improve its service delivery and licences to operate 
street markets. The costs of the software licences are being written off to revenue on a straight-line basis over their 5 year life. The amortisation was charged 
to the IT Cost Centre and then absorbed as an overhead across all the services headings. 
 
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 

 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Cost or Valuation:     

Balance at 1 April  944   985  

Additions  42   0  

Impairments  0  (41) 

At 31 March  986   944  

      

Depreciation:     

At 1 April  (709) (572) 

Charge for the Year (73) (137) 

At 31 March (782) (709) 

      

Balance Sheet Amount at 1 April  235   413  

Balance Sheet Amount at 31 March   204   235  

 
 

59



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 
 
 

25. Assets Held for Sale 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

As at year end Stock Ghyll Cottage was assessed meeting the criteria to be moved from other land and buildings into assets held for sale. It is anticipated 
that the sale of this asset will complete during 2015/16. 
 
 
 
 

Movements  

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n
d

 a
n

d
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 

  £000 

Cost or Valuation   

At 1 April 2013 263  

disposals 2013/14 (247) 

impairments 0  

assets re-classified 2013/14 49  

other movements in cost or valuation 0  

Value at 31 March 2014 65  

    

disposals 2014/15 (65) 

impairments 2014/15 0  

assets re-classified 2014/15 268  

Value at 31 March 2015 268  

    
Net Book Value   

at 31 March 2014 65  

at 31 March 2015 268  

60



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

26. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where 
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed 
in the second part of this note.  The CFR has increased in year due to unfinanced capital expenditure on Leisure assets and the vehicle and plant programme. 
 

 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 14,025 23,398 

Capital Investment:     

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 2,163 578 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  1,589 1,359 

Sources of finance:     

Capital receipts (1,095) (9,433) 

Government grants and other contributions (686) (429) 

Sums set aside from revenue:     

Direct revenue contributions (621) (1,382) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (103) (66) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 15,272 14,025 

Explanation of movements in year:     

Decrease in underlying need to borrow MRP + VRP (103) (9,632) 

Increase in underlying need to borrow  1,350 259 

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 1,247 (9,373) 

 
 
27. Leases 
 
Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
The Council has no assets held under finance leases 
 
 

 

61



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Operating Leases 
 
The Council has no land and buildings held as under operating leases. The Council has previously taken out operating leases for the provision of digital printing 
equipment and vehicles.   The future lease payments are expected to be: 

 

Operating lease payments 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

Not later than one year - printing 23 17 

Not later than one year - vehicles 136 135 

Between one year and five years- printing 25 0 

Between one year and five years- vehicles 208 335 

Later than five years 0 0 

Minimum lease payments 392 487 

 
£175k was charged to CIES for operating leases in 2014/15 (£188k in 2013/14). No contingent rents or subleases were payable. 

 

Council as Lessor 
 
Operating Leases 

 

The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:  the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres  to provide accommodation for local businesses.   the Council has granted encroachment leases on the lakebed at Windermere to promote tourism, recreation and  to generate income 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

 

 

Operating lease income 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

Not later than one year 465 526 

Between one year and five years 611 622 

Later than five years 1,243 1,346 

Total 2,319 2,494 

 

62



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments 
following rent reviews.  No contingent rents are receivable or received. The comparators for this note have been amended to bring them in line with the disclosure 
requirements of the Code, the figures in the prior year accounts did not reflect the aggregate income for all years within the relevant banding. 
 
28. Financial Instruments 
 
Categories of Financial Instruments 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

 

  Long-term Current 

 Categories of Financial Instrument 31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Investments:         

Loans and receivables 58 27 6,700 2,000 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 0 0 0 11,217 

Assets held for sale 3,151 54 0 0 

Total Investments 3,209 81 6,700 13,217 

Debtors:         

Loans & receivables 0 0 2,322 2,684 

Total included in Debtors 0 0 2,322 2,684 

Debtors that are not financial instruments 0 0 2,201 1,727 

Total Debtors 0 0 4,523 4,411 

Cash & Cash Equivalents         

Loans and receivables 0 0 7,691 3,106 

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 7,691 3,106 

Borrowings:         

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (12,800) (12,800) 0 0 

Total borrowings (12,800) (12,800) 0 0 

Creditors:         

Loans & receivables 0 0 (3,056) (2,440) 

Total included in Creditors 0 0 (3,056) (2,440) 

Creditors that are not financial instruments 0 0 (3,796) (3,266) 

Total Creditors 0 0 (6,852) (5,706) 

 

63



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

The funds showed as fair value through profit and loss in 2013/14 were recalled from external fund managers during 2014/15. The funds shown as available 
for sale include the investment in Government gilts, the intention is to hold until maturity and £103k of Rent to Mortgage scheme debt held at fair value. 

 

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 

 

The table below shows the impact on the revenue account for 2014/15. 
 

 

 2014/15   2013/14  

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
A

s
s

e
ts

 
a
n

d
 L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
d

 a
t 

a
m

o
rt

is
e
d

 c
o

s
t 

A
s
s
e
ts

 a
t 

fa
ir

 
v
a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
ro

fi
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

s
s

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 H
e
ld

 f
o

r 
S

a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
A

s
s

e
ts

 
a
n

d
 L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
d

 a
t 

a
m

o
rt

is
e
d

 c
o

s
t 

A
s
s
e
ts

 a
t 

fa
ir

 
v
a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
ro

fi
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

s
s

 

T
o

ta
l 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Interest expense 567 0 0 567 843 0 843 

Early repayment premium 0 0 0 0 1,102 0 1,102 
Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 567 0 0 567 1,945 0 1,945 

Interest income (97) (41) (18) (156) (54) (47) (101) 

Total income in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (97) (41) (18) (156) (54) (47) (101) 

Gains on revaluation 0 0 (107) (107) 0 0 0 

Net (gain)/loss for the year 470 (41) (125) 304 1,891 (47) 1,844 

 
 
Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

 

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised 
cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, using 
the following assumptions: 
  for loans from the PWLB the early repayment premium rates of between 2.16% - 2.10% have been used;  no early repayment or impairment is recognised; 

 where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to approximate to fair value; 

 the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 

64



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 

The fair value of the liabilities is higher than the carrying amount. The valuation has been provided by Capita Asset Services using the Net Present Value 
approach, which provides an estimate of the value of payments in the future in today’s terms. This is a widely accepted valuation technique commonly used 
by the private sector. 
 

 

   31 March 2015  31 March 2014 

Liabilities 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair Value 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair Value 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Financial liabilities – PWLB (12,800) (20,436) (12,800) (15,731) 

Short Term Borrowing 0 0 0  0  

Current Creditors (3,056) (3,056) (2,440) (2,440) 

Total Financial Liabilities (15,856) (23,492) (15,240) (18,171) 

 
Assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. These fair values are based on public price quotations 
where there is an active market for the instrument. The exceptions to this treatment are short term debtors and creditors which are carried at cost as this is a 
fair approximation of their value. 

 

 

   31 March 2015  31 March 2014 

Assets 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair Value 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair Value 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Loans and receivables - Long Term Investments 58 58 27 27 

Loans and receivables - Current Investments 6,700 6,704 2,000 2,000 

Loans and receivables – Cash Equivalents 7,691 7,691 3,106 3,106 

Financial Assets Available for Sale 3,151 3,151 54 54 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit & Loss 0 0 11,217 11,217 

Current Debtors 2,322 2,322 2,684 2,684 

Total Financial Assets 19,922 19,926 19,088 19,088 

 
 
 
 
 

65



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 
 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
  credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.  liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.  market risk – the possibility of financial loss to the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

 
Overall Risk Management Procedures 
 
The Council’s Treasury risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on 
the resources available to fund services.  
 
The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations. These 
require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and investment 
guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways:  
  by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;   by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial regulations, standing orders and constitution;   by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:  

 
o The Council’s overall borrowing;  
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;  
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;  
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year; 

  by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties in 
compliance with Government guidance.  

 
These are required to be reported and approved before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are reported with the annual Treasury 
Management Strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure.  
 
The annual Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15 which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by Council on 25 February 2014 and is 
available on the Council website. The key issues within the strategy were: 

 the Authorised Limit for 2014/15 was set at £22.7m. This is the maximum limit of external borrowings or other long term liabilities;  the Operational Boundary was set at £21.3m. This is the expected level of debt and other long term liabilities during the year; and  the maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and 31% based on the Council’s net debt. 
 

66



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

These policies were implemented by financial services team. The Council provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash. 

 
Credit Risk 

 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers.  
 
This risk is minimised through the Treasury Management Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet 
identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Treasury Management Strategy also 
lays down limits on the maximum amounts invested and the duration of investments with financial institution located within specific category. The credit 
criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are detailed below: 
 

Counterparty Limits Fitch Long term 
Rating 

(or equivalent) 
Money 
Limit 

Time 
Limit 

Banks 1 category high quality AAA £3m 6 months 
Banks 1 category medium quality AA £2m 6 months 
Banks 1 category lower quality A £2m 3 months 
Banks 2 category – part nationalised N/A £3m 1 year 
Banks 3 category – Council’s banker ( if not meeting Banks 1) N/A Minimise 1 day 

Building Societies with assets in excess of £1 Billion  - £2m 6 months 

DMADF - Unlimited 6 months 
Gilts, Treasury Bills  AAA £5m 5 years 
Corporate Bonds  AAA £5m 5 years 
Local Authorities N/A £3m 6 months 
Money Market Funds AAA £5m liquid 

 
Banks 1 are UK domiciled banks and non-UK domiciled banks from a country with a minimum sovereign rating of AA. Performance against the approved 
Treasury Strategy has been reported to Council on a quarterly basis and there have been no material breaches of the strategy during the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on  experience of default and un-
collectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions: 
 

 

 
Amount at 
31/3/2015 

Historical 
experience 
of default 

Historical 
experience 

adjusted 
for market 
conditions 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
31/3/2015 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
31/3/2014 

 £000 % % £000 £000 

 A  B C (A x C)   

Loans & Receivables – long term 
investments 58 0.00% 0.00% 0 0 

Loans & Receivables - current investments 6,700 0.20% 0.20% 13 2 

Loans & Receivables - cash equivalents 7,691 0.03% 0.00% 0 0 

Available for Sale - financial investments 3,151 0.02% 0.02% 1 0 

Investec Portfolio 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 3 

Loans & Receivables - customers 2,322 3.39% 3.39% 79 72 

Total Financial Assets 19,922     93 77 
 

 

 
The Council does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £358k of the £2,359k balance (due from its general debtors) is past its due date for 
payment (more than 30 days overdue). The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as follows: 
 

 

Aged debt analysis 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

0 to six months 81 185 

Six months to one year 78 106 

More than one year 199 217 

Total 358 508 

 
 
 

68



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
Liquidity Risk 
 
The Council manages it’s liquidity position though the risk management procedures above, as well as through a comprehensive cash flow management 
system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed.  If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings from the 
money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  
 
There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the Council will 
be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. 
 
The maturity profile of financial liabilities is as follows 

 

 

Maturity profile of financial 
liabilities 

31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

  £000 £000 

Less than one year (3,056) (2,440) 

Between 1 and 5 years 0  0  

Between 5 and 10 years 0  0  

Between 10 and 20 years 0  0  

Between 20 and 30 years 0  0  

Between 30 and 40 years (6,800) (6,800) 

Between 41 and 45 years (6,000) (6,000) 

Total (15,856) (15,240) 

 
 
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
 
Market Risk 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a 
complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 
  borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise  borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall 

69



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise  investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 
 
Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of 
Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments 
will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments 
that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Assistant Director (Resources), under delegated powers, will take the most 
appropriate form of borrowing depending on the prevailing interest rates at the time, taking into account risks. During periods of falling interest rates, and where 
economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a 
proportion of government grant payable on financing costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates 
 
The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used 
to update the budget monitoring projections quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise 
whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable. Currently all of the Council’s borrowing is at fixed rates with the Public Works Loans Board. 
 
According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 
 

 
 

Sensitivity analysis 31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

 £000 £000 

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0  0  

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (209) (308) 

Impact on surplus or deficit on the provision of services (209) (308) 

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets 178  0  

Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 178  0  

 
 
Price Risk 
Price risk relates to the exposure to the Council where the value of assets may vary with fluctuations in the market. This mostly relates to investments in tradable 
equities; the Council does not generally invest in equity shares. 

 

Foreign Exchange Risk 
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 

70



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
29. Inventories 

 

 

Consumable Stores 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance outstanding 1 April 45 36 

Purchases 6 11 

Recognised as an expense in the year (12) (2) 

Written off balances 0 0 

Reversals of write-offs in previous years 0 0 

Balance outstanding 31 March 39 45 

 
The consumable stores at 31 March 2015 include publications, depots, fuel and transport stores, playground equipment and stocks of maps, pump out cords, 
engine covers and floats held at Lake Windermere. 
 
 
 
30. Debtors 
 
The current debtors balance is made up as follows: 
 

 

Debtors 
 31 March 

2015 
 31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

Central Government bodies 168 460 

Other Local Authorities 684 281 

NHS bodies 1 1 

Public corporations and trading funds 4 0 

Bodies external to general government 3,666 3,669 

Total 4,523 4,411 

 
 
 

71



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
These figures are shown net of impairments for non-recovery of debts, these are as follows: 
 

 

Impairment of 
debtors 

Balance at 1 
April 2014 

Debts written 
off in year 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

year 

Balance 31 
March 2015 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Council Taxpayers 160 (16) 26 170 

NDR Ratepayers 321 (87) 81 315 

Sundry Debtors 980 (52) 340 1,268 

Total 1,461 (155) 447 1,753 

 
The increase in year mainly relates to housing benefit overpayments. This is a result of overpayments on claims going back over a number of years; 
depending on the nature of the overpayment, the Council may be able to claim housing benefit subsidy in addition to keeping any cash collected. The Council 
Tax and NDR amounts are only those that relate to the Council’s share of local taxation, not the gross amounts as a billing authority. 
 
 
31. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  31 March 
2015 

 31 March 
2014 

 £000 £000 

Cash held by the Authority 2 2 

Bank current accounts 939 942 

Short-term deposits with building societies and banks 6,750 2,067 

Cash held as part of Short Term Investments 0 95 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,691 3,106 

 

72



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
32. Creditors  
 
The current creditors balances is made up as follows: 

 

Creditors 
 31 March 

2015 
 31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

Central Government bodies (1,413) (1,490) 

Other Local Authorities (1,767) (660) 

NHS bodies (3) (3) 

Public corporations and trading funds (103) (80) 

Bodies external to general government (3,566) (3,473) 

Total  (6,852) (5,706) 

 
33. Provisions 
 
The Council has no general provisions. There may be additional payments due to MMI although this is not currently clear in terms of the timings or amounts 
(see contingent liabilities, note 42). In addition, the Council has been named in a group action brought by a personal search company in respect of their claim 
that the supply of property search information has been unlawfully charged for. The existing provision for this has been updated in the light of the most recent 
estimate of resources required to settle the claim and costs. There is potential that New Burdens grant may be paid by Central Government in relation to 
these costs however, the timing and amount have not been confirmed. 
 
The largest single provision relates to the anticipated costs of rates appeals.  A significant number of appeals relating to the rateable value set by the 
Valuation Office Agency are still outstanding at 31 March 2015, some of which date back to the last revaluation in 2000.  If successful, refunds of 
overpayments will need to be made.   A provision of £851k has been made based on the Council’s share (40%) of the estimated cost of the appeals. 
 

 

Specific provisions 

Balance 
at 1 April 

2014 

Amounts 
used in 

year 

Amounts 
added in 

year 

Balance 
31 March 

2015 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Land Charges and planning (127) 0 (38) (165) 

NDR appeals provision (716) 221 (356) (851) 

Total (843) 221 (394) (1,016) 

 

73



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
 
34. Unusable Reserves 
 
 
The balances on unusable reserves are as follows with the detailed movements explained in the subsequent tables: 

 

Unusable reserve 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

  £000 £000 

A. Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (62) (67) 

B. Capital Adjustment Account (21,877) (22,111) 

C. Revaluation Reserve (23,657) (13,198) 

D. Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (106) 2 

E. Pensions Reserve 34,271 26,673 

F. Untaken Absences Account 212 212 

G. Collection Fund Adjustment Account 601 498 

Total Unusable Reserves (10,618) (7,991) 

 
 
A. Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 

 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of noncurrent assets but for which cash sett lement has yet to take place. 
Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. 
When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. This reserve relates to Rent to Mortgage 
arrangements and an Empty Private Dwelling that was renovated and let to tenants who are paying rent that includes an element to pay for the capital costs 
incurred. 
 

DEFERRED CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April (67) (71) 
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 5 4 

Balance at 31 March (62) (67) 

74



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

B. Capital Adjustment Account 

 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets 
and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisation. The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
It also contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties. 
 

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April (22,111) (14,064) 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 

    

 -  Depreciation/impairment charges for non-current assets 1,786 2,232 

 -  Amortisation of intangible assets 74 137 

 -  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,589 1,359 

 - Movement in value of held for sale assets 0 0 

 -  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 

105 247 

Capital Grants received and applied (640) (419) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (561) (258) 

Total adjustments to CIES 2,353 3,298 

      

Amounts direct from Revaluation Reserve (254) (456) 

      

Capital financing applied in the year:     

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance expenditure (1,095) (9,433) 

Application of grants from Capital Grant Unapplied (46) (9) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (103) (66) 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (621) (1,381) 

Total financing (1,865) (10,889) 

      

Balance at 31 March (21,877) (22,111) 

 
 

75



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

C. Revaluation Reserve 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. 
The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 
  revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost  used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or  disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that 
date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

 

REVALUATION RESERVE 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April (13,198) (9,706) 

Upward revaluation of assets (11,139) (4,174) 
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 

426 226 

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 
posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services  

(10,713) (3,948) 

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 

235 226 

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 19 230 

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 254 456 

Balance at 31 March (23,657) (13,198) 

 
  

76



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

D. Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (including financial instrument held for sale) 

 

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses 
relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. The Council uses the account to manage the 
impact of granting loans at preferential interest rates where these are conducive to the objectives of the Council. The premia for the early payment of PWLB 
loans also goes through the account. The Council also has some financial instruments held for sale; movements in their fair values is credited to this reserve 
and is only released to the General Fund once sold. 
 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT 
(Including Financial Assets Held for Sale) 

2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April 2  3  

Transfer of premium on early repayment to FIAA   1,102  

Funding of premium from Usable capital receipts   (1,102) 

Notional interest in the year charged to the CIES (1) (1) 

Movement in fair value of Financial Instruments Held for Sale (107)   

Balance at 31 March (106) 2  

 

E. Pensions Reserve 

 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and their funding. 
The Council accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing 
years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually 
pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits 
come to be paid. 

 

PENSIONS RESERVE 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April 26,673 33,796 

Re-measurements of net defined benefit pension liability 7,200 (8,050) 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in CIES 

2,829 3,317 

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 

(2,431) (2,390) 

Balance at 31 March 34,271 26,673 

77



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 
 

F. Untaken Absences Account 

 

The Untaken Absences Account absorbs the annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. The balance required as at 31/3/2015 was not judged to be significantly different to 
the existing balance and so no adjustment has been made for the year: 

 

 

UNTAKEN ABSENCES ACCOUNT 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April 212 240 

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 
preceding year 

(212) (240) 

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 212 212 

(Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements)                        

0 (28) 

Balance at 31 March  212 212 

 
G. Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax and Retained Business Rates income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund. 

 

 

COLLECTION FUND ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April 498 51 

Amount by which NDR income credited to the CIES is 
different from NDR income calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 157 489 

Amount by which Council Tax income credited to the 
CIES is different from Council Tax income calculated for 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

(54) (42) 

Balance at 31 March  601 498 

 

78



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

CASHFLOW 
35. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Net surplus (deficit) on provision of services 2,085 (1,153) 

Depreciation, Impairment and Amortisation 1,860 2,367 

Adjustments for Effective Interest Rate (4) 0 

Increase / Decrease in Debtors, Creditors and Inventory (371) 522 

Increase in interest creditors 0 0 

Pension Liability 398 927 

Contribution to/from Provisions 173 592 

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 105 247 

Movement in Investment Property values (561) (258) 

Total adjustment for non-cash movements 1,600 4,397 

Adjust for items that are investing or financing (2,395) (3,139) 

Net Cashflow from Operating Activities 1,290 105 

   

Operating activity cashflows relating to interest:     

Interest received 155 99 

Interest paid (567) (843) 
 

36. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
 

 
2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Purchase of PPE, investment property and intangible assets (1,618) -502 

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (95,045) -93,623 

Other payments for investing activities (1,883) 0 

Proceeds from the sale of PPE, investment property and intangible assets 1,465 705 

Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 98,576 100,594 

Other receipts from investing activities 1,251 799 

Net cash flows from investing activities 2,746 7,973 

79



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 
 

 
37. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

 

Financing Cash Flows 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 

Other receipts from financing activities 549  533  

Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 0  (8,143) 

Other payments for financing activities 0  1,102  

Net cash flows from financing activities 549  (6,508) 

 
OTHER NOTES 
 
 
38. Trust Funds 
 
The Royal Wedding Fund 
 

The Council acted as Trustee for the Royal Wedding Fund. Under the terms of the trust, income from investments was to be used to finance holidays in the 
Lake District for disadvantaged families in urban areas.  Cabinet 9 April, 2014 approved a recommendation to wind up the Royal Wedding Trust Fund, they 
also agreed that the cash still left in the fund should now be split between charities that have aims and objectives similar to those of the Royal Wedding fund. 
This was actioned during 2014/15. 

 

Royal Wedding Fund 
 31 March 

2015 
 31 March 

2014 

 £000 £000 

Opening balance 63 60 

Dividends & interest received in the year 1 3 

Expenditure in year (64) 0 

Closing balance 0 63 

 
 
 

 

80



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

39. Related Parties 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or 
to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been 
constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
 
Central Government 
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the 
Council operates, provides much of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties 
(e.g. council tax bills, business rates, housing benefits). Grants received from Government Departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 10 on 
reporting for resources allocation decisions. Grant received in 2014/15 is shown in Note 19. 
 
Members 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies.  The total of members’ allowances and expenses paid in 2014/15 
totals £277k (2013/14 £280k) and is shown in Note 13. Members of the Council sit on the boards of various other organisations. SLDC appoints two Members 
to the Lake District National Park Authority and one Member to the Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority. Members have also been separately elected onto 
Town and Parish Councils and the County Council, as well the boards of other bodies such as South Lakes Housing. These are disclosed within the Members’ 
register of interests which is open to public inspection at the Town Hall during office hours and on the Council’s web-site.  
 
Members as a group are required to be identified as related parties. The aggregation option for individual transactions has been taken on the basis that the 
Council has satisfied itself that all the transactions entered into have been concluded in accordance with its procedures for preventing undue influence. A review 
of the sales and purchase ledger as well as a review of company directorships and involvement with other partner organisations revealed no material related 
party transactions. Goods and services of £12k were procured from and Discretionary Business Rates Relief of £3k were awarded to organisations that 
Members, or their close family, were involved with.   
 
Officers 
No declarations were made by senior Officers of the Council for the year ended 31 March 2015. 
 
Other Public Bodies 
Other related parties are other Local Authorities, particularly Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Police Authority and local Parish Councils (see Note 2, Notes 
to the Collection Fund, Section E in this Statement of Accounts). Shared service arrangements are in place with Eden District Council for Revenues and Benefits 
and Information Technology services. The Council is also a member of the Cumbria business rates pool. 
Transactions with the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme are shown below at Note 40. 
 
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council 
South Lakes Housing was an arm’s length organisation of the Council, managing housing services on behalf of the Council until 5 March 2012 when the Council 
Housing stock was wholly transferred and SLH became an independent Registered Social Landlord. The board of South Lakes Housing contains 4 SLDC 
Members. During 2014/15 the Council acted as an agent for South Lakes Housing collecting housing rents. Similarly South Lakes Housing collected income on 
behalf of SLDC in relation to Town View Fields Hostel. These amounts are included within the Agency Services disclosures (note 12). In addition, the Council 

81



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

recognised capital income from South Lakes Housing in relation to its share of receipts from housing disposals and VAT shelter payments (£1,588k in total).  
Although there is potential for the Council to significantly influence the operating policies of South Lakes Housing, it is judged that that there is not a material 
associate relationship as the Council has made no monetary investment, has no right to any operating surpluses (other than through the VAT shelter and Right 
To Buy agreement) or exposure to operating losses or other liabilities. 
 
Other related parties 
The Council is a member of the Connected Cumbria Partnership (not currently active) comprising Cumbria County Council, all Cumbrian district councils, the 
Lake District National Park Authority and Cumbria Police. The partnership owns the intellectual rights to some open source software with no monetary value. 
 
The Council acts as accountable body to a number of small groups and partnerships some of which receive contributions from the Council. None of these 
arrangements are regarded as material. 
 
 
40. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes  
 
Participation in Pension Schemes 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although 
these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments and to disclose them at the time 
employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Cumbria County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with 
investment assets. 
 
The Council also participates in the Pension Scheme for Greater Manchester (administered by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council) in relation to a 
number of pensioners who retired from predecessor Councils which were replaced by South Lakeland in 1974. This is also a defined benefit salary schemes. 
 
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are 
eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. For budgeting purposes, the actual 
contributions rates that are charged against the General Fund are set on a tri-annual basis by the Actuary to meet the net liabilities as measured at that date. 
The contributions required may vary in future depending on conditions at the time of subsequent valuations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in 
Reserves Statement during the year:  
 

 

 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme Revenue Transactions 
Local Government Pension 

Scheme 
Discretionary Benefits 

Arrangements 

  2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES):         

Cost of Services:         

 -  current service cost 1,768  1,884  0  0  

 -  past service costs 0  0  0  0  

 -  settlements and curtailments   25  0  0  

 - Pension Admin costs 42  40  0  0  

Financing and investment income and expenditure:         

 -  Net interest cost on net liability 821  1,195  198  174  

Total post employment benefit charged to CIES 2,631  3,144  198  174  

Other post employment benefit charged to CIES         

 -  return on plan assets (8,834) (2,131) 0  0  

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to demographic assumptions 0  1,760  0  32  

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to financial assumptions 15,605  (6,413) 429  (94) 

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to other assumptions 0  (1,728) 0  524  

Total charged to the CIES 9,402  (5,368) 627  636  

Movement in reserves statement:         
 -  reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the 
provision of services for post employment benefits in accordance 
with the code 

(2,631) (3,144) (198) (174) 

Actual amount charged against the general fund in the year:         

 -  employers' contributions payable to scheme 2,131  2,091  300  299  
 

 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement from 1 April 2009 when IAS19 
was introduced to the 31 March 2015 is a loss of £11.456m. 
 
The projected employer contributions for the forthcoming financial year (2015/16) are estimated to be £2.420m 
 

83



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 
 

 

Funded liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 

Unfunded liabilities: 
Discretionary Benefits 

Arrangements 

 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening balance at 1 April 102,213  105,597  4,628  4,291  

Current service cost 1,768  1,884  0  0  

Interest cost 4,426  4,366  198  174  

Contributions by scheme participants 538  481  0  0  

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to demographic assumptions 0  1,760  429  32  

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to financial assumptions 15,605  (6,413) 0  (94) 

 -  actuarial (gain)/losses due to other assumptions 0  (1,728) 0  524  

Benefits paid (3,755) (3,759) (300) (299) 

Curtailments 0  25  0  0  

Closing balance at 31 March 120,795 102,213 4,955 4,628 

 
The weighted average duration of scheme liabilities is 17 years.  
 
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets: 

 

 

Assets: Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

Unfunded Assets 

 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening balance at 1 April 80,168  76,093  0 0  

Expected rate of return 3,605  3,171  0  0 

Return on plan assets 8,834  2,131  0  0 

Pension Administration Costs (42) (40) 0  0 

Employer contributions 2,131  2,091  300  299 

Contributions by scheme participants 538  481  0  0 

Benefits paid (3,755) (3,759) (300) (299) 

Closing balance at 31 March 91,479  80,168  0  0  

 

84



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. 
Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.  
 
 

Trend of Assets and Liabilities 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Present value of liabilities:         

Local Government pension scheme 120,795  102,213  105,598  91,930 82,363 

Discretionary benefits (disclosed from 2009/10 onwards) 4,955  4,628  4,291  4,078 4,055 

Total 125,750 106,841 109,889 96,008 86,418 

Present value of assets:         

Local Government pension scheme (91,479) (80,168) (76,093) (68,166) (62,993) 

Discretionary benefits 0  0  0  0 0 

Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme: 34,271 26,673 33,796 27,842 23,425 

 
In addition to the underlying scheme assets and liabilities, the Council also made a £1.847m prepayment relating to the lump sum employer contributions for 
2015/16 and 2016/17. This generated a saving compared to making the payments annually. This has been presented in the balance sheet as reducing the 
overall liability to £32.424m.  
 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £34.3m 
has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council (£29.9m) as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit 
mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy:  The deficit on the Local Government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before 

payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary  Finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are actually paid. 
 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years 
dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Mercer Limited, an independent firm of actuaries, has assessed liabilities; estimates for 
the Cumbria County Pension Fund (part of the Local Government Pension Scheme) are based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1st April 2014. 
 
 
 
 

85



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

 
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been: 

 

 Actuarial Assumptions 
Local Government Pension 

Scheme 

  2014/15 2013/14 

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:     

Equity investments 6.5% 7% 

Bonds 2.2% 3.4% 

Other 2.9% 4.3% 

Mortality assumptions:     

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:     

 -  men 23 23 

 -  women 25.6 25.5 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:     

 -  men 25.8 25.7 

 -  women 28.8 28.7 

Rate of inflation - CPI 2.0% 2.4% 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% 3.9% 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.0% 2.4% 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.2% 4.4% 

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 50% 50% 

 
The Cumbria County Pension Fund’s assets (part of the Local Government Pension Scheme) consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total 
assets held: 
 

Asset categories 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

 % % % % 

Equity investments 52.8 57.8 55.4 51.6 

Government Bonds 18.4 15.6 15.9 16.0 

Other Bonds 7.4 11.2 15.8 16.0 

Property 10.6 7.1 5.6 6.4 

Cash/Liquidity 3.5 5.9 0.6 1.6 

Other 7.3 2.4 6.7 8.4 

Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

 

86



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

History of Experience Gains and Losses 
The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve can be analysed into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or 
liabilities at 31 March of the relevant year: 
 

 

 
2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 

Trend of Gains and Losses % % % % % 

Difference between the expected and actual return on assets 9.7% 2.7% 7.2% 1.1% 2.8% 

Experience gains and losses on liabilities 0.0% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 7.8% 
 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The following quantifies the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions on the plan assets and liabilities. This shows the impact of changes in each of the key 
factors; combinations of changes or changes of a different magnitude would potentially give a different out-come.  

 

 Sensitivity     
analysis 

Central 
£000 

+0.1% pa 
discount 

rate 
£000 

+0.1% pa 
inflation 

£000 

+0.1% pa 
pay 

growth 
£000 

+1 yr life 
expectancy 

£000 

Liabilities 125,750  123,641  127,894  126,137  128,226  

Assets (91,479) (91,479) (91,479) (91,479) (91,479) 

Deficit/surplus 34,271  32,162  36,415  34,658  36,747  

 
41. Contingent Liabilities 
 
At 31 March 2015, the Council had the following material contingent liabilities: 
 

  The Council entered into an agreement with North Housing Association Ltd (now Home Housing) in 1989/90. Home Housing have built a number of 
affordable houses for rent in Kendal and Ambleside on land donated by the Council in return for nomination rights. In excess of two thousand houses 
have been built in seventeen Local Housing Authority areas, including South Lakeland, using £100m of guaranteed loan stock. The agreement requires 
participating housing authorities to reimburse the Association for any loss it could not finance from its own resources, including those arising from certain 
legislative changes. These changes would make the houses subject to rent regulation or to the right-to-buy, or change the Association’s tax position. 
No guarantees have been called to date under this scheme. 

 
 In September 1992, the Council’s then insurers, MMI Limited, ceased accepting new business. The Council had a number of outstanding claims with 

MMI which have now all been settled. Under a scheme of arrangement the Council may be required to repay up to £264k relating to claims settled 

87



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

since September 1992 if MMI Limited are left with insufficient assets to meet liabilities. During 2012/13 the Directors of MMI instigated the scheme of 
arrangement and the Council paid £40k during 2013/14 under the scheme.  No further material payments are currently expected under the scheme.  
  The Council has made a provision for NNDR Appeals based upon its best estimates of the actual liability as at the year-end in known appeals. It is not 
possible to quantify appeals that have not yet been lodged with the Valuation Office so there is a risk to the Council that national and local appeals may 
have a future impact on the accounts. 
  In April 2003 the Council transferred the management of its leisure centres to South Lakeland Leisure Trust (Lakes Leisure), a member of the Cumbria 
Pension Fund who pays contributions to meet the current and future costs of service of their employees. The Council remains responsible for the costs 
of service of employees who transferred where the full cost of their pension was not fully recovered prior to transfer. This cost has been included in the 
contribution rates payable by the Council since April 2005. 
  In April 2004 the Council transferred the management of its housing stock to South Lakes Housing. South Lakes Housing became a member of the 
Cumbria Pension Fund and paid contributions to meet the current and future costs of service of their employees. The Council remains responsible for 
the costs of service of employees who transferred in April 2004 where the full cost of their pension was not fully recovered prior to transfer. This cost 
has been included in the contribution rates payable by the Council since April 2005. During 2011/12 South Lakes Housing became an Industrial and 
Provident Society prior to the housing transfer.  At that time South Lakes Housing paid £3m towards the net pension liability of existing employees, 
deferred members and pensioners.  The Council will be responsible for any further costs for these staff in relation to service prior to the transfer date. 
  Certain bodies can only become a member of the Cumbria Pension Fund if there is a sponsoring body willing to provide a guarantee.  The guarantee 
means that if such an admitted body fails to pay its pension obligations to Cumbria Pension Fund then the guarantor will take on those obligations.  The 
Council has given such a guarantee in respect of South Lakes Housing.  As at the end of March 2015 no guarantees had been exercised.  In the case 
of South Lakes Housing the Council is acting as a guarantor for existing staff, deferred members and existing pensioners at the transfer date only.  
  The Council has agreed to a number of warranties under the stock transfer agreements with South Lakes Housing.  Such arrangements are common 
place in such negotiations.  The key warranties are as follows: 

o Asbestos indemnity – the Council has indemnified South Lakes Housing for all costs, claims and lawsuits against SLH which arise from any 
person being exposed to asbestos unless there is negligence on the part of SLH.   The stock condition survey estimated South Lakes Housing 
will need to spend £2.2m on asbestos treatment/encapsulation etc. Should they spend more than the £2.2m they can call on the warranty for 
re-imbursement providing the works are carried out in accordance with the asbestos protocol. 

o  Management by South Lakes Housing – the Council has indemnified SLH, for six years post the transfer date, against all claims, demands, 
costs, losses and liabilities in connection with any services provided by SLH as the Council’s ALMO under the management agreement before 
the date of transfer provided that SLH meet all insured costs and the first £250k of any uninsured liabilities. 

o Disrepair Claims – the Council has indemnified SLH against costs and expenses in respect of any matters arising or disrepair occurring prior 
to the transfer date provided that South Lakes Housing mitigate such damages by carrying out any works required as part of its programme of 
qualifying works. 

o Staff Warranties – the Council has indemnified SLH against all costs and claims, damages and expenses incurred by SLH in connection from 
staff relating to breach of employment contracts or employment law prior to the date of transfer.  The indemnity is limited to £250,000, to cover 
the sum of all eligible claims against the warranties. 

88



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
The Core Financial Statements 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (D) 
 

o Environmental Pollution – the Council has warranted for 30 years from the date of transfer that SLH could claim up to £55m for dwellings that 
have been contaminated by environmental pollution.  At the time of signing the transfer agreement the Council had been in full compliance with 
Environmental Law and to the best of its knowledge or belief knew of no circumstances which may prevent this in the future.  Also there were 
no current or pending claims of this nature against the Council.  The Council has purchased insurances against the need to pay South Lakes 
Housing under this warranty until 2022. 

 

 In 2006 Berners Bridge and Clare House Lane Bridge, which enabled access to the promenade over the railway in Grange-over-Sands, were 
removed by the Council. In 2009 a planning inspector ruled that both were public rights of way and ruled that Cumbria County Council should add 
them to the definitive map.  
 
In 2011 Clare House Lane Bridge was rebuilt by the Council and made available for public use. In 2014 the Ramblers Association served a notice 
under Section 130 of the Highways Act 1980 upon Cumbria County Council requiring them to reinstate Berners Lane Footbridge. Cumbria County 
Council supports a proposal to create a link path between Berners Lane and Clare House Lane, thereby removing the need to re-build Berners 
Bridge.  However the court would have to decide on what order to make and would have to decide whether to make an order that the Council rebuilds 
Berners Bridge or alternatively whether to accept the less expensive option of creating a link to Clare House Lane. 
 
In the event that the court were to order that Berners Bridge be rebuilt the cost to the Council would be approximately £500,000. It is highly unlikely 
that the court would require the bridge to be restored in 2015/16 due to the regulatory requirements that apply to such a project.   

 
42. Contingent Assets 
  Right to Buy sharing agreement – as with other agreed stock transfers, the Council has entered into an agreement with South Lakes Housing relating 

to the future sales under the Preserved Right to Buy (PRTB) rules.  This relates to any future sales of the transferred stock to existing tenants.  The 
Council will receive capital receipts at the end of each financial year for any properties sold within the year.  The value of the receipt is calculated using 
a formula that takes the net income foregone by SLH from the total proceeds from the sale of dwellings for the year.  There has been £1m of capital 
receipts from SLH in relation to this during 2014/15 (£1m in 2013/14). 
  VAT shelter arrangements – in normal circumstances South Lakes Housing is not able to reclaim VAT on improvement works to dwellings.  The VAT 
shelter is an arrangement, used in every transfer since 2002, with HMRC’s agreement, whereby SLH can reclaim VAT on future improvement works to 
the transferred stock.  The value of the works to be undertaken under the VAT shelter arrangements total £96.038m, on which there will be a further 
£19.208m VAT recoverable over 15 years starting in 2012/13. The Council has agreed a 50/50 share of the VAT with SLH.  The estimated value of the 
VAT shelter savings for the Council is £9.6m over 15 years. £564k was received during 2014/15 (£749k in 2013/14). 

 

 Disposals claw back agreement – as part of the stock transfer with South Lakes Housing the Council negotiated a claw back arrangement for any future 
sales of land that had previously transferred.  There are some exceptions to this arrangement which include land that is sold for community benefit, 
highways and to provide utility supplies.  The Council will treat any monies received under this agreement as a capital receipt to support the capital 
programme.  
 

89



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Collection Fund 2014/15 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT (E) 
 

 

 

2013/14 2014/15 

£000 £000 Note £000 £000 

INCOME 

(81,427) Council Tax (Gross) (82,119) 

7,094 Less Council Tax Discounts 7,454 

5,364 Less Council tax reduction scheme 5,076 

(68,969) Net Income from Council Tax (69,589) 

(4) Local Council Tax Discounts from General Fund (4) 

(39,936) Non-Domestic Rates 3 (40,230) 

(108,909) TOTAL INCOME (109,823) 

EXPENDITURE 

50,725   Cumbria County Council Precept 50,799   

8,938   Cumbria PCC Precept 9,124   

9,008   SLDC (inc Parish) Precepts 9,064   

207 Council Tax Amounts written-off  123 

20 Council tax impairment of debt  80 

68,898 Council Tax Precepts and Demands 69,190 

19,275 Central Government share 19,786 

3,855 Cumbria County Council share 3,957 

15,420 SLDC share 15,828 

101 Transitional protection payments 65 

276 NDR Amounts written-off 218 

145 Increase / (reduction) in NDR debt Impairment  (15) 

0 NDR appeals provision utilised in year (554) 

1,790 Increase / (reduction) in NDR appeals provision 891 

297 Cost of Collection Allowance 298 

41,159 Non-Domestic Rates expenditure 40,474 

110,057 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 109,664 

(75) Council Tax (Surplus)/Deficit for the Year (403) 

1,223 NDR (Surplus)/Deficit for the year 244 

1,148 TOTAL (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (159) 

(32) SLDC share b/f CTax deficit 4 0 

(32) Cumbria PCC share b/f CTax deficit 0 

(184) Cumbria County Council share b/f CTax deficit 0 

0 SLDC share of projected NDR surplus 59 

0 Central share of projected NDR surplus 74 

0 County share of projected NDR surplus 15 

(248) Total contributions for prior years  148 

393 Council Tax (Surplus) / Deficit at 1 April 4 70 

0 NDR (Surplus) / Deficit at 1 April 1,223 

70 Council Tax (Surplus) / Deficit at 31 March 4 (333) 

1,223 NDR (Surplus) / Deficit at 31 March 4 1,615 

1,293 TOTAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT AT 31 MARCH 4 1,282 

90



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Collection Fund 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND (E) 
 

1. General 
 

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. 
The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and 
the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates. 
 

2. Council Tax 
 

Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential dwellings, which have been classified into eight Valuation 
Bands using estimated 1 April 1991 values for this specific purpose.  Individual taxes are calculated by estimating the amount of income 
required to be taken from the Collection Fund by Cumbria County Council (£50.799m), Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner (Cumbria 
PCC, £9.124m) and the Council (£9.064m) for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the Council Tax Base (the total number of properties in 
each Band adjusted by a proportion to convert the number to a Band D equivalent and adjusted for discounts): 43,735 for 2014/15 (43,672 for 
2013/14).  This basic amount of Council Tax for a Band D property of £1,577.36 (£1,572.43 for 2013/14) is multiplied by the proportion 
specified for the particular Band to give an individual amount due.  The basic amount of Council Tax varies according to Parish precepts levied 
on individual areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Collection Fund 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND (E) 
 

 
The Council Tax base for 2014/15 was calculated on the following basis: 
 

 

      2014/15 2013/14 

Band Chargeable Proportion Band D Band D 

  Dwellings of Band D Equivalent Equivalent 

  

(net of 
discounts) 

Tax Dwellings Dwellings 

A 2,892 6/9 1,928 1,899 

B 7,815 7/9 6,079 5,994 

C 9,809 8/9 8,719 8,745 

D 8,658 9/9 8,658 8,652 

E 6,522 11/9 7,972 7,994 

F 4,206 13/9 6,076 6,060 

G 2,644 15/9 4,406 4,415 

H 226 18/9 452 467 

All Bands 42,773   44,289 44,225 

Allowance for 1.25% late collection  
 

         
(554) 

         
(553) 

Council Tax 
Base 

    43,735 43,672 

 
 

 
3. National Non-Domestic Rates 
 
Non-Domestic Rates are organised on a national basis.  The Government has specified an amount (rate) of 48.2p for 2014/15 (47.1p for 
2013/14). A small business rate relief scheme is also in operation whereby, providing certain conditions are met, occupiers of properties with a 

92



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Collection Fund 2014/15 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND (E) 
 

rateable value less than £18,000 pay a reduced rate of 47.1p and can also qualify for rate relief. Subject to the effects of transitional 
arrangements, local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying their Rateable Value by the appropriate rate.   
 
The Council is responsible for collecting rates due from the ratepayers in its area, the total non-domestic rateable value as at 31 March 2015 is 
£107.5m, (£106.9m is 31 March 2014). 
 
From 1 April 2014 SLDC joined the Cumbria Business Rates Pool, administered by Cumbria County Council. The amount retained by SLDC 
(£15.828m) is transferred into the General Fund and then reduced by a tariff payment (£13.840m), this is because under the previous system, 
SLDC collected much more in rates than it received back through grant. Depending on the performance in year, the retained amount is further 
adjusted through a system of top up payments and levies so that if collection is better than anticipated SLDC will retain more income but a 
share of this is also returned to central government. The Council is also protected to a degree if performance is not as high as expected. 
Membership of the Cumbrian Pool gives the authority a beneficial position in relation to levy payments. 
 
The NNDR income, after reliefs and provisions, was £40.230m (£39.936m for 2013/14)  
 
4. Collection Fund Surplus 
 
Government Regulations prescribe that transactions relating to Council Tax and NDR must be accounted for separately in the Collection Fund.  
Any surpluses or deficits are apportioned in proportion to the precepts (Council Tax) or shares (NDR) payable. Amounts are transferred to each 
body in accordance with a statutory timetable. The SLDC shares (NDR) and precepts (Ctax) shown on the face of the collection fund are 
adjusted in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to recognise the Council’s share of any surplus/deficit. This is however 
reversed out under statute to the Collection Fund adjustment account so that the General Fund retains the amounts agreed when the budgets 
were approved. 
 
The Collection fund statement shows the level of surplus or deficit at the end of 2014/15 identified between Council Tax and NDR.  
 
 

93



94



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

 
1. Scope of Responsibility 
 
South Lakeland District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The 
Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of 
its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
South Lakeland District Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of  Governance, 
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework “Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government”. A copy of the code is on our website at 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk or can be obtained on written request to the Council at South 
Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria, LA9 4DQ. 
 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code, identifies any areas 
of weakness with an action plan to address these weaknesses, and also meets the 
requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended 
by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the 
publication of a statement on internal control. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 
came into force from April 2011 and continue to apply to this year’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 
This document has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/Solace Delivering 
Good Governance Framework 2007 (inc. Addendum 2012) and the Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government, Guidance Note for English Authorities; together with 
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government. 
 
 
2. Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes for the direction and 
control of the authority and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and 
leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk or failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of South Lakeland 
District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. 

95

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

The governance framework has been in place at South Lakeland District Council for the 
year ending 31 March 2015 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts. 
 
 
3. The Principles of Good Governance  

 
The CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
sets out six core principles of good governance, these are:  
 
Principle 1 – Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the 
community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. 
 
Principle 2 – Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose 
with clearly defined functions and roles.  
 
Principle 3 – Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.  
 
Principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk. 
  
Principle 5 – Developing the capacity and capability of Members and Officers to be 
effective.  
 
Principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability.  
 
The key elements in the Governance Framework are referenced to the above principles. 
 
 
4. The Governance Framework 

 
The following paragraphs describe the key elements of the systems and processes that 
comprise the authority’s governance arrangements: 
 
A Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and 

intended outcomes for citizens and service users (principle 1)  The Council’s vision and priorities are developed through joint working and 
consultation with our partners and local communities.  The Council Plan set out the Council’s vision, values, priorities and targets in making 
South Lakeland the best place to Live, Work and Explore.   Corporate, community and county-wide strategies are linked and all parties have 
the opportunity to influence the planning process through widespread community 
consultation and engagement.  The Council Plan and the Financial Strategy incorporate the Council’s key 
improvement areas and focuses attention on community and corporate priorities.  Performance Management ensures that the Council’s priorities are driven down 
through service and individual action plans and facilitates continuous improvement, 
monitoring and reporting of achievements. 

96



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

 
B Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications on the authority’s 

governance arrangements (principle 1)  The Council Plan is reviewed annually, most recently in February 2015, and the 
Council’s vision and priorities have been revised to reflect changing aspirations both 
locally and nationally.  The One South Lakeland Partnership Board (formerly the Local Strategic 
Partnership) has been reviewed and key partners from across the district have 
agreed that working together to deliver priorities for the area are better achieved in 
a more joined up and co-ordinated way through the Board. Priorities linked to the 
Council Plan have been identified and task and finish groups are set up to deliver 
the outcomes demonstrating a more robust partnership approach to delivery.  The Council works with others to achieve priority outcomes. It has a partnership 
protocol, which incorporates the governance arrangements with our partners.   The Council Plan was developed alongside the Medium Term Financial Plan.  The 
resource information and implications of the Workforce both feature in the 
Directorate Service Plans and reflect the vision, key objectives, targets and risks.   

      
C Translating the vision into objectives for the authority and its partnerships 

(principle 1) - Included in B above  
 
D Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 

accordance with the authority’s objectives and for ensuring that they 
represent the best use of resources and value for money (principle 1)  The Financial Strategy and Medium Term Financial Plan is developed in parallel 
with the priorities and objectives set out in the Council Plan.  Annual costs of services are measured and compared against relevant comparator 
authorities.  Annual service plans for each directorate within the Council set out the lead group 
and contributors responsible for achieving the outcomes in the Council Plan.   The plans are supported by annual performance appraisal reviews with staff to 
ensure that everyone understands their individual and team contributions to 
corporate outcomes and targets.  The Performance Sub Committee has ensured that performance is in line with 
targets on a quarterly cycle and monitored service quality, requiring explanations 
where service levels fall short of expected standards.   The Council uses Covalent to manage performance against targets and monitors 
the progress of key projects which contribute to achievement of the Council’s priority 
outcomes. 

 
E Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-

executive, scrutiny and Officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements 
and protocols for effective communication in respect of the authority and 
partnership arrangements (principle 2)  The Council’s business is conducted in accordance with the Constitution which 
governs its business responsibilities and activities.   The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and 
the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. 

97



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

 The role and responsibilities of all Members, senior Officers and the Council’s 
committee structure are clearly defined.  The Constitution also details the extent of delegated powers and includes 
procedural and contract rules and financial regulations.  The responsibility of statutory Officers such as the Head of Paid Service, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151) are clearly defined.  The Cabinet is responsible for all the functions and duties of the Council which are 
specified in legislation, and which are not specifically reserved in the Constitution to 
the Council or any Committee.   Cabinet is supported and challenged by the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Performance Sub Committee which play active roles in scrutinising 
decisions, policy and performance, including the performance of other 
organisations.  Each Cabinet Member has portfolio responsibilities for leading strategic matters. 
They are required to sign and accept their respective job descriptions and to report 
to Performance Sub Committee annually.  The Council publishes a list of intentions to take key decisions containing details of 
key decisions to be made by the Cabinet and Directors under their delegated 
powers. It has specified that a key decision is one that will involve the saving or 
spending over £60,000 or which will significantly affect communities in two or more 
wards.  The Constitution is updated regularly to reflect any legislative changes and following 
consultation with the public and other interested parties. The Council also uses a 
Constitution Review Working Group, made up of Members and Officers to ensure 
that the document is comprehensive and relevant.   Formal protocols are detailed in the Constitution including the relationship between 
Members and Officers, the Leader and Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Person and Member Champions.  These are reviewed on a regular 
basis. 

 
F Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 

standards of behaviour for Members and Officers (principle 3)  The Council’s Constitution contains formal codes of conduct that articulate the 
standards of ethical behaviour that are expected from Members and Officers. These 
incorporate procedures for the disclosure of interests and offers of gifts and 
hospitality.  The Council’s Standards Committee promotes and maintains high standards of 
conduct including instigating reviews to strengthen ethical arrangements and 
dealing with allegations of misconduct against Members.  The Council takes a proactive approach to both prevent and detect fraud. This is 
supported by the anti-fraud and corruption policy, whistleblowing policy Internal 
Audit programmes, fraud investigations, participation in National Fraud Initiative 
exercises, and publication of proven cases whether attempted from within or from 
outside the organisation.   Members and Officers are reminded and encouraged to report any concerns about 
malpractice through an annual leaflet.  Members are required by law to complete a declaration of interests that may conflict 
with the business of the Council and also report any changes within 28 days of these 
occurring. Each year Members are prompted to review their declaration of interest 

98



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

to ensure that they are up to date.  The Standards Committee regularly reviews the 
register interests. Declaration of Interest forms completed by Members are available 
to view on the Council’s website www.southlakeland.gov.uk. In addition, Officers are 
required to declare any gifts and hospitality over £25 and Members are required to 
declare any over £50.  The Local Code adopted by the Council sets out the principles of good governance 
and Members are required to support and promote these principles by leadership 
and example through acting in ways that preserve public confidence. The code of 
conduct for Members was reviewed during 2013 and took on board the Committee 
for Standards in Public Life changes to the definitions of the seven general 
principles.  The Employee Code of Conduct was also reviewed during 2013 together 
with the Member/Officer protocol which was reviewed and renamed 
Member/Employee Relationships protocol and was adopted in March 2014.  Members and Officers are kept informed of developments with regard to standards 
of conduct matters through briefing notes and formal development sessions. 

 
G Reviewing the effectiveness of the authority’s decision-making framework, 

including delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships and 
robustness of data quality (principle 6)  The Constitution is reviewed and updated annually and or as needed to reflect any 
legislative changes.  The Constitution Working Group considers changes necessary throughout the year.  The Constitution includes a regularly reviewed and updated Scheme of Delegations 
which sets out the levels of delegated authority of Officers and elected Members.   A Partnership protocol is also reviewed regularly.  Robust data quality is important to enable the Council to make effective decisions 
and underpin the Performance Management Framework. Data Quality is being 
embedded across the Council. Our Open Data and Transparency pages on the 
website also provide a range of information to the public, in line with Central 
Government Transparency requirements.  

 
H Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and managing 

risks and demonstrating clear accountability (principle 4)  Risks are linked to Council Plan priorities and Service Plans. Risks (and their 
controls) that could impact on the Council Plan are reported to the Performance Sub 
Committee. Audit Committee also consider both the framework and actions to 
manage corporate risk to assure themselves that risk management arrangements 
are effective.  As part of the development of both corporate and service plans risks facing the 
Council or a particular service in its delivery of that plan are identified.  This ensures 
that key obstacles to the delivery of the corporate vision are identified and managed 
at all tiers across the Council.   Within the corporate planning process the risks to achieving the corporate objectives 
are identified and prioritised. Action plans are developed for significant risks and the 
Senior Management Team and Cabinet are responsible for managing these risks.  The service planning process includes an assessment to identify and prioritise the 
risks to achieving service objectives. Assistant Directors are responsible for 
managing those risks. Key risks are reported quarterly to Senior Management Team 

99

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

for consideration as to whether the risk is in fact a strategic risk or actions to mitigate 
or reduce the impact of that risk is agreed.    South Lakeland District Council has adopted a project management methodology 
that is applied to all significant projects within the Council. The methodology includes 
a requirement that the project manager is responsible for ensuring that risks are 
identified, recorded and regularly reviewed.    Risk management is also embedded within corporate business processes including 
financial planning, policy making and review.  In relation to partnerships, as part of the corporate and strategic, service and 
operational risk assessments, risks associated with partnership working are 
identified and prioritised. The Council has a partnership protocol that provides 
guidance in respect of its partnership working arrangements. This includes guidance 
on appropriate risk management approaches and assurance arrangements.   The Council’s Procurement Strategy links to Risk Management and Partnership 
working.   The Council has, in accordance with the Civil Contingencies Act, business continuity 
plans for key services to establish and manage the risks that may interrupt or stop 
effective service delivery.   The Council has a Health, Safety and Wellbeing committee and is committed to 
adopting health and safety requirements. These risks are identified at an operational 
level and form part of the service and operational action plans. 

 
I Ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are 

developed and maintained (principle 3)  The Counter-Fraud and Corruption policies are reviewed annually by the Audit 
Committee and any changes are referred to the Council for consideration  The Council has self-assessed against the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. A number of actions have 
been identified to bring the current arrangements into full compliance with the Code 
and their implementation will be monitored throughout 2015/16 with progress 
reported to the Audit Committee. Having considered all the principles, subject to the 
actions identified, the organisation has adopted a response that is appropriate for 
its fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

 
J Ensuring effective management of change and transformation (principle 1)  The Council Plan is reviewed and updated alongside the Medium Term Financial 

Plan. The implication of changes due to legislation and resources are considered by 
Members and Employees and reported regularly to Cabinet and Council.  A significant number of senior managers have been trained up to Prince 2 
practitioner standard. 

 
K Ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements conform with 

the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) and, where they do not, explain 
why and how they deliver the same impact (principle 2)  The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) (Assistant Director of Resources & S151) does not 
directly report to the Chief Executive but has unlimited access to that post and is a 
member of the leadership team (Senior Management Team).  

100



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

 The CFO at SLDC is professionally qualified and core responsibilities include those 
set out in the Statement of the Role of the CFO in Local Government and these are 
understood and communicated throughout the authority.  The CFO at SLDC has a line of professional accountability for finance staff 
throughout the authority.  The CFO reviews reserves annually as part of the budget setting process and the 
policy is reviewed annually in line with CIPFA guidance.  The CFO ensures that an effective internal audit function is resourced and 
maintained.  The authority’s governance arrangements allow the CFO direct access to the audit 
committee and external audit.  The CFO’s effectiveness and performance is considered as part of the annual 
appraisal process. 

 
L Ensuring the authority’s assurance arrangements conform with the 

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 
(2010) and, where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same 
impact (principle 2)  The Council has appointed an Audit Committee whose terms of reference are based 
on the latest CIPFA guidelines. These extend to monitoring the Council’s 
governance and risk management frameworks and include reviewing the adequacy 
of the Local Code of Corporate Governance.  The Head of Internal confirms annually their compliance with the CIPFA statement 
on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit.  The Audit Committee receives all reports from Internal and External Auditors.   Audit Committee Members meet in private annually with Internal and External 
Auditors. In addition to this, both are invited to attend all of the formal meetings 
planned throughout the year. 

 
M Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the 

monitoring Officer function (principle 2)  As the Council’s Monitoring Officer, the Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer), has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the 
Constitution to ensure it is effective in controlling the manner in which the Council 
operates, how decisions are made and that procedures are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to local people. This is carried out on an annual basis taking on 
board comments put forward by the public, Officers, interested parties and 
Members.  The Monitoring Officer’s effectiveness and performance is considered as part of the 
annual appraisal process. 

 
N Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the head of 

paid service function (principle 2)  The Chief Executive is the designated head of paid services and is responsible and 
accountable for all aspects of operational management.  The Chief Executive’s effectiveness and performance is considered as part of the 
annual appraisal process. 

 

101



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

O Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as identified in 
undertaking CIPFA’s Audit Committee – Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities (principle 4)    An Audit Committee has been appointed whose terms of reference are based on 
CIPFA guidance and extend to monitoring the Council’s governance and risk 
management framework and include reviewing the adequacy of the governance 
framework. Effectiveness of the Audit Committee is reviewed annually. In addition, 
Members of the Committee meet privately annually with Internal and External Audit 
to discuss pertinent matters. Internal and External audit attend all formal planned 
meetings of the Audit Committee throughout the year.  

 
P Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 

procedures and that expenditure is lawful (principle 4)  The Council aims to ensure compliance with all policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations through a variety of mechanisms, including;  Constitution  Monitoring Officer  Section 151 Officer  Internal Audit  External Audit  The Director of Policy and Resources is the Council’s designated Monitoring Officer 
and plays a key role in ensuring compliance. The Monitoring Officer will report to 
Full Council if she considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise 
to unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping 
the proposal or decision being implemented until her report has been considered.  The Committee reporting process requires financial considerations to be agreed by 
the Section 151 Officer in advance of publishing the report. 

 
Q Arrangements for whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating 

complaints from the public (principles 3 & 4)  The Council has a whistle-blowing policy which is publicised through the Council’s 
website. Members of staff and those people from whom we acquire goods and 
services have been briefed through information leaflets including how and to whom 
they should make a disclosure.  Facilities are in place for receiving whistle-blowing concerns from the public.  A Fraud Hotline is available to enable the public to report suspected benefit fraud. 
This is publicised on the Council’s website.  A complaints, compliments and comments process is maintained through the 
Council’s Complaints’ Management System and the Standards Committee overview 
the handling of complaints and Ombudsman investigations. 

 
R Identifying the development need of Members and senior Officers in relation 

to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training (principle 5)  The Workforce Development Plan, which incorporates skills development, 
recognises that the achievement of the Council’s objectives is through its most 
valuable asset, its people.   The Member Support Strategy ensures that Members are equipped to carry out 
roles effectively with increased emphasis on partnership working and community 

102



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

engagement. This can be evidenced through the Council’s North West Charter 
Award for Member Development.  Formal induction training is provided for new Members and Officers.  Members’ individual training needs are identified through Personal Development 
Plans and addressed through the Member Development Programme.  The Leader undertakes regular reviews with Executive Members which include 
potential areas of development.  Management Team 360 degree reviews have been implemented which identify 
areas for development and were introduced for Assistant Directors.  The Workforce Development Plan aligns workforce and organisation objectives with 
the Council’s values and Council Plan.  Officers have an annual job appraisal interview which includes the identification of 
training needs required to ensure the Council has an effective skilled and trained 
workforce. A new performance appraisal was developed during 2013/14 and all staff 
have been appraised under this new scheme.   The Chief Executive has a formal appraisal process undertaken annually by Senior 
Members. 

 
S Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the 

community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging 
open consultation (principle 6)  The Council continues to support Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) to establish action 
plans for their areas and this has driven forward improved communication and 
engagement at a local level.  Improved working with Parish and Town Councils has increased the take-up of and 
refresh of Community Led Plans. These Plans are then used to influence and 
identify some of the priorities within the LAPs actions and in planning service 
delivery at the Council.  The Council uses a range of mechanisms to understand the views and needs of its 
residents and partners. These include the, residents’ quality of life survey, 
partnerships, multi-agency working, community groups, voluntary groups and co-
opted Members.  A new Parish Charter has been published containing a one year action plan to 
improve dialogue and partnership working between Parishes, CALC and SLDC.   The Council has undertaken its own Quality of Life Survey to help monitor trends on 
previously asked questions.  A consultation toolkit and a Questionnaire Design Guide are also available.  Staff briefings are used as a means of consulting and updating staff on topical 
issues.  All committees have extensive levels of public participation and all agendas and 
decisions are available to the public except where personal or confidential matters 
are being disclosed.  The arrangements for the scrutiny function which commenced in May 2013 are now 
fully embedded.  The Council’s petitions scheme enables residents to call for an inquiry into an issue 
and/ or call for a senior Officer to be interviewed in public on the matter. 

 
 

103



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

T Enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of other 
public service providers (principle 6)  Through partnership working we identify opportunities for shared delivery and 
collaboration on projects. We work with key agencies across the district through the 
One South Lakeland Partnership. This is currently focussing on how we work to 
address health issues and the local economy. Similarly we work across Cumbria to 
deliver activity covering the work of the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board, the 
Safer Cumbria Partnership, the Local Economic Partnership and the Health & 
Wellbeing Board. 

 
U  Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and 

other joint working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the 
governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s overall 
governance arrangements (principle 1)  A partnership register identifies and categorises all partnerships, including 
significant partnerships.   A common partnership protocol has been developed with our partners which 
incorporates governance arrangements and the Council’s values on corporate 
governance. 

 
V Ensuring effective governance arrangements are in place in respect of wholly 

owned or other group companies (principle 3)  The group boundary is reviewed annually as part of the final accounts process. 
There are currently no wholly owned or other group companies. 

 
5. Review of Effectiveness 

 
South Lakeland District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of Internal 
Control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of senior managers within 
the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual report and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
The Council’s Performance, Risk and Financial Management Frameworks and our 
Workforce Plan make a significant contribution to the review process.  
The following functions are integral to this review: 
 
Corporate Level review 
A Working Group of key Officers has conducted a detailed review of the Council’s 
governance arrangements against the Local Code of Governance, and undertaken a self-
assessment against the six core Governance Principles and supporting principles in the 
Local Code; together with the key principles relating to the role of the Chief Financial 
Officer. A panel of Audit Committee Members was established to review the mechanism 
and completion of this statement. No significant issues have been identified. 
 
Director/ Assistant Director Level review 
Senior Management Team consider and challenge all performance, risk management 
and internal audit reports. They have reviewed the Local Code of Governance in year and 
have reviewed its effectiveness as set out above. No significant governance issues have 
been identified. 

104



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

 
Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer  
See paragraphs K & M above, the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer also have 
input through their membership of the Senior Management Team. 
 
Performance Management 
The performance management framework ensures that performance information is 
reported in a timely manner to ensure that the Council can respond to issues and direct 
resources accordingly. A specific subcommittee has been established as a key part of 
this framework (see below). The objectives set focus on community need and targets 
have been developed to ensure they are community focused. SLDC has a central hub of 
Research and Intelligence which is used to aid its development of services improvement 
and identification of customer need which then supports the decision making process. 
 
Scrutiny Committees 
From May 2013 following a review of Scrutiny arrangements the Council has operated 
with one Overview and Scrutiny committee which has a Performance sub-committee.  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee can challenge a decision that had been made by 
the Executive prior to it being implemented, to enable them to consider the decision and 
the context within which it was taken.  They have a remit, which allows them to assist the 
Council and the Cabinet in the development of its budget and policy framework. The 
Committee produce an annual report on its work; the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
annual report for 2014/15 concluded that effective scrutiny was taking place.  
 
Audit Committee 
See paragraph O above. The Audit Committee annual report for 2014/15 concluded that 
it was working effectively, functioning in accordance with best practice and providing 
independent assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements. A panel of 3 
Members of the Audit Committee met on 4 June 2015 to review the process and 
conclusions of the Annual Governance Statement. They were satisfied that there were 
no significant governance issues to report. 
 
Standards Committee 
The Standards Committee and its terms of reference were revised during 2012 to take 
account of the Localism Act changes. The arrangements were reviewed in 2013 and the 
Committee is currently made up of 7 District Councillors with the ability to  co-opt 3 non-
voting Parish Members.  The Committee’s main functions are to:  Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members  Assist and ensure Members observe the Codes of Conduct  Monitor the operation of the Codes of Conduct  Deal with complaints against Members  Monitor the complaints procedure and ombudsman investigations 
An Independent Person was also appointed by the Council in accordance with changes 
made by the relevant provisions of the Localism Act 2011 and related Regulations. An 
Independent Person Protocol was adopted in July 2013. The Standards Committee 
annual report for 2014/15 concluded that overall, ethical standards were sound. 
 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
An Independent Remuneration Panel reporting directly to Full Council makes 
recommendations on the level of allowances to be paid to District Councillors. The Panel 

105



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15 (G) 

 

 

is made up of five members of the public appointed following formal advertisement and 
interview. The recommendations of the panel have been adopted. 
 
Partner Organisations 
A bi-annual assurance exercise is undertaken to confirm compliance with the operation 
of a range of governance systems and procedures with our significant partner 
organisations. The purpose is to identify any areas of concern, and if identified, whether 
these constitute significant governance issues and as such need to be included in the 
Annual Governance Statement. This was carried out in 2014, with no significant issues 
arising. Although a formal exercise was not due for 2014/15, no further issues have been 
flagged through the overall AGS review process. 
 
Internal Audit 
Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the quality and effectiveness of the system of 
governance and internal control. A risk-based Internal Audit Plan is produced each 
financial year for approval by the Audit Committee. The reporting process for Internal 
Audit requires all final reports to be submitted to the Audit Committee. The reports include 
recommendations for improvements forming an agreed Action Plan, which is monitored 
to ensure satisfactory action is taken. The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function is 
also subject to annual review through the Council’s Audit Committee. 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report contains a statement / judgment on overall levels of 
assurance (a view based on the relative significance of the systems reviewed during the 
year, in the context of the totality of the control environment). Based on the assurance 
reports issued to date, it is anticipated that Internal Audit will provide a basically sound 
opinion on the system of internal control. 
 
External Audit 
The Audit Findings Report issued in September 2014 provides an overall summary of the 
External Auditor’s assessment of the Council and recommends any areas for 
improvement. No internal control weaknesses were highlighted. 
 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan  
The Local Code of Governance was reviewed in December 2014 and the Annual 
Governance Statement has been drafted to ensure compliance with the Code as 
necessary. 
 
Significant Governance Issues 
There are no significant governance issues. 
 

 
 
 
 

    
    

    
Lawrence Conway     Councillor Peter Thornton 
Chief Executive     Leader   
South Lakeland District Council            South Lakeland District Council 

106



page 2





South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 23 July 2015 

Internal Audit Recommendations and  

Annual Governance Statement Action Plan - 

Progress Report 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) 
& Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: As above 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report provides an update of the progress made against Internal Audit 
Report Recommendations and the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 
for 2015/16. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the progress made with implementing the recommendations 

(2) note the progress made against the Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan and Fraud and Corruption. 

 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 A series of recommendations have been made by internal audit to improve 
governance. These recommendations should be implemented with regard to 
their priority. This report is a monitoring tool used by managers to track and 
report progress. The Internal Audit Manager also provides separate and 
independent comment on the implementation of the recommendations as part 
of regular or one off audits.  

3.2 At its meeting on the 4 June 2015 the Audit Panel considered senior 
management team’s self- assessment of the authority’s governance 
arrangements. Similarly to last year there were no issues that were 
considered as raising significant concern. Out of the 56 questions all but 3 self 
scored a 4 (4 equalling totally met).  These 3 scored a 3 which means that the 
best practice set out in the Code is considered to be partially met. The Audit 
Panel considered and agreed with the scores as they were presented. The 3 



areas which did not score a 4 are included in the Appendix to this report to 
ensure that action is taken to consider how to improve the position.  

Internal Audit Recommendations Performance 

3.3 Section 1 of Appendix 1 contains the detailed recommendations and a note of 
the progress made against them.  There are 29 recommendations set out in 
the Appendix, 8 of which have future completion dates.  Out of the 21 
remaining, 13 have been completed and 8 are partially completed.   

 Annual Governance Statement Performance 

3.4 Section 2 of the Appendix sets out the actions that will be undertaken to 
improve the three areas highlighted as part of the self-assessment of the 
Council’s governance arrangements.  These involve longer term issues and 
work is underway to improve upon these and report back to the Audit 
Committee as part of the updated Annual Governance process in May 2016. 

 Fraud and Corruption 

3.5 Section 3 of Appendix 1 incorporates the outcome of the review of CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. There are 
six areas where improvements have been identified, 2 of which have been 
actioned as considered at the previous Audit Committee. 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The authors of this report have consulted with officers responsible for 
implementing each of the recommendations and has prepared this report on 
that basis.  This report has been considered by the Senior Management Team 
at its meeting on the 1 July 2015. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 None. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Improving governance will support the achievement of Council Plan priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 No additional financial or resources implications. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No additional human resources implications. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 This reporting mechanism provides assurance that the governance 
arrangements are effectively managed and reported. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 No social, economic and environmental implications. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 None. 



7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the audit 
recommendations and 
Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
are not implemented in 
a timely manner. 

Poor practice, weak 
controls, poor VFM. 

Prioritisation of the 
action to implement the 
recommendation and 
actions and monitoring 
and reporting of the 
process. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Shelagh McGregor, SLDC Chief Finance Officer 01539 793112  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Report Recommendations/AGS Action Plan Monitoring 
Report 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None.  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

My Report n/a 01/07/2015 01.07.2015 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/07/15 n/a My Report 01.07.2015 

HR Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

Assistant 
Directors  

 

na n/a n/a 01.07.2015  

 





        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

1 
 

        
     

    KEY: 
  
  

AMBER – work in progress  

    
 
 

GREEN -  implemented 
  

    WHITE –  deadline in the future 

1 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS  

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsibl
e officer 

Deadline Date 
Completd  

Progress Comment 

April 
2013 

SUNDRY DEBTORS (2013/14) 

1  R6) Clarification should be sought for 
Financial Procedure Rule 28.1 to ensure 
that the procedure for writing off individual 
debtor accounts is clearly distinguished. 
(Grade B - Medium) 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

31/7/201
4 
2015/16 

 The Financial Services Manager will include in the 
next review of the constitution. Due date reviewed 
to reflect the timing of the constitution. 

March 
2014 

Car Parking   

2  R1) Further consideration should be given 
to increasing the health and safety and 
security arrangements surrounding the 
collection process. (Grade B - Medium) 

Community 
and 
Leisure 
Manager 

1st 
October 
2014 
01/06/16 
 

 Partial The current Code of Safe Working Practice has been 
reviewed. 
Work in progress: To fully complete health and safety 

and security arrangements it will be necessary to take 

forward planning, procurement and building work over 

the next five months. By 01/01/16 the recommendation 

will be fully completed. 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

2 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsibl
e officer 

Deadline Date 
Complete
d  

Progress Comment 

March 
2014 

Data Quality 2013/14 

3  R4) A Data Quality Policy and procedures 
should be updated to set out the standard 
expected from all stakeholders and staff 
should be made aware of these updated 
requirements. (Grade B - Medium) 

Principal 
Performanc
e & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

31/12/14 April 2015 Data Quality Policy is awaiting approval at SMT. 
Implemented. 

8/9/14 Asset Management 

4 
 

 Recommendation 1: 
The Council should have an overarching 
strategy of what is required / expected from 
its investment property portfolio.  
Medium Priority. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Planning) 

31/03/17  Agreed in principle. Given the mix of assets and 
uses a commercial return is not always the 
Council’s sole objective.  
To be reviewed 

8/9/14 Members and Officer Expenses 

5  Recommendation 1: 
Management should ensure that payroll 
procedures are comprehensive and up to 
date. 
Medium Priority. 

Principal 
HR Advisor 
now FSM 

31/03/15  
30.08.20
15 

Partial From 1st July 2015 payroll will form part of the 
finance team and procedures will be reviewed after 
then. 

  



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

3 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsibl
e officer 

Deadline Date 
Complete
d  

Progress Comment 

6  Recommendation 1: 
Management should ensure that payroll 
procedures are comprehensive and up to 
date. 
Medium Priority. 

Principal 
HR Advisor 

31/03/15  
30/09/15 

Partial ICT are currently investigating two options for 
strengthening password controls. 

17/11/14 Audit of Development Management 

7  Recommendation 4: 
Procedures should be fully documented to 
ensure there are no ambiguities in the 
application process, to guide administrative 
staff in their roles and to ensure consistency 
in processing applications. 
Medium Priority 

Developme
nt 
Manageme
nt Group 
Manager 

Ongoing 
as part of 
the DIP  
over 18 
months. 
Sept 17 

 The planning process is complex and requires 
professional judgement and flexibility to be an 
enabler of development in line with the Council’s 
ambitions for housing and jobs; in a dynamic policy 
environment this is not a one off process which can 
be easily documented. With this context in mind, it 
is accepted that administrative processes which 
support this can be documented more clearly. 
Progress is on track. 

18/11/14 Audit of Grounds Maintenance 

8  Recommendation 1: 
A Service Plan for Grounds Maintenance 
should be prepared to include service aims 
and objectives and associated service 
targets / outcomes. The Plan should be 
monitored and reported through an 
appropriate forum. 
High priority 
 

Community 
Leisure 
Manager 

04/2015 March 2015 A Community and Leisure Service Plan has been 
developed for 2015/16 this includes the key 
performance measures for the grounds 
maintenance contract and will be monitored by the 
client officer , with reporting of outcomes to the 
Neighbourhood Services Departmental 
Management Team. Implemented. 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

4 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Report 
Title 

Recommendations Responsibl
e officer 

Deadline Date 
Compl
eted  

Progress Comment 

9  Recommendation 2: 
Management should consider the formal 
introduction of performance indicators to aid 
the management of the contract. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer 

04/2015 
30.09.15 

Partial 
 

In progress. Under consideration, score card 
discussed with Principle Performance and Intelligence 
Officer, meaningful KPI’s will be agreed following 
Grounds Maintenance Contract Options Appraisal 
which is currently taking place and scheduled for 
September. 

10  Recommendation 3: 
Management should review the 
arrangements around the use of Street 
Scene Monitors to ensure the approach is 
still relevant and adds value to the 
monitoring arrangements of the grounds 
maintenance contract. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer/Assi
stant 
Director 

03/2015 
30.09.15 

Partial In progress. Contract monitoring has been discussed 
between key staff and a specification for monitors will 
be developed and communication methods agreed – 
to be in place during 2015.  

11  Recommendation 5: 
Advice should be sought from Legal 
Services to ensure that the process for 
implementing changes to the contract in this 
way is appropriate and legal as the service 
develops. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer 

04/2015 
30.09.15 

 Legal advice not sought as yet. 
 

12  Recommendation 7: 
Documented procedures should be 
prepared to inform staff of the steps to be 
taken should contractual disputes or the 
need to challenge the Contractor arise. 
Actions to resolve complaints should also 
be reported within contract monitoring 
minutes. 
Medium priority 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer 

04/2015 
31/08/15 

June Implemented 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

5 
 

 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Repo
rt 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Compl
eted  

Progress Comment 

5/11/14 Audit of Lake Windermere Services 

13  Recommendation 1: 
The Council should develop its 
operational service planning 
arrangements for Windermere Lake 
Services to more clearly link service 
objectives and associated 
performance measures to wider 
Council’s priorities and the Strategic 
Vision of the partnership. 
Medium priority 
 

Director of 
People and 
Places 

January 
2016   

  Management recognised this is issue. There 
is to be a refresh of the Windermere 
Strategy; the Director of People and Places 
is leading on this review with LDNP. 
Draft action points from the 2011-15 
Windermere Strategy are to be aligned to 
corporate priorities and will be incorporated 
into the Service Plan for year commencing 
Jan 2016. Progress is on track. 

14  Recommendation 10: 
A cost / benefit analysis on the 
provision of RYA courses should be 
undertaken to ensure that the Council 
is fully informed on its decision on 
whether or not to continue / increase 
service provision in this area. 
 

Lake & Parking 
Services Officer 

January 
2016  

 Currently courses are offered to the 
Emergency Services on a cost neutral basis 
to support engagement with other public 
services, increase support on Lake. This 
training is offered during the ‘off peak’ 
season. 
A recent inspection of Ferry Nab as an RYA 
training centre reported excellent standards. 
Consideration to roll training out for general 
public consumption is open for debate. This 
would be a decision for the Lake Admin 
Committee and will be considered as part of 
the service planning arrangements. 
Progress is on track. 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

6 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Repo
rt 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Compl
eted  

Progress Comment 

2/04/15 Audit of Performance Management 

15  Recommendation 4: 
There should be a process in place for 
recording and tracking the 
implementation of actions taken (i.e. 
actions log) to address 
underperformance which is reported 
to the SMT and the Performance- Sub 
Committee on a regular (i.e. quarterly) 
basis. 
Medium Priority. 

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

In line with 
Quarter 1 
(2015/16) 
Reporting 
Timetable 

June 
2015 

Implemented. 
A Corrective Action Log is to be developed 
in line with established Project Management 
Issues Log Template. The Log is to form 
part of overall performance reporting 
through SMT, Portfolio Holders and O&S 
Performance Sub Committee. 

16  Recommendation 5: 
The Performance Team should 
introduce regular data quality spot 
checks as part of a rolling programme 
of PI reviews. Should performance 
data be found to be inaccurate and/or 
unreliable, the outcome should be 
reported to the Performance Sub-
Committee. 
(note: this action should exclude data 
sets that are provided by external 
government agencies where the 
Council has no control over the quality 
of the data published). 
Medium Priority. 

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer 

In line with 
Quarter 1 
(2015/16) 
Reporting 
Timetable 

June 
2015 

Implemented. 
Data Quality Spot Checks to be 
implemented on a quarterly basis in line 
with Council Plan Priorities. Details of any 
data quality checks to be reported to SMT, 
Portfolio Holders and O&S Performance 
Sub Committee. 
Following addendum to the PMF: ‘As part of 
a rolling programme of scorecard review, 
regular assurance checks will be carried out 
and reported to Members and Officers.’ 

 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

7 
 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Repo
rt 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Complet
ed  

Progress Comment 

2/04/15 Audit of Payroll 

17 
 

 Recommendation 1: 
Management should further enhance 
the documentation of current 
procedures as a means to ensure 
good practice is followed, crucial 
routines are not omitted and as a 
basis for training and staff appraisal. 
E.g. A new form could be designed to 
enable clear confirmation that each 
pay element in iTrent has been 
agreed for each leaver. The form 
could be scanned in to the Information 
at Work system with the rest of the 
leaver documentation.  
Medium priority.  

HR Services 
Manager 
Now FSM 

30/09/15  Rec 1 & 2:  
From 1st July 2015 payroll will form part of 
the finance team. Documentation of 
processes and updating will be reviewed as 
part of the transfer of responsibility. 

18  Recommendation 3: 
Management should review the 
current working arrangements to 
ensure that there is adequate 
supervision and separation of duties 
Medium priority. 

Assistant 
Director Policy 
and 
Performance 

30/09/15 1/7/15 Implemented moved to Finance & the S151. 

 

19  Recommendation 4: 
Arrangements should be made to 
provide for independent sample 
checking of input to iTrent, 
confirmation of the correct outcome of 
any changes made to the system and 

 30/9/15  Independent checks will be introduced by 
30/09/15. 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

8 
 

agreement of key exception reports 
and deductions. Medium priority. 

20  Previous Recommendation : Grade B 
(medium priority) 
The Council should ensure the 
monthly production and distribution of 
‘Establishment Reconciliation Reports’ 
to Assistant Directors and Service 
Heads is re-commenced. 

  Not  
impleme
ntated 

Previously agreed action to be taken: 
Management has previously accepted this 
risk as they see other compensatory 
measures to be in place and have 
confidence in these arrangements. 
 
Current status: Not Implemented 

7/04/15 Audit of Creditor Payments 

21  Recommendation 4: 
i. Staff should independently obtain 
contact details for new suppliers and 
amendment requests to independently 
verify account changes directly with 
the supplier. 
ii. The completion of additional 
security questions as part of this 
verification process would enhance 
the existing security by further 
strengthening the arrangements in 
place to verify the supplier’s identity 
and the changes requested 
iii. A record of this verification along 
with the answers received should be 
retained. 
Medium Priority. 

Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

May 2015 May 
2015 

Implemented. 
All previous audit recommendations have 
been implemented. Tests show no issues 
with the current issues. It is the 
responsibility of departments to obtain 
confirmation on letter-headed paper, check 
(by telephone) this is correct and then 
forward to the Finance section who carry 
out further checks. The forms have been 
updated to meet requirements to ensure the 
system is clear to all staff and all steps 
properly recorded. 

22  Recommendation 5: 
i. The Council may also explore the 
potential for the reimbursing 
department to place an electronic 
order for the reimbursement, which 
could be “matched” to the bank details 

Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

June 2015   
Rec part 1: Work in progress agreed to be 
completed by the end of July.  
 
Rec part 2: Implemented. 
 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

9 
 

supplied to Exchequer Services 
directly by the payee. 
ii. Payment vouchers should include 
certification by the authorising 
department that refunds have been 
checked to source documentation and 
are due, to ensure the onus on 
ensuring the validity of any refund is 
clearly with the originating 
department. 
Medium Priority. 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Repo
rt 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Complet
ed  

Progress Comment 

23/3/15 Audit of Council Tax 

23  Recommendation 2: 
Debt recovery procedures should be 
reviewed and updated to be more task 
focused rather than action focused. 
Medium priority. 
 
Recommendation 3: 
Debt recovery reports should be 
routinely distributed to responsible 
officers for the required review and 
recovery actions to be taken in line 
with expected procedures. 
Medium priority. 

Revenues & 
Benefits 
Manager & 
Revenues 
Manager 

April 2015 June 
2015 

Implemented 

24  Recommendation 4: 
Consideration should be given to 
reviewing all accounts receiving a 

Revenues & 
Benefits 
Manager & 

June 2015 
Sept 2015 

 In Progress. Due date rescheduled to Sept 
2015 due to the need for proposals from 
Cumbria Chief Finance Officers regarding a 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

10 
 

discount on a more regular basis. 
Advisory matter. 

Local Taxation 
Team Leader 

collaborative County wide review of the 
Single Persons Discount. A cycle for the 
other discounts has already been agreed. 

25  Recommendation 5: 
The required performance (accuracy) 
checks should be undertaken in line 
with expected procedures, within 
timescales and the results should be 
reported. 
Medium priority. 

Revenues & 
Benefits 
Manager 

April 2015 April 
2015 

Implemented 

26  Recommendation 7: 
Approved authorisers of refund 
payments processed by BACS should 
be clarified, documented and all 
relevant staff should be made aware 
of these arrangements. 
Medium priority. 

Revenues & 
Benefits 
Manager 

April 2015 April 
2015 

Implemented 

Date of 
Audit 
Report 

Audit 
Repo
rt 
Title 

Recommendations Responsible 
officer 

Deadline Date 
Complet
ed  

Progress Comment 

7/4/15 Audit of Counter Fraud Arrangements 

27  Recommendation 2: Policy guidance 
and procedures on the issues around 
money laundering and bribery should 
be developed to ensure that sufficient 
arrangements are in place which 
comply with expected standards and 
legislative requirements. Information 
on these arrangements should be 
publically available and measures 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

04/2015 
Dec 2015 
 

 In progress. Three separate policies have 
been approved – the next step is to 
combine them into one comprehensive 
policy to be approved at Council in 
December 2015. Due date reset to 
December 2015. 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

11 
 

should be put in place to raise 
awareness with staff, members, 
contractors and suppliers. 
Medium priority. 

28  Recommendation 8: Management 
should raise the profile / awareness of 
fraud related risks as parts of the 
service planning arrangements 
(recommendation R7 also refers). 
Medium priority. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

09/2015  New Corporate Fraud Officer post approved 
as part of the FS Team. Their role is to 
assist with this rec. 

  



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

12 
 

 

2 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS 

AGS 
Ref No. 

AGS Measure Respf Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

4.4.5 Ensure that effective, transparent and 
accessible arrangements are in place for 
dealing with complaints. 
Scored a 3 out of 4 in the self- assessment. 

AD Policy and 
Performance 

Longer 
term 
target 

 The process is currently under review along with the 
wider issues of data quality and transparency. 

5.3.2 Member succession planning. 
Scored a 3 out of 4 in the self- assessment. 

AD Policy and 
Performance 

2015/16 31/10 
Parital 

This is being taken forward by the Member Support 
Group to see if any improvements can be made to 
existing arrangements. The Member Support 
Steering Group has produced a revised Member 
Support Strategy which will be presented to Cabinet 
in December for approval. This includes 
mechanisms for identifying candidates for leadership 
training. 

6.4.5 Ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency in 
all its dealings including partnerships subject 
only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper 
and appropriate. Scored a 3 out of 4 in the 
self- assessment. 

AD Policy and 
Performance 

Longer 
term 
target 

 This is currently under review along with the wider 
issues of data quality and transparency. 

 
 

  



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

13 
 

 

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The following are new items following the self assessment against the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption and review of Local Code requirements. 

AGS 
Ref No. 

AGS Measure Respf Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

3.1.2 Amend Risk Policy to make reference to risks 
arising from fraud and corruption 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

March 
2016 

  

3.1.2 Complete fraud and corruption risk 
assessments including where the harm caused 
by fraud lies 

Corporate 
Anti-Fraud 
Officer 

October 
2015 

  

3.1.2 Produce anti-fraud and corruption strategy as 
part of review of anti-fraud and corruption 
policy, to be considered by Audit Committee 
December 2015.  To include a specific goal of 
ensuring and maintaining its resilience to fraud 
and corruption and explore opportunities for 
financial savings from enhanced fraud 
detection and prevention. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

December 
2015 

  

3.1.2 Produce anti-bribery policy Financial 
Services 
Manager 

April 2015 April 2015 Complete, presented to Audit Committee 23 April 
2015 

3.1.2 Produce anti-money laundering policy Financial 
Services 
Manager 

April 2015 April 2015 Complete, presented to Audit Committee 23 April 
2015 



        APPENDIX 1 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT  

14 
 

Local 
Code 
Ref 
 
5b 

Ensuring appropriate financial skills of Officers 
scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to make 
financial acumen requirements more explicit. 

AD 
Resources/AD 
Policy and 
Performance 

2015/16  There is a pay and reward review about to 
commence which will address issues around 
required competencies corporately. 

 
 



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 0 
  

 
 

0 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit of Lake Windermere Services 

 

1st April 2015  /  8 June 2015 

 
  15th June 2015 

 

Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council   

Policy and Resources Directorate – Resources 

Internal Audit Services are delivered to South Lakeland District Council under contract by Cumbria 

Shared Internal Audit Service, Cumbria County Council 

Audit of Fees and Charges 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Fees and Charges 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 1 
  

 
 

1 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Audit Manager Gill Martin gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226252 

Lead Auditor(s) Pauline Connolly pauline.connolly@cumbria .gov.uk 01228 226270 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Financial Services Manager 

For Information: Assistant Director - Resources 

Director - Policy and Resources 

Audit Committee The Audit Committee, which is due to be held on 23rd July 2015, will receive  the Executive summary (sections 1-4)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk


Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Fees and Charges 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 2 

 
 

  

2 

1. Background
 

1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of Fees and Charges. This audit was a planned audit assignment which was undertaken in 

accordance with the 2014/15 Audit Plan.   

 

1.2. Fees and Charges for individual services are important because the Council’s revenue budget is dependent on the income that is generated 

through service areas; in the region of £9m per annum is generated through a variety of different income streams. The review is to provide 

assurance that the appropriate internal controls are in place to mitigate known risks associated with the arrangements for the setting and 

management of income targets, the identification and design of new income streams and opportunities to achieve these income targets. 

 

1.3. Under section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 local authorities have greater powers to charge for discretionary services. To make the most 

of the opportunities presented by the legislation, councils need to review the extent of the fees and charges which they have in place to 

understand the rationale that dictates the fees and charges that are and can be applied and to assess whether such charges reflect the council 

priorities. 

 

1.4. The Council’s Corporate Policy on Fees and Charges details the corporate approach to setting fees and charges. Each service is required to 

consider how and to what extent each principle applies to the fees and charges it proposes to set. Service areas use this Policy when determining 

and reviewing charges annually as part of the budget setting process. The overall aim is to increase the proportion of income raised from users of 

discretionary services to ensure that they meet the full cost of these services, rather than the costs falling on the council taxpayer. 

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 

 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 

to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 

audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 

 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 

 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was the 



 South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Fees and Charges 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 3 

 
 

  

3 

Assistant Director Resources and the agreed scope areas for consideration were identified as follows: 

 the setting of realistic income budgets and balancing to Medium Term Plan (MTFP); 

 directorate’s responsibilities and engagement in the setting of fees and charges and fees and charges income budget setting process; and 

 the directorates arrangements and members engagement for identifying and designing new income streams/opportunities to achieve the 

income budgets set (including concessions and discounts; payment methods etc) 

 

2.2.2. There were no instances whereby the audit work undertaken was impaired by the availability of information. 

 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 

control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 

for each level is explained in Appendix A. 

 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within Fees and Charges provide 

Reasonable assurance.    

 

 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

 

4. Summary of Recommendations, Audit Findings and Report Distribution 
 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix B.  

 

4.2. There are two audit recommendations are arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

1. Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives achieved (see section 5.1.) - 1 1 

2. Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts (see section. - - - 



 South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Fees and Charges 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 4 

 
 

  

4 

 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 Experienced service managers and their teams, when reviewing and setting new fees and charges, are involved in consulting with both staff 

and customers, using techniques such as past trends, testing the market by undertaking pilot exercises and benchmarking against 

competitors; 

 Risk management is fully embedded in the Service Managers’ process when setting Fees and Charges; this is evidence in the Services’ 

Charges Reports that detail the potential risks, consequences and the controls in place to mitigate these risks; 

 Budget setting procedures and timetable to set Fees and Charges is clearly defined and complied with; 

 There is a close working relationship between Service Managers’ and Finance staff at the budget setting process and throughout the year as 

part of the budget monitoring process; 

 Transparent reporting of the proposed Fees and Charges to officers and members that provides justification for changes to charges; 

 An experienced Finance Team is involved in providing support, advice and guidance to directorates in the setting of income budgets; and 

 A transparent process is in place to set realistic fees and charges and income budgets to meet the MTFP. 

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority matters: 

 There are no high priority matters for report. 

 

4.4.2. Medium priority matters: 

 There is a need to define the criteria to review the Corporate Fees and Charges Policy.  This should include an assessment of its 

effectiveness and whether it is a useful basis for making decisions and meeting the council corporate priorities, potentially through the use of a 

self-evaluation questionnaire to officers and members.  There is also a need to review existing arrangements to ensure accessibility of the 

Policy to members and the public and to provide further guidance to service managers to aid the wider understanding of the Corporate Fees 

3. Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information (see section. - - - 

4. Security - safeguarding of assets. - - - 

5. Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes. - - - 

Total Number of Recommendations - 1 1 



 South Lakeland District Council  |  Audit of Fees and Charges 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report Page 5 

 
 

  

5 

and Charges Policy principles.  Developments to the Directors’ Charges Report template to include cross reference to and demonstrate the 

application of these principles would also be beneficial. 

 

4.4.3. Advisory issues: 

Consideration may also be given to the provision of guidance on the corporate approach to drive and explore new initiatives to generate additional 

income streams which increase revenue and support the achievement of the service and Council’s priorities and objectives 

 

Comment from the Assistant Director (Resources) 

Management agree to implement the recommendations.  

 



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 0 
  

 
 

0 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit of Development Management 

 

18th June 2015 

30th June 2015 

Audit of Information Governance (Project) 

Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council   

Policy and Performance Directorate  

 



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 1 
  

 
 

1 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance (Project) 

 
Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Audit Manager Gill Martin gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk  01228 226250 

Lead Auditors Rebecca Birkett   

Olu Abiwon 

rebecca.birkett@cumbria.gov.uk  

olu.abiwon@cumbria.gov.uk  

01228 226258 

01228 226258 

mailto:gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.birkett@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:Olu.Abiwon@cumbria.gov.uk


 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Assistant Director Policy and Performance  

Policy and Partnerships Manager  

For Information: Principal Performance & Intelligence Officer  

Audit Committee The Audit Committee, which is due to be held on 23rd July 2015 will receive the Executive Summary (sections 1-4) 

 

 

 



 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 3 
  

 
 

3 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Executive Summary 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of Information Governance. This audit was a planned audit assignment which was undertaken 

in accordance with the 2014/15 Audit Plan.  

 

1.2. Information Governance is a term that is used to describe how public bodies, including local authorities, ensure that statutory, regulatory and best 

practice requirements are met when they collect, store, use, and share information in their possession.  Areas typically covered by Information 

Governance include: Data Protection, Freedom of Information; Information Security, Records Management and Data Quality. 

 

1.3. In August 2014 the Council embarked on an information governance framework project with a view to establishing a comprehensive framework to 

ensure that the Council:  

 Meets its legal obligations for the effective management of information;  

 Recognises the key enabling role of information in supporting the achievement of council objectives; and 

 Ensures that information is treated as a valuable asset. 
 

1.4. The project is still in the relative early stages at the time of our audit review and it is due to be completed by December 2015. Therefore, evidence 

was gathered through discussions with relevant staff members and review of prime source documentation pertaining to the Information 

Governance framework project, which were subsequently tested to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the project in establishing a 

Information Governance framework that will manage information, safeguard personal data and store and retain information appropriately in line 

with legislation and business need.    

 

1.5. The “Information Governance” project is now part of the wider “Digital Innovation” programme which focuses on reshaping the way the Council 

interacts with its customers. Enhanced governance arrangements for the programme are to be introduced, including a separate project board.  

 

 

 

 



 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 4 
  

 
 

4 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 

 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 

to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 

audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 

 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 

 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was the 

Assistant Director Policy and Performance and the agreed scope areas for consideration were identified as follows: 

 

 Examine and appraise the project management arrangements to review and implement improvements to the Council’s procedures, processes 
and controls in place over Information Governance; and 

 Follow up of Data Quality Review. 

 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 

control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 

for each level is explained in Appendix A. 

 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within the project management of 

Information Governance provide Reasonable assurance.    

 

 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 



 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 5 
  

 
 

5 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 

 

4. Summary of Recommendations and Audit Findings  
 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix B.  

 

4.2. There are two  audit recommendations are arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

 

 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 In-year performance monitoring arrangements to oversee the implementation of previous audit recommendations highlights that appropriate 

actions are being taken on the agreed actions arising from the previous audit on Data Quality in 2013/14.  One outstanding recommendation 

remains concerning the need for a Data Quality Policy which is being addressed through the wider corporate improvement project on 

Information Governance. The future completion of project ‘work package’ on Data Quality should also provide management with further 

assurances in this area – note, however, that the deliverables through this particular work package have not been examined as part of this 

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

1. Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives achieved (see section 5.1.) - - - 

2. Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts - - - 

3. Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information (see section 5.2) - 2 - 

4. Security - safeguarding of assets  - - - 

5. Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes (see section 5.3) - - - 

Total Number of Recommendations - 2 - 



 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 6 
  

 
 

6 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

audit review due to the early stages of this work.  

 The Council has recognised the importance of adhering to key Information Governance principles and has dedicated resources to deliver a 

corporate improvement project on this area throughout in 2014 -2015. 

 A Project Initiation Document (PID) has been developed which outlines the scope and objectives of the project. The work packages have 

been designed to provide a review of existing polices with the aim of putting in place a policy framework to support, direct and control the 

Council’s Information Governance arrangements in the future. Other key areas for improvement (i.e. Data Quality) have been assigned 

specific resources for review as a separate work package. This is an 18 month project and the agreed work packages have different 

timescales and are at different stages of completion.  

 The Council has carried out some research, and the project methodology has been based on similar improvement models adopted by other 

local authorities.  This provides the added assurance that the scope and objectives of the project will help to deliver and establish an 

Information Governance framework that is in line with good practice.   

 A Project Board is in place to govern and oversee the delivery of the project.  

 A project ‘sponsor’ has been nominated from the senior management team.  

 A number of service areas (i.e. Human Resources, ICT, Democratic and Members Services and Public Protection) are represented on the 

Project Board to ensure that there is relevant user involvement and input within the work streams being delivered by the project. 

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority issues: 

 There are no high priority issues for report. 

 

4.4.2. Medium priority issues: 

 Project Board meetings should be more regular.  

 The project highlight reports do not provide sufficient information on risks and exceptions within the project and risk logs should also be 

maintained for each work package. 

 

4.4.3. Advisory matters: 

 There are no advisory matters for report. 



 South Lakeland District Council | Audit of Information Governance 

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 7 
  

 
 

7 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 

Comment from the Assistant Director - Policy and Performance 

Project Board Meetings have been and are scheduled for the next 12 months.  Project Highlight reports will provide information on risks and 

exceptions.  Project and Risk Logs to be maintained as part of Work Package reporting.  Further communications to take place as per the 

overall communications plan e.g. Chief Exec briefings to staff. The audit would benefit from a view on the Information Governance Policy 

framework. 

 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Audit of General IT Controls 

Audit of Development Management 

 

22nd May 2015 

11th June 2015 

Audit of General IT Controls 

Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council 

Policy and Resources Directorate – IT Services 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Audit of General IT Controls 

Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Audit Manager Gill Martin gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226258 

Lead Auditor(s) Rebecca Birkett rebecca.birkett@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226286 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Ben Wright, IT Services Manager 

For Information: 
Simon McVey, Assistant Director (Policy and Performance) South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee The Audit Committee, at its meeting on 23rd July 2015, will receive the Executive Summary. 

 

 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Audit of General IT Controls 

 

1. Background 

 

1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of IT General Controls at South Lakeland District Council.  This was a planned audit 

assignment which was undertaken in accordance with the 2014/15 Audit Plan.  

 

1.2. A shared IT service between Eden District Council and South Lakeland District Council became operation in April 2012, as part of a 7 year 

agreement.  Each council contributes proportionately to the cost of the shared IT service and the risks and rewards resulting from this 

arrangement are shared by the two councils. The operational board consists of the Assistant Director –Policy and Performance, South Lakeland 

District Council, the Director of Finance, Eden District Council and the IT Shared Service Manager.  

 

1.3. There is currently an ongoing project at South Lakeland District Council to review and update the overarching framework for Information 

Governance policies; the intention being that the outcomes from this review will also be used to inform the subsequent arrangements at Eden 

District Council.  

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 

 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 

to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 

audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 

 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 

 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was Assistant 

Director – Policy and Performance. The original agreed scope areas for consideration were identified as follows: 

 Policies & Procedures 

 Access controls,  

 Physical & Environmental controls 

 Operations security  

 Security incident management. 

 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Audit of General IT Controls 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 

control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 

for each level is explained in Appendix A. 

 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within the identified scope areas 

relating to General IT Controls provide reasonable assurance. 

 

 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

 

4. Summary of Recommendations and Audit Findings  
 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix B.  

 

4.2. There are 3 audit recommendations arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

 

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives  - - - 

Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts  - - - 

Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information (see section 5.1) - 1 1 

Security - safeguarding of assets (see section 5.2) - 1 - 

Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes  - - - 

Total Number of Recommendations - 2 1 



Executive Summary South Lakeland District Council | Audit of General IT Controls 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 The Council has recognised the need to strengthen its Information Governance framework and supporting processes and, as such, has 

committed resources to delivering a key improvement project of this area in 2015. 

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority issues: 

 There are no high priority issues to report. 

 

4.4.2. Medium priority issues: 

 Refresh of evidence of user acceptance of policies. 

 

4.4.3. Advisory issues: 

 More proactive identification of starters and leavers; 

 Publication to all users of procedures for dealing with a security breach. 

 

Comment from the Assistant Director – Policy and Performance 

I am pleased with the outcome of this audit.  The audit recommendations support and will be addressed through ongoing corporate and IT 

project work. 

 





      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 0 
  

 
 

0 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

Audit of Development Management 

 

22nd May 2015 

11th June 2015 

Audit of IT Data Backup and Recovery Arrangements 

Joint Audit Report for South Lakeland District Council   

& Eden District Council 

 



      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 1 
  

 
 

1 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 

 
Audit Resources 

Title Name Email  Telephone 

Audit Manager Gill Martin Gill.Martin1@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226258 

Lead Auditor(s) Olu Abiwon Olu.Abiwon@cumbria.gov.uk 01228 226258 



  Audit of IT Data Backup & Recovery Arrangements 

 

 

Audit Report Distribution  

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Policy and Performance  

Ben Wright, IT Services Manager 

For Information: David Rawsthorn, Director of Finance 

Audit Committee The separate audit committee’s at South Lakeland District Council and Eden District Council will receive the findings from 

this audit. 

 South Lakeland District Council’s Audit Committee on 23rd July 2015 will receive the Executive Summary. 

 Eden District Council’s Audit Committee on 24th September 2015 will receive the findings from this audit. 

 

 



   

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 3 
  

 
 

3 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

1. Background 
 

1.1. This report summarises the findings from the audit of IT Data Recovery.  This audit was a planned audit assignment which was undertaken in 

accordance with the 2014/15 Audit Plan.  

 

1.2. The Council has a statutory duty to safeguard the data and information it holds about service users and about the Council in a responsible way, in 

accordance with legislation like the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  For this reason, it is good practice that 

the Council ensures that all information and data which it is responsible for is securely and routinely backed up. 

 

1.3. South Lakeland and Eden District Council have a disaster recovery and backup contract with IT Professional Services Limited (ITPS) at a 

combined cost of £54,000 per annum.  This amount includes an annual cost of £23k (£11.5k each) for operating a secured private network link 

between the Councils’ respective data centres and ITPS’ data centre in Sunderland.  

 

1.4. Evidence was gathered through discussions with relevant staff members, physical inspection of the data centres in Penrith and Kendal, and 

review of prime source documentation pertaining to the backup of a sample of fivers servers, which were subsequently tested to evaluate the 

effectiveness of the controls in operation.  

 

2. Audit Approach 
 

2.1. Audit Objectives and Methodology 

 

2.1.1. Compliance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating 

to the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems.  A risk based audit approach has been applied which aligns to the five key 

audit control objectives which are outlined in section 4; detailed findings and recommendations are reported within section 5 of this report. 

 

2.2. Audit Scope and Limitations 

 

2.2.1. The Audit Scope was agreed with management prior to the commencement of this audit review.  The Client Sponsor for this review was the 

Assistant Director Policy and Performance and the agreed scope areas for consideration were identified as follows: 



   

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 4 
  

 
 

4 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 

 Policies & Procedures 

 Backup schedules 

 Data restoration 

 Review of due diligence carried out against the vendor contract 
 

2.2.2. There were no instances where the audit work undertaken was impaired by the availability of information.  

 

3. Assurance Opinion 
 

3.1. Each audit review is given an assurance opinion and these are intended to assist Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of 

control and potential impact of any identified system weaknesses.  There are 4 levels of assurance opinion which may be applied. The definition 

for each level is explained in Appendix A. 

 

3.2. From the areas examined and tested as part of this audit review, we consider the current controls operating within Data Recovery and General IT 

Controls provide Substantial assurance.    

 

 Note: as audit work is restricted by the areas identified in the Audit Scope and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and 

complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area. 

 

4. Summary of Recommendations, Audit Findings and Report Distribution 
 

4.1. There are three levels of audit recommendation; the definition for each level is explained in Appendix B.  

 

4.2. There are 3 audit recommendations are arising from this audit review and these can be summarised as follows: 

 

 

 

 



   

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 5 
  

 
 

5 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 

 

4.3. Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 A recent event demonstrated that a reliable recovery  

 A service agreement is in place which sets out the Council and the vendor’s obligations, the service requirements and the timescales/targets 

for system recovery.   

 There is a joint (SLDC and Eden DC)  IT disaster recovery plan in place which sets out the policy framework for ensuring that information and 

data is backed up and can be restored in the event of unforeseen loss of service.  

 Sample testing showed that backups are performed in accordance to the frequency prescribed by the joint IT disaster recovery plan. 

 A backup log is maintained and provided by the vendor as assurance that backups have been performed.  The log notifies the Council of any 

failed backup run and the remedial action that the vendor has taken. 

 Our sample testing showed that backups are predominantly successful and a provision has been made in the service agreement to penalise 

the vendor where a server backup fails more than once in succession. 

 Backups are run via a private remote network (providing greater security of data transmitted than public networks); this links the local data 

centres to the off-site data centre in Sunderland.  

No. of recommendations 

Control Objective High Medium Advisory 

1. Management - achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives achieved (see section 5.1.) - - - 

2. Regulatory - compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts - - 1 

3. Information - reliability and integrity of financial and operational information  - - - 

4. Security - safeguarding of assets (see section 5.2) - - 1 

5. Value - effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes (see section 5.3) - - 1 

Total Number of Recommendations - - 3 



   

      
 
Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service: Internal Audit Report   

 
 

Page 6 
  

 
 

6 

Images on front cover courtesy of Steve Barber 

 

 Physical access to the local data centres is restricted and controlled via swipe cards.  

 

4.4. Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

 

4.4.1. High priority matters: 

 There are no high priority matters for report. 

 

4.4.2. Medium priority issues: 

 There are no medium priority matters for report. 

 

4.4.3. Advisory issues: 

 The joint IT disaster recovery plan should be reviewed in light of changing needs and/or priorities.  

 The frequency systems backups needs to reflect the perceived level of risk and how service critical the data held on each system is. 

 The disaster recovery and backup contract with ITPS Limited is due for re-tendering. 

 

Comment from the Assistant Director - Policy and Performance: 

I am pleased with substantial assurance outcome from this audit review.  The audit has highlight no issues with the recovery service provided 

and the Shared IT Board is fully aware of the procurement timescales pertaining to the contract and it will be making recommendations on this 

in the very near future. 

 

The effectiveness of our disaster recovery arrangements was also tested in a live situation September 2014 and this highlighted the 

effectiveness of the procedures which the Council has in place.  

 





South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

23rd July 2015 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Gill Martin, Audit Manager  
(Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service) 

REPORT AUTHORS: Gill Martin, Audit Manager  
(Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

  

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1. This report provides a summary of the outcomes of the work of the internal 
audit provided by the Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service for South Lakeland 
District Council for 2014/15 and includes the Audit Manager’s opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for risk management, governance 
and internal control in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note:- 

 The progress achieved in 2014/15 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1.  

 The Audit Manager’s opinion of reasonable assurance on the 
Council’s overall systems of governance, risk management and 
internal control for the year ended 31st March 2015. 

 The Audit Manager’s declaration of Internal Audit independence as 
required by the mandatory PSIAS. 

 The Audit Manager’s declaration of conformance with the mandatory 
PSIAS. 

 The positive outturn performance of the Internal Audit Service as 
shown in section 4 and Appendix 2.  

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with 
the 1972 Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 



require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS) into account. 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the 
Council’s senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control 
systems and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately 
managed and that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the 
system of internal control and should set in place policies and procedures to 
ensure that controls are operating effectively.  

 

3. INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

3.1. The purpose of this report is to give my opinion as the Audit Manager for South 
Lakeland District Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
systems of risk management, governance and internal control from the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit for the year ended 31st March 2015.  This annual 
opinion from the designated head/lead officer of internal audit function is a 
requirement of the PSIAS. 

3.2. This report is a key contributor to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

3.3. In giving this opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute 
and it is not possible to give complete assurance that there are no major control 
weaknesses.  My opinion is based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit 
during the year, including the outcomes of any follow up work undertaken. 

3.4. I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow 
me to give a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk 
management, governance and internal control.  I can also report that there has 
been no threat to the independence of internal audit that would impact on the 
provision of my annual opinion statement. 

3.5. In my opinion, South Lakeland District Council’s overall framework of 
governance, risk and internal control is reasonable and audit testing has 
confirmed that controls are generally working effectively. This opinion 
should be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement.   

 

3.6. Internal audit coverage  

3.6.1. A total of 14 risk based reviews were carried out during 2014-15 and the 
outcomes were as follows: 
 

Substantial   1       (7%) 

Reasonable 11     (79%) 

Partial   2     (14%) 

 
 
 



3.6.2. Appendix 1 shows the individual assurance opinions against each audit area. 
  

3.6.3. Overall, 86% of risk based audits completed in year have resulted in a 
reasonable or substantial assurance; this is a pleasing result given the 
introduction of risk based audit to the Authority in 2014/15. The 3 material 
audits completed in this first year of the 3 year programme of material system 
audits all achieved reasonable assurance opinions 
 

3.7. Issues Raised In Year For Specific Report 
 

3.7.1. There were two audits undertaken in year which resulted in partial assurance 
opinions: 
 
Asset Management – concerns were raised in respect of the need for approval, 
adequate recording and retention of risk assessments prior to improvement 
work taking place.  Audit testing also highlighted the need for more co-
ordination between NPS, Legal and Finance departments to ensure all 
tenants/leaseholders are invoiced for the correct amount on a timely basis.  
 
Grounds Maintenance – management’s attention was drawn to the need to 
improve upon the arrangements for identifying, authorising, recording and 
reporting contract alterations (variations to specified works) and ‘off contract’ 
contract extras (additional works) to enhance the transparency and decision 
making around the general contract management arrangements. 
 

3.7.2. Comprehensive action plans have been discussed and approved with 
management and I am satisfied that management’s responses for both of these 
audits and the intended actions is appropriate to address the concerns raised.  
Members have been appropriately briefed on the issues raised by these audits 
and the actions to be taken by management.  I conclude that whilst these 
reviews include high priority matters for address by management, they do not 
have a significant impact of the overall governance arrangements of the 
Council.  

 
3.8. Other Supporting Information 

Issue Action required in 2014/15 

Any instances where it is not 
possible to reach agreement on a 
high priority recommendation 

There were no such occurrences during 
2014/15. 
  

Any instances where no action has 
been taken on an agreed 
recommendation and no 
reasonable explanation has been 
provided – all follow ups have been 
undertaken.   

The robust reporting on the status of 
previous recommendations continued 
throughout 2014/15. The Audit 
Committee received a quarterly report 
from management detailing the current 
position and the actions taken against 
each recommendation due for follow up. 
The audit of Data Quality, which 
received a partial assurance opinion in 
2013/14, was also formally followed up 
in year.  



Any matters which are likely to have 
an adverse effect on the Annual 
Governance Statement;   
 
Any matters which Internal Audit 
has needed to feed into the 
Governance Statement Action Plan 
during the course of the year, 
including any significant issues 
arising from audit work.   

No matters to report  
 
 
 
No matters to report 

Any other matters relating to the 
adequacy of systems, controls etc, 
to which it is deemed necessary to 
draw Members’ attention. 

No matters to report 

Any instances of fraud Internal Audit supported an internal 
preliminary investigation into an 
allegation of fraud in 2014-15. The 
matter was concluded and no further 
work was necessary. 

 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORAMANCE 

Completion of the Internal Audit Plan 2014/15  

4.1. Of the 14 reviews which were scheduled for completion in the year; all 14 audits 

were delivered to a quality standard adopted by the Shared Internal Audit 

Service.  Appendix 1 provides the final position of the Audit Plan for 2014-15.  

 
4.2. There was once agreed in-year change to the Audit Plan. The audit of 

Procurement was replaced with an audit of Counter Fraud Arrangements as 

this was deemed by senior management as a higher risk which had emerged in 

year. This change to the agreed plan was reported to the Audit Committee in 

December 2014.  

 
4.3. Appendix 2 summarises the year end performance against the contract 

performance measures.   Strong performance is seen across all performance 

measures.  

 
4.4. A notable improvement was made to audit workflows to achieve a steadier pace 

of delivering and reporting planned audits throughout the course of the year. 

This was achieved by utilising resources from a wider pool of audit staff; this 

also is of benefit by utilising the skills, experienced and knowledge of more 

audit staff from a larger team. This improvement has been recognised by 

management and was noted in the Audit Committee’s Chairman’s 2014/15 

Annual Report.  

 



4.5. To improve the visibility of the audit function in 2015/16 it has also been agreed 

for the Audit Manager to attend operational manager meetings on a regular 

basis and continue to attend senior management meetings as required. 

 
5. STATEMENT OF CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL 

AUDIT STANDARDS 

5.1. A separate paper has been reported to the Audit Committee setting out the 
outcomes of the Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit.  The 
review took the format of an internal assessment agreed by the Section 151 
Officer, against the checklist contained within the Local Government Application 
Note (LGAN) which accompanies the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS). 

5.2. The outcome of the review confirms that internal audit work has been 
undertaken in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 

6. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

6.1. Internal audit work has been carried out in accordance with the mandatory 
standards for internal audit. 

6.2. The work of internal audit is considered to be sufficient to provide an overall 
opinion on the systems of governance, risk management and internal control. 

6.3. There have been no threats to internal audit independence that would impact 
on the provision of an annual opinion statement. 

6.4. The annual opinion has concluded reasonable assurance over the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control. 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1. There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS) into account. 

8. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

8.1. Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements 
for governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of 
the Council’s strategic priorities.  

9. IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Financial and Resources 

9.1.1. There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

9.2. Human Resources 

9.2.1. There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 



9.3. Legal 

9.3.1. There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

9.4. Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4.1. There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

9.5. Equality and Diversity 

9.5.1. There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report. 

9.6. Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not 

comply with legislative 

requirements as laid out 

under the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations 2011  

Adverse impact on the 

Council in respect of 

conformance with 

expected auditing 

standards and on the 

assurances delivered by 

external audit regarding 

adequate and effective 

internal control 

arrangements. 

A complete and thorough 

self-assessment 

undertaken with supporting 

details to illustrate the 

effectiveness of Internal 

Audit against the PSIAS 

and LGAN requirements. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Report Authors:  Gill Martin, Audit Manager  

Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 

No. 

 

1 Audit Plan 2014/15 - final outturn position. 

2 Performance Information - final outturn position. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available  

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit  Also considered by the Audit Committee 

on 23rd July 2015 

 



TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 

Director 

Portfolio 

Holder 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

SMT Scrutiny 

Committee 

25th June 2015 n/a n/a 25th June 2015 n/a 

Executive 

(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 

Officer 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a Audit 

Committee 

23th July 2014 

n/a 25th June 2015 25th June 2015 

Human 

Resource 

Services 

Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 

Councillor(s) 

 

    

n/a n/a n/a   

 

  



 

                                                                           APPENDIX 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Audit Plan 2014/15  
 
Report Title:                           Internal Audit Annual Report 2014-15 

     Purpose of this Appendix:   To inform members of the final delivery position of the Audit Plan 2014-15. 
 

Directorate Service area Audit Area Planned 
Days 

Status Assurance 
Opinion 

Target 
Committee 

Date 

Actual Audit 
Committee 

Risk-Based 
Audits: 

         

Corporate    Fees & Charges 20 Completed Reasonable Apr-15 Jul-15 

Corporate    Information Governance  20 Completed Reasonable Apr-15 Jul-15 

People & Places Neighbourhood Services - 
Community and Leisure 

Grounds Maintenance  - 
Contract Management 

15 Completed Partial Dec-14 Dec-14 

People & Places Neighbourhood Services - 
Community and Leisure 

Lake Windermere Services 15 Completed Reasonable Dec-14 Dec-14 

People & Places Strategic Planning - 
Development Management 

Asset Management 15 Completed Partial Sep-14 Sep-14 

People & Places Strategic Planning - 
Development Management 

Development Management 15 Completed Reasonable Dec-14 Dec-14 

Policy & 
Performance 

Policy & Performance - 
Democratic & Electoral 
Services/Resources 

Expenses & Allowances 
(Members & Officer) 

15 Completed Reasonable Sep-14 Sep-14 

Policy & 
Performance 

Resources - Financial 
Services 

Procurement - 
Management and Review 
of Key Policies, Rules & 
Procedures 

- Deferred n/a Apr-15 n/a 



Policy & 
Performance 

Resources - Financial 
Services 

Counter Fraud 
Arrangements 

15 Completed Reasonable Apr-15 Apr-15 

Main Financial Systems:       

Policy & 
Performance 

Resources - Financial 
Services 

Payroll  20 Completed Reasonable Jul-15 Apr-15 

Policy & 
Performance 

Resources - Financial 
Services 

Creditors  20 Completed Reasonable Jul-15 Apr-15 

Policy & 
Performance 

Resources - Financial 
Services 

Council Tax 20 Completed Reasonable Apr-15 Apr-15 

Governance:        

Corporate   Policy & Performance  Performance Management 15 Completed Reasonable Apr-15 Apr-15 

ICT Audit:        

Corporate   Shared ICT Service ICT Data Back Up and 
Recovery Arrangements  

15 Completed Substantial Dec-14 Jul-15 

Corporate   Shared ICT Service General IT Controls  - Completed Reasonable Dec-14 Jul-15 

Other:         

Contingency   10 -  -  

Audit Management  Audit Committees, Audit 
Planning & Reporting 

 25 -  -  

   2014/15 Audit Days 255     

 

  



     APPENDIX 2 

  
 

Report Title:                           Internal Audit Annual Report 2014-15 
     

 Purpose of this Appendix: To provide members with the performance outturn information relating to the Internal Audit contract provided 

by Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service. 

 

Performance Measure Frequency Target Performance Outcome 

Audit Plan        

Timeliness of Preparation Annually Audit Plan should be prepared in time to 
present to the Audit Committee before the 
start of the relevant period 

The 2014/15 audit plan was prepared in Q4 2013/14. It was reported to 
SMT on 3rd April 2014 and approved by the Audit Committee on 24th 
April 2014.   

Content of audit plan Annually Audit plan prepared on risk basis, to cover 
services over rolling 5-year period. 

A risk based audit plan was prepared which conforms to PSIAS. The 
Senior Management Team was fully consulted upon when formulating 
the Audit Plan to ensure all areas were considered and key risks 
included. 

Audit Assignments:       

Draft reports to Responsible 
Officer 

Quarterly Within 20 working days of completion of 
audit fieldwork 

100% 

Final reports issued Quarterly Within 10 working days of receipt of 
management response 

100% 

Recommendations:       

Proportion of major and 
important recommendations 
acceptable to the audit clients 

Quarterly An average of 80% over a year Ongoing discussions as part of the audit review process, undertaking of 
findings meetings and audit close out meetings supports management 
buy-in of audit findings and resulting recommendations which are then 
presented in draft audit reports.  

 

 

 

 

 



Follow up of 
Recommendations: 

     

Major recommendations 
followed up within the period 
specified in Audit Reports 

Quarterly 100% 100 % completed. Management have robust arrangement in place to 
monitor and report on the implementation of previous audit 
recommendations.  Internal Audit has an oversight to this arrangement 
throughout the year; good progress was noted in the responses received 
and reported in year.                                                                         

The 2013/14 audit of Data Quality has been formally followed up by 
Internal Audit as part of the wider review of Information Governance in 
2014/15.   

Internal Audit has also strengthened its formal follow up arrangements in 
2015/16; these revised arrangements were reported to the Audit 
Committee in April 2015.   

Major and important 
recommendations followed up 
within timescale set out in 
Quality Plan 

Quarterly 95% overall during a year 

Progress against Annual 
Plan: 

      

Number of man-days delivered 
in period expressed as 
proportion of annual plan 

Quarterly 100% by 31 March with an even spread 
throughout the year 

All work was allocated and underway during 2014/15.  A small amount of 
work in progress was in hand at 31st March - this is unavoidable due to 
the nature of the work, availability of staff and reporting timescales.         

A notable improvement was made to audit workflows through a change 
in audit staff resourcing arrangements in year. This resulted in planned 
audit reviews being completed at a steady pace throughout the course of 
the year. This was achieved by utilising audit resources from the wider 
pool of audit staff in the Shared Internal Audit Service. This improvement 
has been recognised by management and was noted in the Audit 
Committee’s Chairman’s 2014/15 Annual Report.  

Number of man-days delivered 
in period analysed by staff 
grade. 

Quarterly Consistency with staff mix identified in 
contract 

There has been a consistency in Audit Manager assigned to oversee 
delivery of the contract.   

Experienced and knowledgeable principal and senior auditors are also 
utilised to deliver planned audit assignments. The contract benefits from 
accessing a larger team of experienced and knowledgeable audit staff. 

Relationships      

Senior managers’ views on 
quality of audits 

Annually Target of 90% satisfaction with audit work 
based on results of post audit questionnaire 

A Client Evaluation form accompanies all final audit reports. This form is 
not mandatory for officers to complete and there has been a 
disappointingly low response rate. However, from the few which were 
completed, good responses were noted; a 93% satisfaction level was 
achieved overall.  Managers will continue to be encouraged to complete 
and return these evaluation forms in 2015-16. 



Staffing and training       

Provision of appropriate 
continuing professional 
development (CPD) training for 
internal audit staff 

Annually All staff are appraised annually and 
appropriate training given. This should 
include the CPD requirements of any 
relevant professional body 

All staff in the Internal Audit Shared Service receives annual appraisals 
with a 6 month follow up review.  The Group Audit Manager is CPFA 
qualified. The Audit Manager is CPFA and MIIA qualified. Both adhere to 
the CPD requirements of these professional bodies.  

 

 



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

23rd July 2015 

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources & 
Section 151 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 
Gill Martin, Audit Manager (Cumbria Shared Internal 
Audit Service) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1. EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1. The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to 

undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its internal audit 

arrangements and report the outcomes for consideration by the Audit 

Committee as part of the system of internal control.  

 

1.2. From 1st April 2013, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice as ‘proper practices’ in relation to internal 

control. Internal Audit effectiveness has therefore been assessed against the 

PSIAS and the associated Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 

1.3. Having conducted a comprehensive review of internal audit against PSIAS and 

the LGAN checklist, I have concluded that South Lakeland District Council’s 

internal audit arrangements are in conformance with the PSIAS and are 

adequate and effective to deliver the annual internal audit opinion.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Committee note the following:- 

(1) Report on the effectiveness of Internal Audit and the supporting 
detail contained within Appendix 1  

(2)  Summary of the outcomes of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Process attached as Appendix 2 

3. BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1. The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to 

undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its internal audit 



arrangements and report the outcomes for consideration by the Audit 

Committee as part of the system of internal control. 

 

3.2. From 1st April 2013, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice as ‘proper practices’ in relation to internal 

control.  It is therefore against the PSIAS and associated Local Government 

Application Note (LGAN) that the internal audit arrangements have been 

assessed. 

 
3.3. The Audit Manager, who acts on behalf of the Group Audit Manager, Cumbria 

County Council; a position which is referred to in the PSIAS and LGAN as the 

Chief Audit Executive (CAE), is required under the PSIAS to include within her 

annual report, a statement of conformance with the Standards.  Any instances 

of non-conformance must be reported to the Audit Committee.  Furthermore, 

any significant non-conformance should be considered for inclusion within the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

 
3.4. The Local Government Application Note produced by CIPFA contains a 

checklist for periodic self-assessment of conformance with the standards.  This 

comprehensive checklist incorporates the requirements of the PSIAS as well as 

those from the LGAN to ensure comprehensive coverage of both documents.  

A summary of the outcomes of the completed self-assessment is attached at 

Appendix 1. 

 
3.5. There are a couple of areas in the checklist which are not directly applicable 

given that the service is delivered through an external provider (Shared Internal 

Audit Service, Cumbria County Council).  These areas relate to the 

appointment and appraisal of the Chief Audit Executive.  Alternative measures 

are in place to ensure that these areas are suitably addressed and can be 

relied upon. 

 
3.6. Internal audit implemented a risk based approach to internal auditing for the 

delivery of the 2014/15 audit plan in accordance with the requirements of the 

PSIAS.  This approach ensures that audit resources are focused on providing 

assurance over the areas of greatest risk to the council as well as providing 

assurance over the strategic management and governance of systems and 

services. 

 
3.7. A suite of internal audit performance measures was introduced at the start of 

2014/15 designed to monitor and report on both qualitative and quantitative 

aspects of the service’s performance and support the quality measures 

expected in the Shared Internal Audit Service.  These performance measures 

are in addition to those agreed in the Internal Audit contract.  

 
3.8. The internal audit team also moved to a central office in Kingstown, Carlisle.  

South Lakeland District Council has benefitted from this arrangement by 

accessing a wider pool of audit staff. This arrangement has also improved the 



work flow of audits during the course of the year from planning and undertaking 

of audits to the onwards reporting arrangements to management and the Audit 

Committee. 

 
3.9. Internal Audit has now implemented all of the recommendations arising from 

the 2013/14 of the service review carried out by Grant Thornton.  Of the 17 

recommendations made, 16 have been fully implemented and closed off and 

one remains ongoing – this being the development of a communications plan to 

further raise the profile of internal audit. 

 
3.10. The 2013/14 report on Internal Audit Effectiveness highlighted a small number 

of areas where the service was not yet fully compliant with the PSIAS, these 

were: 

 A Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme had yet to be 

formalised. 

 A documented policy for the retention of internal audit documentation.  

These outstanding issues have now been addressed and the service is working 

in conformance with the PSIAS. 

 

3.11. The outcomes of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Process is attached 

as Appendix 2. This demonstrates that effective quality assurance 

arrangements are in place within the service and these have operated 

consistently through the year. 

 

4. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

4.1. A comprehensive self-assessment against the PSIAS and LGAN checklist has 

been undertaken with supporting details. As Section 151 Officer for the Council, 

I conclude that the work of Internal Audit has been delivered in conformance 

with the required standards.  

4.2. A summary of the outcomes of the completed self-assessment is attached at 

Appendix 1.  

4.3. A summary of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Process is attached as 

Appendix 2. 

 

5. CONSULTATION 

5.1. The Shared Internal Audit Service has produced a comprehensive self-

assessment document and provided other supporting detail to support the 

review on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit.  

5.2. This information has been shared with management for an opinion to be drawn 
for report to the Audit Committee.  

6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

6.1. The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to 

undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its internal audit 

arrangements.  This report contains the relevant details to support this review.  

There are no alternative options to reach a satisfactory conclusion.  



 

7. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

7.1. Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements 

for governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of 

the Council’s strategic priorities.  

8. IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Financial and Resources 

8.1.1. There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

8.2. Human Resources 

8.2.1. There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

8.3. Legal 

8.3.1. There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

8.4. Social, Economic and Environmental 

8.4.1. There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

8.5. Equality and Diversity 

8.5.1. There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report. 

8.6. Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not 
comply with legislative 
requirements as laid out 
under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2011 
‘undertake an effective 
internal audit to evaluate 
the effectiveness of its 
risk management, 
control and governance 
processes, taking into 
account public sector 
internal auditing 
standards or guidance’. 

Adverse impact on the 
Council in respect of 
conformance with 
expected auditing 
standards and on the 
assurances delivered by 
external audit regarding 
adequate and effective 
internal control 
arrangements. 

A complete and 
thorough self-
assessment undertaken 
with supporting details 
to illustrate the 
effectiveness of Internal 
Audit against the PSIAS 
and LGAN 
requirements. 

 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Authors:  Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

Gill Martin, Audit Manager, Shared Internal Audit Service (Cumbria 
Council Council)  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 
No. 

 



Appendix 
No. 

 

1 A summary of the outcomes of the completed self-assessment to 

demonstrate conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) and the Local Government Application Note 

(LGAN) is attached at Appendix 1. 

2 A summary of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Process is 
attached at Appendix 2 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

Internal Audit Plan and 
Charter 2014/15 

Report to Audit Committee (Item 10) on 24th April 
2014 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

25 June 2015 n/a n/a 25 June 2015 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a Audit 
Committee 

23rd July 2015 

n/a 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

    

n/a n/a n/a   

 

  



APPENDIX 1 

 
Report Title:    Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 2014/15 

 
Purpose of this Appendix:   To provide members with a summary of the outcomes of 

the completed self-assessment to demonstrate conformance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 

1. Definition of Internal Auditing 

1.1. Internal audit work is carried out in line with the definition of internal auditing so 

as to provide independent assurance on the Council’s systems of risk 

management, governance and internal control. 

1.2. All internal audit reviews result in an audit report detailing the level of assurance 

that can be given.  Standard definitions are in place to ensure consistency in the 

assurance levels across the service. 

1.3. Internal audit does not have any operational responsibilities, thereby ensuring its 

ability to independently review all of the Council’s systems, processes and 

operations. 

1.4. All internal audit work is performed by staff who understand their responsibilities 

for objectivity.  All work is supervised by appropriately qualified and experienced 

staff. 

2. Code of Ethics 

2.1. The internal audit team have been made aware of the mandatory code of ethics 

within the PSIAS. 

2.2. All internal audit work is performed with independence and objectivity and all 

staff are aware of the need for them to declare any relevant business interests in 

order that any potential conflict of interest or compromise to audit objectivity is 

effectively managed. 

2.3. Staff are aware of their responsibilities in relation to confidentiality and 

information governance. 

2.4. Arrangements are in place to ensure that work is performed by staff with the 

appropriate skills, knowledge and experience and that training and development 

needs are identified through annual appraisals and six month reviews. 

3. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

3.1. An Internal Audit Charter is in place which defines the purpose, authority and 

responsibility of internal audit as well as its rights of access to all information, 

premises and personnel for the purpose of completing internal audit reviews.  



The Charter was approved by the Audit Committee alongside the 2014/15 Audit 

Plan. 

3.2. The Charter sets out the functional reporting line of the Audit Manager to the 

Audit Committee to ensure internal audit independence.   

Note: Chief Audit Executive (CAE) functional responsibility at South Lakeland District 

Council is delegated to the Audit Manager. 

3.3. The Audit Manager attends all meetings of the Audit Committee and contributes 

to the agenda for all meetings. 

3.4. The Audit Manager has direct access to the Senior Management Team, the 

Chief Executive and the Audit Committee Chair and Vice Chair. 

3.5. The reporting lines for the Audit Manager ensure that internal audit 

independence is maintained and in line with the Standards, the Audit Manager 

reports to the Assistant Director - Resources (S151 Officer) who is a member of 

the Senior Management Team.  Day to day reporting on functional issues is 

through the Financial Services Manager to the Assistant Director - Resources. 

The outcome of all audit reports is to the senior management of the respective 

service area.  

3.6. There have been no identified threats to internal audit independence or 

objectivity during the year. 

4. Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

4.1. The Group Audit Manager and all Audit Managers within the service are 

professionally qualified and experienced to deliver an effective internal audit 

service. 

4.2. A revised staffing structure was implemented during 2014/15.  As part of this 

process, all job descriptions and person specifications have been revised to 

reflect the duties required to deliver the risk-based approach to internal auditing 

and the skills needed to undertake the roles. 

4.3. The team has a wide range of skills and experience brought about in part by the 

creation of the Shared Internal Audit Service which brought together a number of 

existing internal audit teams into a single service.   

4.4. All audit work is undertaken with due professional care and reviewed by an Audit 

Manager to ensure that the work undertaken supports conclusions reached. 

5. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

5.1. Quality assurance arrangements are in place to ensure that all internal audit 

work is undertaken in conformance with the PSIAS.  Performance measures are 

reported to the Audit Committee every quarter and as part of the annual outturn 

report.  



5.2. All internal audit reviews are subject to management quality review. 

5.3. An external assessment of the Internal Audit Service was undertaken in 2013/14 

by Grant Thornton. Key outcomes from this external review have been 

implemented; one remains ongoing, this being the development of a 

communications plan to further raise the profile of Internal Audit. It is intended 

that further external assessments will be undertaken in line with the requirements 

of the PSIAS. 

6. Performance Standards 

6.1. Internal audit work is undertaken to support the purpose of internal audit as 

defined within the Audit Charter.  Management arrangements are in place to 

ensure that all work is delivered in accordance with the Charter and to deliver 

relevant assurance to senior management and the Audit Committee. 

6.2. Risk based audit plans have been developed across the Shared Internal Audit 

Service.  The same planning process has been applied at South Lakeland 

District Council. The audit plan has been developed to enable an overall annual 

opinion to be provided on the arrangements for governance, risk management 

and internal control. South Lakeland District Council’s Audit Plan was discussed 

and agreed by SMT before being approved by the Audit Committee. 

6.3. In developing the plan, account has been taken of the organisation’s risk 

management framework, the expectations of senior management and emerging 

national and local issues.  Consideration has also been given to the risk of fraud; 

a formal review of the counter-fraud arrangements was included within the 

2014/15 audit plan to provide assurance to senior management and the Audit 

Committee over the effectiveness of these arrangements. 

6.4. The audit plan has been developed based on a documented risk assessment 

and includes a small contingency to allow internal audit to respond to emerging 

risks.  Arrangements are in place to report required amendments to the audit 

plan to Audit Committee should this become necessary. 

6.5. The plan identify the audit resources required to deliver the work and 

arrangements are in place to allocate the workload across the audit team 

ensuring the most suitable skills and knowledge are made available 

6.6. An Internal Audit Manual has been developed during 2014/15 with a suite of 

consistent working paper templates and detailed procedure notes for various 

aspects of internal audit work. 

6.7. Internal Audit contributes to improving the Council’s operations through delivery 

of approved audit plans.  Internal audit recommendations are aimed at 

strengthening performance and risk management, governance and ethical 

policies and values and internal controls. 



6.8. The Audit Manager meets, as required, with the external audit management to 

discuss audit plans and the outcomes of audit work 

6.9. Internal audit has reported progress against a range of performance measures at 

each meeting of the Audit Committee.  Performance has been strong with a high 

proportion of the audit plan completed to the end of April. 

7. Engagement Planning 

7.1. All internal audit reviews are scoped and a brief prepared setting out the scope 

and objectives of the audit work together.  A new process was introduced for the 

delivery of the 2014/15 audit plan to ensure greater management input to the 

scope of each audit.  A standard client notification document was introduced to 

document the objectives and scope of the audit. Scopes include consideration of 

systems, records, personnel and premises. 

7.2. The audit planning process includes a preliminary assessment of risk for each 

audit included in the plan.  Auditors then undertake research as part of planning 

individual audit reviews to identify specific risks within the area under review.  

Within the risk based approach, once the scope of an audit is agreed, a full risk 

identification exercise is undertaken as part of the audit fieldwork.  This ensures 

that risk is considered throughout the audit process. 

7.3. The Internal Audit management review process ensures that work plans are 

prepared for each audit that document how the audit objectives will be met and 

that sufficient audit work is undertaken to support conclusions reached. 

7.4. Internal audit has introduced a document retention policy in line with the 

requirements of the PSIAS.  The policy was agreed by the Shared Services 

Operations Boards for implementation.  

7.5. All internal audit work is subject to management review and the standard working 

paper templates record the details of the review.  In addition, a work plan 

spreadsheet is maintained within the service to record the key stages of each 

piece of audit work and the evidence of manager review.  This allows the Audit 

Manager to provide assurance that the agreed audit process has been followed 

and that all audits have been subject to appropriate management quality review. 

7.6. All internal audit reports are issued in draft for management comments and 

agreement of the factual accuracy and completion of the action plan.  The 

closeout process was revised for the delivery of the 2014/15 audit plan to include 

a closeout meeting to discuss draft reports.  Where appropriate discussions are 

also held with audit clients before the draft report is prepared to explain the 

outcomes and discuss potential recommendations with clients; these are referred 

to as findings meetings. 

7.7. Audit final reports issued in relation to 2014/15 audit plans were accurate, 

comprehensive and complete.  All contained an assurance statement, agreed 



action plan and a statement from the relevant Director of their commitment to 

ensuring agreed actions will be implemented. 

7.8. The Audit Manager produces an annual report to Audit Committee which 

includes the overall opinion on the arrangements for governance, risk 

management and internal control.  The report includes a summary of the work 

undertaken in support of the opinion. 

8. Monitoring Progress 

8.1. A new approach to internal audit follow ups has been introduced in relation to 

audits carried out during 2014/15.  The approach was agreed by Audit 

Committee alongside its approval of the annual audit plan for 2015/16 in April 

2015.  The revised approach provides for all audits receiving a Partial or Limited 

assurance statement to be followed up.  The Audit Committee will then receive 

the outcome of the follow up review together with a revised assurance level 

where appropriate. 

9. Communication of the Acceptance of Risks 

9.1. Arrangements are in place to ensure that where key risks are accepted by 

management, this is discussed with senior management.  Should the Audit 

Manager consider that the organisation is accepting a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable; this would be reported to the Audit Committee. 

 

  



APPENDIX 2 

 
Report Title:    Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 2014/15 

 
Purpose of this Appendix:   To provide members with a summary of the outcomes of 
the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme. 

 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 

INTERNAL ASSESSMENTS (PSIAS ref: 1311) 

On-going reviews 
conducted through 

Elements Confirmation 
of 
conformance 

Supervision of 
engagements 

 Work is allocated from the annual risk based 

plan by the internal audit management team 

across the shared service 

 Staff are involved in developing audit scope 

in conjunction with audit clients prior to 

commencement 

 Work is supervised to ensure that it complies 

with the approved methodology for carrying 

out an audit 

 Audit Manager / Principal Auditor attend 

close out meetings to support the auditor and 

ensure that key messages are relayed 

appropriately 

 Internal Audit reports signed off by Audit 

Manager 

 Audit reports with less than Reasonable 

Assurance subject to final review by Group 

Audit Manager 

 





















Regular, documented 
review of working 
papers during 
engagements 

Audit Manager / Principal Auditor review each audit 
file to ensure: 

 The scope and objectives of the audit have 

been agreed with clients and adequately 

documented and communicated 

 Key risks have been identified 

 The audit testing strategy has been designed 

to meet the objectives of the audit and 

testing undertaken to the extent necessary to 

provide an audit opinion for each piece of 























On-going reviews 
conducted through 

Elements Confirmation 
of 
conformance 

work 

 Audit has been completed in a thorough, 

accurate and timely manner 

 The standard of working papers and 

evidence collected during the audit are in 

accordance with audit processes and 

procedures 

 The draft audit report fully reflects all findings 

from the audit and these are properly 

explained and practical recommendations 

made 

 The assurance rating is fully supported by 

the working papers and can be justified by 

the auditor 

 The audit has been completed within the 

time allocation 

 The audit report has been produced to a 

good standard in an accurate and timely 

manner 

 Training and development needs are 

identified through the review process. 

Periodic reviews by the Group Audit Manager to 
ensure that the quality assurance process is being 
applied consistently. 































Audit manual 
containing all key 
policies and 
procedures to be 
used for each 
engagement to 
ensure compliance 
with applicable 
planning, fieldwork 
and reporting 
standards 

Audit manual is in place for all key elements of the 
audit process together with templates for all audit 
working papers. 



Feedback from 
customer survey on 
individual 
assignments 

 Customer feedback form reviewed in April 

2014 and linked to performance measures 

for internal audit. 

 Feedback form issued for all internal audit 

assignments 













On-going reviews 
conducted through 

Elements Confirmation 
of 
conformance 

 Feedback from client satisfaction forms 

passed on to individual auditors.  Any areas 

identified for learning and development are 

taken forward 

 Any common issues are identified and action 

taken where necessary 







Analysis of 
performance 
measures established 
to improve internal 
audit effectiveness 
and efficiency 

 Regular monitoring of performance 

measures by the audit management team. 

 Feedback to individuals / teams as 

appropriate 

 Reporting to audit committees on a quarterly 

basis. 









All final reports and 
recommendations are 
reviewed and 
approved by the Audit 
Manager 

Formal sign off and issue of all final reports and 
recommendations by Audit Manager. 

New audit report template includes comments from 
Corporate Director or equivalent. 







 

 

Periodic reviews 
conducted through 

Elements  

Annual risk 
assessments for the 
purposes of annual 
audit planning 

 Annual risk assessment of each organisation’s 

audit universe as part of the planning process 




Annual assessment 
of Internal Audit’s 
conformance with its 
Charter, PSIAS with 
an improvement plan 
produced to address 
any areas of non-
conformance 
identified 

 Review of Charter for conformance 

 Annual completion of CIPFA checklist for 

assessing conformance with the PSIAS 

 Improvement plan produced to address areas 

of non-conformance. 

 Service development plan identifying actions 

for service improvement. 















Benchmarking with 
other Internal Audit 
service providers 

 Benchmarking 

 Networking with North West and County 

Council Audit Groups 







Quarterly reports to 
audit committees on 

 Preparation of progress report for each audit 

committee and attendance at audit committee 




progress with 
delivery of the audit 
plan 

by Group Audit Manager and / or Audit 

Manager. 

Adherence to Code 
of Ethics by all 
internal audit staff 

 Staff are reminded of the Code of Ethics. 

Annual completion of 
declaration of 
business  interests 
by all internal audit 
staff 

 Interests are declared as appropriate and 

considered by audit management team when 

allocating work. 



 

EXTERNAL ASSESSMENTS (PSIAS ref:1310) 

External Assessments will be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the 

PSIAS and reported to Audit Committee as appropriate. 

REPORTING ON THE QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAMME (PSIAS ref: 1320) 

The results of the quality assurance programme and progress against any 

improvement plans must be reported in the annual report. 

Internal Assessments – reports of internal assessments will be reported to the Audit 

Committee on an annual basis; 

External Assessments – results of external assessments will be reported to the Audit 

Committee and S151 officer at the earliest opportunity following receipt of the external 

assessors report.  The external assessment report will be accompanied by a written 

plan in response to significant findings and recommendations contained in the report. 

Follow up – A new follow up methodology has been introduced from 1st April 2015 
and applies to work undertaken from the 2014/15 audit plan.  The Audit Committee will 
receive the outcomes of internal audit follow ups through the regular progress report.  
The Audit Manager will monitor the completion of internal audit follow ups through the 
regular monitoring of the delivery of the overall audit plan. 

 

 



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

23
rd

 July 2015 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No.1) 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources & 
Section 151 

REPORT AUTHOR: Gill Martin, Audit Manager  
(Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0  EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report summarises the work carried out by Internal Audit and details the 
progress made on the delivery of the approved 2015-16 Audit Plan in the first 
quarter period. 

2.0  RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Committee notes the progress made 
against the agreed 2015-16 Audit Plan. 

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Management is responsible for the system of internal control and should put in 

place policies and procedures to ensure that systems are functioning correctly.  

3.2 Internal Audit examine, appraise and report on the effectiveness of financial and 

other risk, governance and internal controls to enable it to provide an opinion on 

the adequacy of the control environment and report any significant control 

issues. 

3.3 This report summarises the work carried out by the Cumbria Shared Internal 

Audit Service and details the progress made on the delivery of the approved 

2015-16 Audit Plan in the first quarter period.  

 

4.0 AUDIT PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE 2015/16 AUDIT PLAN. 
 

4.1 To assist Members in monitoring the progress made against the agreed 2015/16 
Audit Plan, the monitoring report attached as Appendix 1 illustrates the current 
position.  
 

4.2 Audit work has commenced in 4 reviews from the 2015/16 audit plan. 
 



4.3 Follow up audits on Asset Management and Grounds Maintenance, both of 
which were previously given partial assurance opinions in 2014/15, have 
commenced. 
 

4.2.1. Remaining audit work from the 2014/15 audit plan has been concluded and the 

resulting audit reports have been completed to final report stage.   

   Audit Area:          Assurance Opinion: 
   Data Back Up and Recovery Arrangements  Substantial  
   General IT Control         Reasonable 

 Fees and Charges     Reasonable 
Information Governance    Reasonable 

 

The outcome of these audits will be considered by this Committee as separate 

agenda items. 

 

4.4 The Internal Audit Service is delivered by the Cumbria Shared Internal Audit 

Service, Cumbria County Council.  To aid performance monitoring arrangements 

around this contract a monitoring schedule has been included as Appendix 2.  

This schedule details the performance measures relating to the contract in the 

achieved in the first quarter. Other (annual) performance measures will be 

reported to members as part of the Internal Audit Annual Report.  

 

4.5 Members are asked to:  

 Note the progress made against the agreed 2015-16 Audit Plan for the 

period in the first quarter period.  

 Receive the Internal Audit quarterly performance measures as shown in 

Appendix 2. 

 

 
5.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
5.1. This is a monitoring report, there are no alternative options.  

 
6.0  LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1. To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

7.0  IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. Financial and Resources 

 There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

7.2. Human Resources 

 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

7.3. Legal 

 There are no legal implications. 

7.4. Social, Economic and Environmental 

 There are no social, economic and environmental issues. 



7.5. Equality and Diversity 

 There are no equality and diversity issues. 

7.6. Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Audit coverage which 
does not cover the high 
risk areas of Council 
activity;  

Non delivery of the 
agreed Audit Plan; 

 

A key element of the 
internal control 
environment would be 
deficient, leaving the 
Council vulnerable to 
risk and potentially in 
breach of the statutory 
requirement to maintain 
an adequate and 
effective system of 
internal control. 

Insufficient internal audit 
coverage to provide 
assurance on the 
adequacy of the internal 
control environment. 

Robust audit progress 
reporting to senior 
management and Audit 
Committee each quarter 
period. 

Risk based annual audit 
planning. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Gill Martin, Audit Manager, 01228 226250 gill.martin1@cumbria.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Plan 2015/16 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant Director Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to 
the Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

25/06/15 n/a n/a 25/06/15 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/07/15 n/a 25/06/15 n/a 

Human Resource 
Services Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

  



APPENDIX 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Audit Plan 2015/16  
 

Report Title:                          Internal Audit Progress Report 2015/16 (No.1) 
    Purpose of this Appendix:  To inform members of the updated content and delivery position of the Audit Plan. 

 
 
 

Directorate Audit Area Allocated 
Days 

Status Target Audit 
Committee  

Assurance 
Evaluation 

Comments 

Corporate  Use of Agency, Interim &Casual 
Workers  

15 Ongoing Sep-15     

Strategic Planning Housing Standards  15         

Strategic Planning Homelessness; advice, prevention, 
hostels and social lettings  

15 Ongoing Dec-15     

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Street Scene – Street Cleaning 15 Ongoing Dec-15     

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Bereavement Services 10         

Neighbourhood 
Services 

Leisure Services 15         

Resources – Financial 
Services 

Procurement  15         

Resources – Financial 
Services 

Insurance 10 Ongoing Sep-15     

Policy and 
Performance 

Electoral Registration 10         

Follow Up Audits  As required 10 Ongoing Sep-15   Follow ups have commenced on 
Asset Management and Grounds 
Maintenance 



Financial System 
Reviews 

Main Accounting System and 
Budgetary Control 

20         

  Treasury Management 15         

  Housing Benefits  25         

Governance  Corporate Governance – 
compliance with Local Code 

15         

Computer Audit  Review areas to be determined 15         

  Audit planning and reporting 25         

Audit Management 
Advice & Guidance  

Contingency 10         

  Total Audit Days 255         

  



APPENDIX 2 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Internal Audit Service – Performance Monitoring 2015/16  
 

Report Title:                           Internal Audit Progress Report 2015/16 (No.1) 

Purpose of this Appendix: To provide members with quarterly performance monitoring information relating to the Internal Audit contract 

provided by Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service. 

 

 TARGET ACTUAL  Comments 

Audit Assignments     

Draft reports to Responsible 
Officer 

Within 20 working days of 
completion of audit 
fieldwork 

n/a 6 audits are ongoing, none of which of have reached 
draft reporting stage. 

Final reports issued Within 10 working days of 
receipt of management 
response 

n/a  See above.  

Audit Recommendations:    

Proportion of major and important 
recommendations acceptable to 
the audit clients 

An average of 80% over a 
year 

n/a  See above. No audit recommendations have been 
made relating to 2015/16 planned work as yet. 

Follow up of 
Recommendations: 

   

Major recommendations followed 
up within the period specified in 
Audit Reports 

100% On track to deliver The formal follow up audits of the two partial 
assurance areas reported in 2014/15 are ongoing. 

Major and important 
recommendations followed up 
within timescale set out in Quality 
Plan 

95% overall during a year On track to deliver As above. Internal Audit also continues to have an 
oversight to the monitoring and reporting 
arrangements on previous audit recommendations 
exercised by management.   

 
 
 
 

   



Progress against Annual Plan: 

Number of man-days delivered in 
period expressed as proportion of 
annual plan.                                         
100% by 31 March with an even 
spread throughout the year                                                    

 On track to deliver.  All 2014-15 WIP has been concluded and 6 new 
audits from the 2015/16 Audit Plan have been 
assigned.  The availability of audit staff from a wider 
pool will continue to support the steady allocation and 
progression of audit work from the Plan in 2015/16. 

Number of man-days delivered in 
period analysed by staff grade 

Consistency with staff mix 
identified in contract 

On track to deliver Consistency in Audit Manager assigned to oversee 
delivery of the contract and access to experienced and 
knowledgeable Principal and Senior Auditors are 
utilised to deliver the planned audit assignments.  

 

 





©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   

Audit Committee Update for South 

Lakeland District Council

Year ended  31 March 2015

23 July  2015

Jackie Bellard
Engagement Lead
T 0161 234 6394
E jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com

Neil Krajewski
Engagement Manager
T 0161 234 6371 
E neil.p.krajewski@uk.gt.com

Richard Tembo
In-Charge Auditor
T  0161 234 6352 
E richard.z.tembo@uk.gt.com



The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared 

solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

.



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   33

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 4

Progress at March 2015

The 2014/15 Audit 5

Emerging issues and developments

Grant Thornton 8

Local government issues 13

Accounting and audit issues 15



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   44

Introduction

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. The paper also 
includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you; and

• a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to consider.

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated 
to our work in the public sector (http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/en/Services/Public-Sector/). Here you can download copies of our publications 
including:

• All aboard? our local government governance review 2015

• Stronger futures: development of the local government pension scheme

• Rising to the challenge: the evolution of local government, summary findings from our fourth year of financial health checks of English local 
authorities 

• 2020 Vision, exploring finance and policy future for English local government 

• Where growth happens, on the nature of growth and dynamism across England

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates 
on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Audit Manager.

Jackie Bellard    Engagement Lead  T 0161 234 6394 M 07880 456 195      jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com
Neil Krajewski Audit Manager        T 161 234 6371  M 07827 282 364      neil.p.krajewski@uk.gt.com



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   55

Progress at 3 July 2015

Work Planned date Complete? Comments

2014-15 Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit 
plan to the Council setting out our proposed approach 
in order to give an opinion on the Council's 2014-15 
financial statements.

April  2015 Yes Audit plan was presented to the audit committee in 
April

Interim accounts audit
Our interim fieldwork visit includes:
• updating our review of the Council's control 

environment
• updating our understanding of financial systems
• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems
• early work on emerging accounting issues
• early substantive testing
• initial risk assessment in support of the  Value for 

Money conclusion.

January to March 
2015

Yes We completed our initial planning and interim work 
at the end of March. There are no matters to raise 
with you at this stage. 

2014-15 final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2014-15 financial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion. 

August to 
September 2015

On Track We have received the Council's draft statement of 
accounts for audit and our work is now underway. 
Our on-site audit work will commence in August 
2015.



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   66

Progress at 3 July 2015

Work Planned date Complete? Comments

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our work to inform the 2014/15 VfM 
conclusion comprises whether the Council has:
• proper arrangements in place for securing financial 

resilience. 

• proper arrangements for challenging how it secures 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

To be completed 
by August 2015

On track Our work is progressing as planned.



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   77

Emerging issues and developments

The following sections provide the Audit Committee with:  

• a summary of recent Grant Thornton reports

• a summary of accounting and audit issues, including a number of questions to consider in respect of these issues



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   88

Stronger futures: development of  the LGPS

Grant Thornton 

Our second review on governance in LGPS funds in England and Wales is based on comprehensive research with pension fund senior 
officers, supported by insights from pension fund auditors and is available at http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/Publications/2015/Stronger-
futures-development-of-the-LGPS/

With the local government pensions scheme (LGPS) continuing to face significant change and challenge, there is a clear commitment to 
ensuring its survival and the provision of affordable pension benefits for the future. Following the implementation of a career average 
pension scheme in 2014, administering authorities are preparing for significant changes in governance arrangements effective from April 
2015.

Some of the key messages from the report are:

there are increasing strong examples of innovation and increased collaborative working across the LGPS
to achieve reduced costs and improved use of specialist skills and knowledge;

implementation of the career average scheme from April 2014 went well and demonstrated good project 
management and effective communication with members and employers; and

there have been several other positive trends across the LGPS since our 2013 review particularly 
around the widening scope of reporting to Pension Committees including performance reporting, risk 
management and internal audit reviews.

However, we saw a wide variation in practice, including a concentration of risk reporting on investment risk,
over half of funds have not implemented the CIPFA knowledge and skills framework as part of their
member training, 45 per cent of Pension Committees do not receive internal audit reports and 15 per cent do not have specific internal 
audit coverage, and nearly half of funds have no information around the value of their liabilities in between the triennial valuations.

Hard copies of our report are available from your Engagement Lead or Audit Manager.



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   99

Welfare Reform Review: Easing the burden
Grant Thornton market insight

Our second welfare reform report, 'Easing the burden', followed on from 'Reaping the benefits?' to provide insight into the impact of welfare 
reform on English local authority and social housing organisations over the past two years.

It focused on the governance and management arrangements being put in place in England across the two sectors to deliver reform, the early 
signs of how successful the reforms have been and the upcoming issues and risks on the reform agenda in the wider context of social impact.

Key messages:
• The cumulative effect of  various welfare reforms is putting a significant financial strain on those people needing welfare support
• The majority of local authorities and housing associations surveyed had seen a rise in average council tax and rent arrears since 2012/13, 

which they attributed at least in part to welfare reform
• There had been limited movement to smaller properties as a result of the spare room subsidy (also known as the  bedroom tax) and benefit 

cap reforms, with generally less than 10% of those affected having moved according to our survey. The shortage of smaller properties for 
people to move into played a key role in this

• Local authorities are becoming reliant on Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) to plug the gap for those unable to pay. Ninety-five per cent 
of local authorities surveyed think that recipients of DHP allocations are either wholly or partly dependent on DHP to avoid homelessness in 
the longer-term. Any reduction in DHP funding from central government is therefore likely to result in further increases to rent arrears and 
homelessness in the next two years, unless mitigated by other means

• The withdrawal of ring-fenced hardship funding (formerly the Social Fund) will result in a reduction of provision, as the majority of local 
authorities told us that they are not in a position to fund this from their own revenue

• Reductions in DHP and hardship funding, in addition to general funding reductions will inhibit the ability of local authorities and housing 
associations to pursue early intervention policies that avoid people falling into long-term benefit 
dependency. This will have cost implications for the medium- to long-term.

• The cost of administering housing benefit has risen as a result of welfare reform and now 47% of local 
authorities and 51% of housing associations surveyed said housing benefit is becoming significantly more 
costly to administer. This is partly due to the increased complexity of cases 

The report 'Easing the burden: The impacts of welfare reform on local government and social housing sector'
can be found on our website



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1010

Spreading their wings: Building a successful local authority trading company

Grant Thornton market insight

'Spreading your wings' is the first in a series on alternative delivery models in local government. This report focuses on how to set up 
a local authority trading company and, importantly, how to make it successful.

The trend in using alternative models to protect and develop services has continued over the last year. As councils continue to 
confront financial pressure, many have considered how to reduce costs, generate income and improve efficiency by introducing 
commercial structures. 

The introduction of LATCs has been a key part of this innovation and we predict that the number will grow in the next five years.
While restricted initially to areas such as entertainment or airports – for example Birmingham’s NEC and Manchester Airport – LATCs 
have grown into new areas such as highways, housing and education. More recently, LATCs dedicated to the delivery of social care
services have emerged.

We recognise that the delivery of a successful company is not easy. In light of this, this report provides practical guidance on the 
steps that need to be followed in:

• deciding to set up a local authority trading company
• setting up a local authority trading company
• building a successful local authority trading company.

Grant Thornton has worked with many LATCs and continues to support growth
in this area. We have based this report on market research, interviews with 
councils and LATCs, and our own experience of working with LATCs and 
councils. It is a practical guide drawing on our own experiences but also on 
the successful companies we have worked with



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1111

Creating a sustainable financial future: Local government finance roundtable

Grant Thornton market insight

Our report summarises the findings of our recent round table discussions with 34 local authority senior finance officers, looking at 
how to create a sustainable financial future and incentivise authorities to become 'engines of growth' for the English regions.

The discussion was based around two key questions:

• What funding model is needed to create a sustainable financial future for local government?
• What funding model is needed to incentivise authorities to support local and regional growth?

The consensus view was that the current funding model is 'broken' and the report argues that a more balanced relationship is needed 
between central and local government in England. In particular, a new funding model is required that provides local government with 
more autonomy, places its financial stability in its own hands and addresses the dual needs of 'resource equalisation' and 
'incentivising growth'.

Taking on board these helpful insights and our wider research, Grant Thornton recommends that within:

• one year the Government should assess the impact of Revenue Support Grant 
reductions on councils ability to deliver safe services (and put in the necessary safeguards to 
protect the vulnerable) and should provide clarity on the long term retention of business 
rates growth by local government.

• three years pilots of different models of local government autonomy should be tested
• five years local government should be autonomous with business and council tax

raising powers



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1212

The Queen's Speech 2015 – what is means for local government

Local government issues

The Queen’s Speech was presented to Parliament on 27th May 2015 and set out the new government’s policies and proposed legislative 
programme for the next parliamentary session. There are a range of proposals impacting on local government, including:

• A Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill aimed at boosting growth and increasing local government productivity and efficiency. It 
will provide the legislative framework to deliver the Greater Manchester deal and other future deals. The provisions of the bill will be 
applied to specified combined authorities and their areas, led by an elected mayor. 

• A Housing bill extending right to buy legislation to housing associations and requiring local authorities to dispose of high-value vacant 
council houses. This bill will also introduce measures to simplify and speed up the neighbourhood planning system other changes to 
housing and planning legislation to support housing growth.

• An Education and Adoption bill that aims to speed up intervention in failing schools and requires inadequate, and coasting schools to 
become academies. It is also planned to introduce regional adoption agencies, working across local authority boundaries to reduce 
delays in the adoption system.

Challenge question
Have members considered the new government's proposed legislative programme and its likely impact on the Council?



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1313

Local Government New Burdens 

Local government issues

The National Audit Office (NAO) published its review of new burdens on local government on 5th June 2015. 

In 2011, the government reaffirmed its commitment to the New Burdens Doctrine (the Doctrine). The Doctrine set out how the government 
would ensure that new requirements that increased local authorities’ spending or reduced their income did not lead to excessive council 
tax increases. The Doctrine commits the government to assess and fund extra costs for local authorities from introducing new powers, 
duties and other government-initiated changes.

The NAO report considers the new burdens regime, how it is managed and overseen and the DCLG's arrangements for new burdens 
assessments. It concludes that: 

• government departments have embraced the new burdens Doctrine and the DCLG's guidance has promoted consistent assessment 
and encouraged consultation with local government on the impact of new requirements; 

• however, the government is not sufficiently open about which new burdens are assessed or the outcomes of assessments; and 
• the DCLG has not promoted post implementation reviews to ensure funding is adequate. 

The NAO also concludes that the DCLG needs to use intelligence from new burdens regime better, to improve its understanding of the 
pressures affecting local authorities' financial sustainability. 

Challenge question

Are members aware of the key findings of the NAO's review of new burdens on local government?



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1414

English devolution – local solutions for a successful nation

Local government issues

The Local Government Association's (LGA) white paper on devolution includes a warning to the new government that the principle of cuts 
without reform could stifle growth and development and challenge the sustainability of vital local services. The paper sets out:

• Why devolution matters
• The principles to sustain devolution 
• A road map to follow to help deliver reform
• Proposals that will strengthen accountability and governance in the new system

It states that:

Local government has done more than any other part of the public sector over the course of the last parliament to make the public 
finances more sustainable and managed to do so while protecting front line services. All evidence suggests that this cannot continue over 
the next five years without more radical reform. Given the continuing need to reduce the national deficit, only a reinvigorated agenda for 
reform, underpinned by sustainable funding for local services, will deliver the ambition of the new Government for our communities and 
national economy.

Challenge question
Have members considered the headline messages from the LGA's white paper on devolution?



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   1515

Accounting and audit issues

Local authority Audit Committee members are not expected to be financial experts, but they are responsible for approving and issuing 
the authority’s financial statements. However, local authority financial statements are complex and can be difficult to understand. 

In 2014 we prepared a guide for Members to use as part of their review of the financial statements. It explains the key features of the 
primary statements and notes that make up a set of financial statements. It also includes key challenge questions to help Members 
assess whether the financial statements show a true and fair view of their authority’s financial performance and financial position. Any 
new members to the Audit Committee may find this guide helpful.

The guide considers the :

• explanatory foreword – which should include an explanation of key events and their effect on the 
• financial statements
• annual governance statement – providing  a clear sense of the risks facing the authority and the 
• controls in place to  manage them
• movement in reserves statement – showing the authority's net worth and spending power
• comprehensive income and expenditure statement – reporting on the year's financial performance 
• and whether operations resulted in a surplus or deficit
• balance sheet – a 'snapshot' of the authority's financial position at the year end; and
• other statements and additional disclosures 

We have previously provided copies of the guide to members but please let us know if you would like a copy.  

Understanding your accounts – Member guidance



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee  

23 July 2015 

INTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACT  

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) 
& Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of the planned tender 
exercise for the supply of internal audit services from 1 April 2016. 

 
1.2 The expected outcome is to ensure arrangements are in place to provide a 

high quality, cost effective internal audit service from 1 April 2016. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee approve the proposed 
arrangements for the tendering of the Internal Audit Service from 1 April 
2016. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Cumbria Internal Audit Shared Service have provided internal audit service 
since April 2013 when they took over from Furness Audit Limited after a joint 
tender exercise with Eden District Council. 

3.2 The current Internal Audit contract was for an initial period of 3 years with the 
Council having an option to extend the contract for a further 2 years. It is 
viewed as essential, when considering the length of the next contract to also 
consider the events surrounding external audit services. It could cause 
inefficiencies to be implemented both contracts simultaneously in the future.  

3.3 There is still uncertainty around the timing and arrangements for the tendering 
of external audit services, where the last tendering exercise was carried out 
nationally by the Audit Commission but which individual authorities will be 
expected to procure from the end of the current contract in September 2017.  
The decision whether or not to extend the current external audit contract will 
be taken by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, an independent company 
incorporated by the Local Government Association who manage the current 
external audit contracts following the abolition of the Audit Commission.  



2 
 

3.4 In order to avoid the possibility of appointing new internal and external 
auditors at the same time we intend to proceed with the tender for internal 
audit services at the end of the current initial contract period without 
extension. 

3.3 It is proposed that a joint tender should be advertised with Eden District 
Council using The Chest e-tendering system.  A joint procurement exercise 
enables the sharing of procurement costs and expertise and should provide a 
more competitive price for the service.  The service will be offered in lots 
which will enable each Council to appoint a different service provider if 
appropriate. 

3.4 It is proposed that the new contract will be for a three year period with two 
possible extensions of one year each.  This will give maximum flexibility to 
ensure that future internal audit and external audits tenders are not required 
at the same time.  This means however, that the tender is large enough to 
require it to be advertised in the European Journal which requires significant 
lead-in time. 

3.5 A common “core” specification will be used for the two authorities but with 
different call-off rates to allow for the service to be tailored to local needs.  
The tender will be evaluated in accordance with the Council’s procurement 
rules with a proposed 60% price/ 40% quality split. 

3.6 The timetable for the tendering exercise is shown below: 

Stage Expected Date 

Review of current contract 
performance/ lessons learned 

Complete 

Market appraisal Complete 

Set procurement objectives and 
report to Audit Committee 

23 July 2015 

Tender documents completed and 
agreed, opportunity advertised on 
OJEU and The Chest 

10/11 August 2015 

Tender submission deadline 17 September 2015 

Evaluation Complete 2 October 2015 

Senior Management Team 29 October 2015 

Cabinet 25 November 2015 

Call-in expires 7 December 2015 

Contract Award 15 January 2016 

Contract start date 1 April 2016 

 

Details of the successful tenderer will be circulated to Audit Committee 
members prior to the commencement of the contract and an update will be 
prepared for the next meeting of Audit Committee in April 2016. 



3 
 

3.7 It is proposed that the contract is broadly in the same format as present: 

 Contractor to prepare a risk-based audit plan, for approval by the 
Assistant Director (Resources) and Audit Committee; 

 The contractor to specify how many days will be required to deliver an 
audit programme, to meet the required Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards; 

 There will be a daily rate for any work done outside the main contract. 

The contract will include an allowance for up to 10 days for Contract Final 
Account audits. 

The main change is that the contract will not include the initial investigation of 
frauds; this work will be carried out in future by the Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Officer. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 SLDC Senior Management Team and the Director of Resources at Eden 
District Council have been consulted on whether there should be a joint 
tendering exercise and on the major principles. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 An alternative option is not to re-tender for internal audit services but to 
extend the current contract.  

5.2 The Council could chose not to re-tender for internal audit services and to 
provide the service in-house.  The Council does not currently have adequate 
knowledge or staffing capacity to deliver this option which could lead to 
greater costs and reduced specialist expertise. 

5.3 The Council could choose to formally join the Cumbria Shared Internal Audit 
Service for a period.  This option would be dependent upon the agreement of 
the other members of the shared service, there would need to be a period of 
consultation and this may not represent the best option for Value for Money. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The proposals support the delivery of Value for Money in providing the 
Council’s Priorities.   

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 This report relates to the Internal Audit contractual arrangements which are 
included in the existing revenue budget.  The re-tendering exercise may result 
in an increase or decrease in the current audit fee. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no direct staffing implications for South Lakeland District Council 
employees.  TUPE will apply to any qualifying staff of the existing internal 
audit contractor. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Legal services have been involved in the preparation of the draft contract 
which will be included in the tender documents. 



4 
 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out.  The proposal is 
considered to have a neutral impact on sustainability.    

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 An equality and diversity impact assessment has not been carried out.  The 
Council will ensure any contractor appointed will have appropriate 
arrangements regarding equality and diversity.  

This is a corporate governance issue with no social, economic or 
environmental impact. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council fails to 
obtain a quality service 
at an economic rate 

Inadequate audit 
coverage, failure to 
meet standards, poor 
value for money, 
criticism from external 
auditors 

Robust tendering 
process with strict 
quality criteria and 
robust contract 
monitoring following the 
award of the contract 

The cost to the Council 
may increase compared 
to the cost of extending 
the existing contract 

Poor value for money, 
reduction in audit 
coverage. 

Robust tendering 
process with realistic 
approach to 
specification; review 
option to extend existing 
contract 

The Council enters into 
a joint arrangement but 
compromises on a 
service that fails to meet 
its requirements 

Expectations not met, 
criticism from external 
auditors 

Common specification 
to meet minimum 
standards with flexibility 
to add individual 
services for individual 
authorities. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 None 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant Portfolio Solicitor to the SMT Scrutiny 



5 
 

Director Holder Council Committee 

23/6/15 n/a 23/6/15 23/6/15 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/7/15 n/a 22/6/15 23/6/15 

HR Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

Assistant 
Directors  

 

23/6/15 n/a n/a n/a  

 





South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

23 July 2015 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources & 
S151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: As above 

WARDS: Not applicable 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to Audit Committee to facilitate the annual review of 
the Audit Committee Risk Register.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1)    review the updated Audit Committee Risk Register. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Risk Register was last reviewed on 4 December 2014 and has been 
brought back with that meeting’s recommendations included.  

Appendix 1 shows the risks previously identified for the Audit Committee and 
those which have been archived. These risks have been reviewed and 
archived during the period the Committee has existed.  These will continue to 
be reviewed annually. 

3.2 The Committee at its December 2014 meeting identified two new risks:   

3.2.1 RISK AC 1: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to 
inexperience. This was archived on the 19/06/08, but resurrected as part of 
the review process at the 4 December 2014 Audit Committee. New 
appointments have been made to the Committee for 2015. Actions will be 
carried out to ensure that suitable development opportunities are provided to 
ensure that these Members can carry out their roles effectively.  

3.2.2 RISK AC 2: Members also discussed the risk regarding the future challenges 
to be faced by Local Government through changes brought about by Central 
Government. This risk is actually included in the Strategic Risks considered by 
the Council and will be reported back as part of that item on the agenda. 

 



3.3 Previous risks that have been considered and archived are: 

RISK AC 001: Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee: 
archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 002: The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to 
inexperience: archived on the 19/06/08 
RISK AC 003: Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit 
Committee: archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 004: Members do not recognise the importance of Audit 
Committee: archived 10/2/11 
RISK AC 005: Perception that the Committee is too critical: archived 
10/2/11 
RISK AC 007: Significant changes to the membership In one year: 
archived 19/6/08 
RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the 
committee to demonstrate progress and contribution: archived 18/7/13 
RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are 
not addressed.   

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 No alternative options – risks should be reviewed and managed. 

 

5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

5.1 Risk management activity underpins Council Plan activity 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 The proposed mitigations can be met within existing budgets.  

6.2 Human Resources 

6.2.1 The proposed mitigations can be met from within the existing human 
resources available 

6.3 Legal 

6.3.1 There are no additional legal requirements. 

6.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

6.4.1 No social, economic and environmental issues are raised by the review. 

6.5 Equality and Diversity 

6.5.1 No equality and diversity issues are raised by the review. 

6.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No significant risks 
associated with this 
report 

  

 



CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer SLDC 

01539 793112 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Committee Risk Register 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

None  

 

 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

My report n/a 01/07 01/07 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 23/07 n/a My report 01/07 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 





Appendix 1 
 

1 

Audit Committee Risk Register 
 

Report Author: Shelagh McGregor/John Davies 

Generated on: 23.07.2015  Audit Committee 

 

 

The Risk matrix shows how risks are prioritised: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Committee Risks:  
Archived as agreed by previous Audit Committees 

Listed in order of Risk No. & Title 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

    

Low 

    

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 001 Insufficient support/ backup provided to the committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 002 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. This is included as a new risk below the line of 
tolerance. 

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Provide suitable 
development 
opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 
completed? 

 Due Date   Actioned    

Priority risks which 
require mitigating 
controls and 

quarterly review 

Low priority risks 
which require annual 

review 



Appendix 1 
 

2 

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 003 Officers do not recognise the importance of the Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 004 Members do not recognise the importance of Audit Committee   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 005 Perception that the Committee is too critical   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 10/02/11 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 006 Insufficient capacity from Members to make the Committee effective   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 007 Significant changes to the membership In one year   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 008 Lack of indicators or measurable outcomes to enable the committee to 
demonstrate progress and contribution. 

  



Appendix 1 
 

3 

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 18/07/13 decided to archive this risk    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 

completed? 
 Due Date   Actioned    

 
Risk No. & Title RISK AC 009 The priority Significant Issues identified by Internal Audit are not addressed   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2015 decided to archive this 
risk.  

  

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

  
Action 
completed? 

 Due Date   Actioned    

 
  

2015/16 Risk Register/162015  
 

Risk No. & Title RISK AC 1 The challenge from the committee is ineffective due to inexperience   

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 19/06/08 decided that this risk should be 
archived as is no longer relevant. The Audit Committee of the 
23/07 decided that this risk should be re-instated as 2 new 
members were added to the Committee at the 20 May 2015 
Annual Council. This is included as a new risk below the line of 
tolerance. 

  

Actions to 

control 
this risk 

 Provide suitable 
development 

opportunities to prepare 
Members to make an 
effective contribution. 

Action 

completed? 
Commenced Due Date 

 Throughout 

2015/16 Actioned 
Simon 
McVey 

  

 

Risk No. & Title 

RISK AC 2 Future challenges to be faced by Local Government through changes brought 
about by Central Government. 
 
Local authorities continue to face unprecedented challenges, relating to the pressures of 
austerity and central government funding reductions, and demographic and technological 
change. 

  

Risk 
Priority 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Latest 
Note 

Audit Committee of 4 December 2015 added this risk.    

Actions to 
control 
this risk 

 Review as part of the 
updated MTFP reported 
to Cabinet and Council 

Action 

completed? 

Monitored 

as part of 
the 

Strategic 

Risk 

Register 

Due Date 
 To July 

Cabinet and 

Council 
Actioned 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

  

 




	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 TERMS OF REFERENCE
	6 WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16
	7 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
	ITEM 7 - SRR Appendix 1

	8 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS INCLUDING THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15
	ITEM 8 - SOA 2014-15 Appendix 1

	9 INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT
	ITEM 9 - IA Recs and AGS AP - PR - Appendix 1

	10a FEES AND CHARGES
	10b INFORMATION GOVERNANCE
	10c GENERAL IT CONTROLS
	10d IT DATA BACKUP AND RECOVERY ARRANGEMENTS
	11 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
	12 REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT
	13 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 (No. 1)
	14 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	15 REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACT
	16 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER
	ITEM 16 - AC Risk Register - Appendix 1


